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Statement of the chief executive’s responsibilities as the
accountable officer of the trust

The Chief Executive of NHS Improvement, in exercise of powers conferred on the
NHS Trust Development Authority, has designated that the Chief Executive should
be the Accountable Officer of the trust. The relevant responsibilities of
Accountable Officers are set out in the NHS Trust Accountable Officer
Memorandum. These include ensuring that:

* there are effective management systems in place to safeguard public funds
and assets and assist in the implementation of corporate govemance

* value for money is achieved from the resources available to the trust

* the expenditure and income of the trust has been applied to the purposes
intended by Parliament and conform to the authorities which govern them

» effective and sound financial management systems are in place and

* annual statutory accounts are prepared in a format directed by the
Secretary of State to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs as at the
end of the financial year and the income and expenditure, other items of
comprehensive income and cash flows for the year.

As far as | am aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the trust's
auditors are unaware, and I have taken all the steps that | ought to have taken to
make myself aware of any relevant audit information and to estabiish that the
entity's auditors are aware of that information.

To the best of my knowledge and belief, | have properly discharged the
responsibilities set out in my letter of appointment as an Accountable Officer.

Interim Chief Executive




Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the
accounts

The directors are required under the National Heaith Service Act 2006 to prepare
accounts for each financial year. The Secretary of State, with the approval of HM
Treasury, directs that these accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the trust and of the income and expenditure, other items of comprehensive
income and cash flows for the year. In preparing those accounts, the directors are

required to:

* apply on a consistent basis accounting policies laid down by the Secretary
of State with the approval of the Treasury

e make judgements and estimates which are reasonable and prudent

* state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject
to any material departures disclosed and explained in the accounts and

* prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis and disclose any
malerial uncertainties over going concem.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any lime the financial position of the trust and
to enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with requirements outlined in
the above mentioned direction of the Secretary of State. They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the trust and hence for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors confirm to the best of their knowledge and belief they have complied
with the above requirements in preparing the accounts.

The directors confirm that the annual report and accounts, taken as a whole, is fair,
balanced and understandabie and provides the information necessary for patients,
regulators and stakeholders to assess the NHS trust's performance, business
model and strategy

By order of the Board

lo"dwe 220 pate.

ceeennennen tErim Chief Executive

..[9.‘?‘:\39.’.1‘?—...%9..71!....Date.................-.......... seeeereennn.Finance Director



Hounslow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust
Organisation Code: RY9

Annual Governance Statement for 2020-21

Scope of responsibility

As Accountable Officer, | have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal control
that supports the achievement of the NHS trust's policies, aims and objectives, whilst
safeguarding the public funds and departmental assets for which | am personally responsible,
in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me. | am also responsible for ensuring that
the NHS trust is administered prudently and economically and that resources are applied
efficiently and effectively. | also acknowledge my responsibilities as set out in the NHS Trust
Accountable Officer Memorandum.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to
eliminate all risk of failure, to achieve policy aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of intemal control is
based on an ongoing pracess designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement
of the policies and strategic objectives of Hounslow and Richmond Community Healthcare
NHS Trust, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact shouid they
be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of
internal control has been in place in Hounslow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS
Trust for the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the date of approval of the annual report
and accounts.

Risk Management

In 2019 as a trust on our Journey to Qutstanding, we decided to take a fresh look at risk
management to ensure that risk was further embedded into all decision making. To enable
us to deliver the ambition set out in the trus! strategy and the NHS Plan we decided it was
timely to produce a risk management strategy to support our commitment to provide high
quality services. We recognised that successful risk management must be forward thinking;
the responsibility of all; comprehensive and coordinated; and that proactive and continuous
identification and management of risk is essential to the delivery of high value healthcare.

The strategy sets out clear goals, achievements and timescales for implementation. This
enables our people to work towards the same aims empowering innovation whilst ensuring
patient quality and care are at the centre of delivery. Within the strategy we created a vision
for risk management. Risk management will be everybody's business — integratl to
professional and operational practice at every level and across organisational/professional
boundaries. We will continually strive to test the boundaries of practice, whilst ensuring that
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we operate within legal and regulatory frameworks to reduce the exposure to risk to ensure
that patients receive outstanding care.

Risk governance

The trust board is accountable to NHS England/improvement (NHSE/) for the trust's
performance. The main govemance committees are chaired by a Non-Executive Director and
report directly to the board. Each committee is informed and supported by a variety of groups
and local meetings.

Risk and control framework

The trust has a robust approach to risk management with:

the board holding an annual risk seminar to review risk management systems and processes
and to agree the organisational risk appetite statement

the Audit and Risk Committee assuming delegated authority from the board for oversight and
assurance on the management of strategic risks to the delivery of the trust’s objectives, The
Audit and Risk Cammittee is supported in its oversight of strategic risks by the Finance and
Performance, Executive, Quality Governance and Workforce and Education Committees
which lead on specific strategic risks

the interim Chief Executive has overall accountability for the development of risk
management systems and delegates responsibility for the management of specific areas of
risk to named Directors

all staff are provided with risk management training as part of their induction to the trust
face-to-face training for those staff regularly involved in risk management being provided as
appropriate

an open culture to empower staff to report and resolve incidents and risks through the Datix
recording system and to share leaming with teams

In April 2020 the trust on direction of NHS England/Improvement as part of the pandemic
response implemented light and lean govemance arrangements. The arrangements have
ensured that the trust maintains oversight and assurance on equality and sustainability whilst
providing patient care. The introduction of digital meetings brought with it new ways of working.

Managing workforce risks

HRCH has a five-year workforce strategy in place (2020-2024), which was co-developed with
clinical and corporate staff and agreed by the board

L]

the sirategy and its associated action plans and workforce risks are monitored and assured
through the board's Workforce and Education Committee (WEC), which is a sub-committee
of the board. The WEC receives the workforce performance report that uses local and
national metrics and triangulates with benchmark data and quaiity and financial data



- the workforce planning methodology entails firstly understanding the trust strategy and how
to best serve our vision that people will live healthier lives through high-quality, effective
and co-ordinated care. Then follows a review of where the trust is and what gaps in skills
and training are required to deliver that vision (such as digital and mobile technology and
muiti-agency transformation and engagement skills), followed by planning of the workforce
required to meet the future strategy and activity assumptions in the most efficient way. The
planning phase includes consideration of the needs of the local poputation in terms of
workforce diversity, workforce supply (greater use of apprenticeships, ‘retire and return’
options and the development of new roles) and service transformation in line with the NHS
Long Term Plan (greater use of on-line consultations etc)

Managing quality risk

The clinical govemance agenda is led by the Director of Nursing and Non-Medical
Professionals and the Medica! Director. Monitoring arrangements are delivered through a
structure of committees, supporting clear responsibilities and accountabilities from board to
front line delivery. The Quality Governance Committee (QGC) is 2 committee of the board,
which affords scrutiny and monitoring of the quality agenda.

the Quality and Safety Committee (QSC) reports o the QGC. The Director of Nursing and
Non-Medical Professionals chairs this committee; membership of the QSC's committees
and working groups ensures senior leadership as well as frontline engagement with the
governance agenda )

the trust's clinical governance structure ensures there are robust systems in place for key
govemnance and performance issues to be escalated from frontline services to the board
and gives assurance of clinical quality. It gives a strong focus on service improvement and
ensures high standards of delivery are maintained

« the board and the relevant committees use a performance scorecard which has been
developed to include a suite of quality indicators at trust and service level aligned to each
of the Care Quality Commission’s five domains of quality. Services are expected to provide
exception reporis for any indicators which are not performing as agreed and managers are
held to account against action plans to ensure trajectories are maintained. This approach
enables centralised reporting of performance and quality data and improved trianguiation of
infarmation
the trust has rolled out the Integrated Quality Assurance Dashboard. The dashboard
highlights the trust's performance in a range of designated areas of quality. It visualises
performance data and critical quality parameters in a single dashboard to simplify quality
management analysis and reporting.

« the trust’s quality improvement strategy is encapsulated in the Joumey to Outstanding
(J20) programme. The J20 programme is a structured quality improvement plan with
quality improvement plans in all services to monitor and demonstrate compliance with the
CQC's fundamental standards and against each of the CQC's domains and Key Lines of
Enquiry (KLOE)



Risk management process

The trust defines risk management as a process to identify factors which may possibly
prevent us from providing an excellent, safe, efficient and effective place of work to deliver
patient care and for staff to work. Risk management includes the process of identifying
hazards, risk assessment, formulating a response, risk reporting and risk review. Risk
management is as much about exploiting new business opportunities and innovation as
mitigating risk.

Risk management process

; *Using Trust objectives, incidents, complaints, claims, patient feedback, safety inspactions etc
ftol *ldentify the risk; what is or could cause harm and stop you achieving your objectives

sHow significant is the risk?
*Who and what are at risk, estimate of consequence, assess the risk scoring, document your assessment

sHow is risk managed?

»Key outputs of risk register are reported to relevant committee/groups depending on score

5 \A{I *All risk owners continually monitor and review risks

Trust Risk Registers (TRR) (incl. Board Assurance Framework (BAF))

Comprise of the local risk registers, the trust risk register as well as the board assurance
framework (BAF), which seek to present an overview of the main risks facing the organisation.
The local risk registers are reviewed, updated and monitored regularly by the relevant
directorate and, if necessary, a risk can be escatated onto the trust risk register, which is
monitored each quarter. The TRR is monitored monthly by the directorate management
meeting (DMT), every 4-6 weeks at the Quality and Safety Committee and quarterly by the
Quality Governance and the Audit and Risk Committees.

The BAF provides the trust with a simple but comprehensive method for effective and focused
management of the principal strategic risks to the delivery of the trust’s business. It identifies the
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controls and assurances in place to mitigate these risks, the gaps or weaknesses in controls
and assurances, and actions required to further strengthen these mechanisms. The system of
internal control is designed to manage risks to a reasonable level and not to eliminate all risk.
The trust has a risk appetite which defines the risk tolerance with regards to its strategic
objectives. These range of a low risk appetite for patient safety and quality to a high risk
appetite for leaming and development.

The BAF is monitored by each Executive Director who assess the status of their risk entry by
having oversight of the Trust Risk Register. The BAF is monitored each month by the Executive
Committee and quarterly by the Audit and Risk Committee on behalf of the trust board.

An annual advisory review on the BAF and Risk Management was carried out by RSM Risk
Assurance Services LLP (who also provide our intemal audit advice) it concluded the trust
controls are robust and effectively designed. RSM confirmed the BAF is discussed at
relevant committee meetings to ensure that risks included are up to date with regards to
controls and assurances; and any progress against actions is also monitored

Incident reporting

The trust follows the National Patient Safety Agency viewpoint “Trusts that report incidents
regularly suggest a stronger organisational culture of safety. They take all incidents seriously
and link reporting with learning.” All services and staff are trained to use the Datix system which
facilitates linking of information across incident reporting, complaints and risk management.

A monthly report of incidents and serious incidents is reported to the Quality and Safety
Committee where it is discussed and analysed for themes and trends and assurance is sought
that risk is being effectively managed across the trust.

The trust is a leaming organisation and uses all opportunities to leam from when things go
wrong and {o share that leaming. It has embraced a ‘being open' approach and ‘duty of
candour'. Organisational and service level learning is identified through incidents, audit and
patient feedback and it reports lessons leamed and monitors that any required changes in
practice are implemented. ’ ;

The trust promotes a culture of ‘shared learning’ that is embedded throughout the services and
has a number of processes to enable this which includes a monthly ‘Learn and Share'
newsletter and reflective leaming panels to ensure that staff are involved in the discussion and
agreement of actions. This promotes clinical ownership, mitigates the risk of a Serious Incident
reoccurring and promotes shared leaming.

Board and Committee oversight and assurance

The board of directors leads on integrated govemance and delegates key duties and functions
to its sub-committees. In addition, the board reserves certain decision-making powers
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including decisions on strategy and budgets. The diagram below gives an overview of the
trust's integrated govemance structure

Corporate governance framework

There are five key sub-committees with responsibility for receiving information on risk
management within the structure that provide assurance to the board of directors. The
Executive Committee reports directly to the board although not a board sub-committee.

There are a range of mechanisms available to these committees to gain assurance that systems
are robust and effective. These include utilising internal and external audit, peer review,
management reporting and clinical audit.

Committee structures

Each Committee Chair works within a framework which ensures a consistent approach across
all committees, including terms of reference, upward reporting and review of effectiveness.

The Board of Directors

Membership of the board of directors is currently made up of the trust chairman,
five independent, Non-Executive Directors, and eight Executive Directors of which
six are voting members of the board, two with a share of one vote. The key roles
and responsibilities of the board are as follows:

to set and oversee the strategic direction of the trust
review and appraisal of financial and operational performance

+ to review areas of assurance and concemns as detailed in the chair's assurance reports
from its board committees

- to discharge its duties of regulation and control and meet statutory obligations
to ensure the trust continues to deliver high quality patient care, with quality and safety as
its primary focus, receiving and reviewing quality and patient safety reports and also a
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chair's report from the key board committee which deals with patient quality and safety —
the Quality Governance Commitiee

+ to receive reports from the Audit and Risk Committee, which include the BAF and progress
against the delivery of strategic objectives, the annual interal auditor's report and external
auditor’s report and to take decisions, as appropriate

- to agree the trust's annual budget and plan and submissions to NHS Improvement

+ to approve the annual report and annual accounts

« to certify the requirements of NHS provider licence conditions is reviewed annually and the
self-declaration is uploaded onto the website. This can be found on the ‘Provider licence
tab hitps://www.hrch.nhs.uk/about-us/trust-board-and-leadership/board-meetings

The board of directors meets in public bi-monthly and a breakdown of attendance for the
board's 2019/20 part | meetings is shown below:

Job Title and Name Attendance
Chairman, Sian Bates 6of6
Non-Executive Director, Ginny Colwell 6ofb
Non-Executive Director, Phil Hall 50f6
Non-Executive Director, Joanne Hay 6 of 6
Non-Executive Director, Judith Rutherford 6of6
Non-Executive Director, Bindesh Shah 6of6
Chief Executive, Patricia Wright (to 29 Novemnber 2020) 40of4
Interim Chief Executive, David Hawkins (from 30 November 2020) 20f2
Director of Finance and Corporate Services, David Hawkins (to 29 40of4
November 2020)

Interim Director of Finance, Bridget Welch (from 30 November 2020) | 2 of 2
Director of Clinical Services, Stephen Hall (shared vote) 6of 6
Director of Clinical Services, Anne Stratton (shared vote) 6of6
Director and Nursing and Non-Medical Professionals, Donna Lamb 1 of 1
(to 31 May 2020)

Director of Nursing and Non-Medical Professionals, Sarah Shingler (1 [ 5 of 5
June 2020)

Director of Strategy and Transformation, Monique Carayal (non- 50f5
voting) (to 12 March 2021)

Director of Workforce, Alison Heeralall (non-voting) 6of6
Medical Director, John Omany 6 of 6

At the end of March 2020 the government declared the COVID-19 pandemic. The NHS was under a
structure of command and control requiring trusts to suspend certain functions including sub-
committees. The trust continued to hold some committees to ensure that the quality and sustainability
of the trust was closely monitored. The board has continued to meet during this time with presentation
of a COVID-19 report which included, finance papers, the board scorecard, risk management and
workforce data.



Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee is a formal committee of the board and is accountable to the
board for reviewing the establishment and maintenance of an effective system of integrated
govemnance, risk management and internal control, across the trust's activities both clinical and
non-clinical, that supports the achievement of the trust's objectives. The committee continued
to meet in a shortened form throughout the pandemic. It meets at least five meetings per year

Quality Governance Committee

The Quality Governance Committee (QGC) is a formal committee of the board which focuses
on ensuring robust structures and processes are in place for governing the quality and clinical
services and ensuring services are safe. The committee's role is to provide assurance on
clinical quality, including clinical effectiveness, patient safety and patient experience.

it supports the board with an integrated approach lo risk, control and govemnance, monitoring
performance against quarterly quality indicators, the quality accounts and all aspects of the
three domains of quality namely - patient safety, clinical effectiveness and patient experience.
The committee continued to meet in a shortened form throughout the pandemic to ensure the
trust's focus on quality was maintained. It meets at least six times per year

Finance and Performance Committee

The Finance and Performance Committee reviews financial and non-financial performance
across the trust, reporting to the board. [t also has lead oversight for risks to the delivery of
trust's sustainability strategic priority, along with delivery of the trust's strategies for estates
and information management and technology. The committee was stood down at the start of
the pandemic. The board received financial performance reports as part of the COVID-19
update. The committee restarted in September 2020. It is scheduled to meet at least four
times per year.

Workforce and Education Committee

The Workforce and Education Committee is responsible for providing assurance that there are
processes and plans in place to agree and achieve the workforce objectives. The committee
oversees the trust's staff engagement and recruitment and retention strategic priorities that
enables the trust to compete successfully for recruits in areas where there is a shortage of
supply. It reviews performance against the delivery of key workforce plans which also cover
staff engagement actions taken following the outcome of the annual NHS staff survey. The
committee was stood down at the start of the pandemic and has kept up to date via informal
meetings. The monthly COVID-19 update presented to the board included workforce data.
The committee restarted in September 2020 and will continue with a light-touch approach. The

committee is scheduled to meel four times each year.
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee has delegated responsibility to oversee the effective operational
management of the trust. The committee meets monthly to review and continued throughout
the pandemic:

the development and implementation of business pians, policies, procedures and budgets
operating and financial performance

the prioritisation and allocation of investment and resources within limits set down by
standing financial instructions

the effective mitigation of risks to the delivery of the trust's strategic priorities

Nominations and Remuneration Committee

The Nominations and Remuneration Committee is responsible for determining the pay and
contractual arrangements for Executive Directors and for monitoring and evaluating their
performance and ensuring appropriale succession plans are in place for board members. It is
also responsible for ensuring that Directors meet the Fit and Proper Person Test as required
by the Health and Social Care Act 2008, (Regulated Activities), Regulations 2014.

Charitable Funds' Committee

The Charitable Funds’ Committee has been established by the board to make and monitor
arrangements for the control and management of the trust's charitable fund. Key duties of the
Committee are to apply the charitable funds in accordance with the charity's governing
documents. The committee ensures that appropriate policies and procedures are in place to
support the objects of the charity and ensures that donated funds and assets are properly
spent, managed, invested and accounted for in line with guidance from the Charity
Commission and in compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

The trust's charitable funds saw an increase in funding with the trust joining NHS Charities
Tagether which was responsible for administering the money raised by Sir Tom.

Richmond Community Healthcare in Partnership Committee (RCHiP)

RCHIP is a joint committee set up with the Richmond GP Alliance (RGPA) to oversee progress
with delivery of the Qutcome-Based Commissioning contract. RCHIP is a committee of both
the trust's and RGPA's boards.

Annual committee effectiveness reviews

In line with good govemance practice and, as an integral part of being a well-led organisation,
each board committee annually reviews its performance against its specific terms of reference
and objectives. Each committee also comments on its oversight of performance against the
delivery of the key work plans for the year. This information is then presented to the trust board
with any revisions o the terms of reference and the forthcoming year's work plan. The trust
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board also considers the whole of its committee structure annually to ensure that it is
delivering its requirements.

Equality analysis

Equality analyses (formerly known as equality impact assessments) are integrated into core
business as a requirement for all trust decisions contained in its strategies, policies,
procedures and protocols. The trust has systems in place lo ensure that it collects, analyses
and acts on information relating to the legislation on equality and diversity of its workforce and
the population it serves. Control measures are in place to ensure that all the organisation’s
obligations under quality, diversity and human rights legislation are complied with. Equality and
diversily is overseen by the trust Equality, Diversity and Inclusion commitiee chaired by the
Director of Workforce with a NED and patient executive lead. Assurance is reported via the
trust executive committee,

Care Quality Commission registration
'_I'he trust is fully compliant with the registration requirements of the Care Quality Commissian.
NHS Pension Scheme

As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS Pension Scheme, control
measures are in place to ensure all employer obligations contained within the Scheme
regulations are complied with. This includes ensuring that deductions from salary, employer's
conftributions and payments into the Scheme are in accordance with the Scheme rules, and
that member Pension Scheme records are accurately updated in accordance with the
timescales detailed in the Regulations.

Carbon reduction

The trust has undertaken risk assessments, and carbon reduction delivery plans are in place in
accordance with emergency preparedness and civil contingency requirements, based on UK
Climate Projections 2018 (UKCP18) to ensure that obligations under the Climate Change Act
and the Adaptation Reporting requirements are complied with.

Review of economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources

The trust has in place a range of processes which help to ensure that resources are used
economically, efficiently and effectively. These inciude:

monthly reporting of financial and non-financial performance to the board of directors and
the Finance and Performance Committee of the board

monthly Executive Performance review meetings where directorates are held to account for
financial and non-financial perfformance

the production of annual reference costs, including comparisons with national reference
costs

continuous benchmarking of costs and key performance indicators (KPls) against
community trusts and other providers

12



- standing financial instructions, standing orders and treasury management policy
a budget holder's manual which sets out managers' responsibilities in relation to managing
budgets
policies covering the declaration of conflicts of interest, anti-fraud and anti-bribery
measures, and also standards of business conduct
reports by RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP as part of the annual intemal audit work plan
on control mechanisms which may need reviewing

- the Head of intemal Audit's draft and final opinions being praesented to the Audit and Risk
Committee
external audit of our accounts by KPMG LLP who also provide an independent view of the
trust’s effective and efficient use of resources, particularly against value for money
considerations
good performance under NHS Improvement'’s Single Oversight Framework for NHS
providers

Information governance and cyber security

Information governance (IG) supports our statutory duty to safeguard patients' information and
keep it confidential but available. It assures us and patients that personal information is dealt
with legally, securely, efficiently and effectively. This has been a crucial element to support
the new ways of working throughout the pandemic.

Due to our rigorous |G framework and data prolection by design approach, we have been able
to work across our boundaries, sharing key data with relevant and appropriate staff in partner
organisations to help combat the virus. For example, the Trust Data Protection Officer has
worked closely with IG colleagues, as part of a number of sector wide working groups to
ensure that the trust can join the Connecting your Care project. This means that Richmond
services have access to relevant and appropriate data from key heaith and care organisations
at point of treatment.

Effective data security guidance has also enabled staff to work remotely using new software
and business tools, while ensuring the security of patient data.

Throughout 2020, we still marked ourselves against the NHS Digital's annual Data Security
and Protection Toolkit audit. The toolkit provides a benchmark for the trust against current
data protection legislation and related regulations, giving either a pass or fail mark.

We did submit a fully compliant assessment in March 2020, however due to the Covid
pandemic, the usual timetable for the toolkit submission was extended from March 2020 to
September 2020. Therefore, the 20/21 baseline audit was submitted at the end of February
2021. The full submission is due at the end of June 2021.

13



We continue to maintain high standards of information govemanee through a variety of
measures and actions, including:

» continued review of personal dala flows to guarantee the trust operates in line with General
Data Protection Regulations (GDPR), especially with regards to temporary Covid data
processing, ensuring a register all activities is maintained and reviewed

« review of all GDPR rights requests, including the right of access, to ensure requests are
answered within the legislated timeframe, to avoid breaching GDPR and incurring large
fines from the ICO

» continuing review and revision of the trust privacy notice, giving assurance that the trust is
transparent with all data processing, this is of particular importance during the pandemic

» completion of data protection impact assessment for all new research projects, services,
systems and applications which involve the use of personal data

= an audit of our compliance against a small sample of standards from the NHS Digital toolkit
by our internal audit

» continuing review of policies and staff guidance

« helping colleagues to complete information govermnance and security e-leaming training

+ attending team meetings to ensure data protection and security is a key element of all work
and staff take responsibility for data in their teams

Annual Quality Account

In line with the Health Act 2009 and the National Health Service (Quality Accounts)
Regulations 2010 (as amended) the trust prepares an annual Quality Account which is signed
off by the trust board prior to it being shared with commissioners, Healthwatch and the local
authority scrutiny committees.

The Quality Account is a summary of performance in the last year in relation to quality

priorities and national requirements. The Aceount is not required to be audited however an
Internal process of scrutinising the data to ensure it is consistent with the trust performance
scorecard is used. The template used for the quality account meets statutory requirements and
the trust reviews new guidance annually.

Data quality

General data quality is audited annually and the trust has undertaken actions to improve the
quality of its electronic patient record through better use of templates and the automation of
data where appropriate. The trust assures the quality and accuracy of elective waiting time
data through both its Business Intelligence reporting and the Patient Tracking List (PTL) that is
distributed to, and discussed by, operational leads. Waiting times are individually monitored by
both service fines and urgency. Alongside external data quality audits, data capture is
continually reviewed by the applications team and any training requirements are subsequently
assessed with resource then appropriately allocated.



Review of effectiveness

As Accountable Officer, | have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal control. My review of the effectiveness of the system of intemal contro! is informed by
the work of the intenal auditors, clinical audit and the Executive managers and clinical leads
within the NHS trust who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the
internal control framework. | have drawn on the information provided in this annual report and
other performance information available to me. My review is also informed by comments made
by the external auditors in their management letter and other reports. | have been advised on
the implications of the result of my review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control
by the board, the Audit and Risk Committee and Quality Governance Committee and plans to
address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system are in place.

The board ensures the effectiveness of the system of intemal control through clear
accountability arrangements.

An annual “Head of Intemal Audit Opinien” based on the work and audit assessments
undertaken during the year for 2020-21 was issued and provided assurance that the
organisation has an adequate and effective framework for risk management, governance and
internal control.

The Head of Internal Audit's Opinion is achieved through a risk-based plan of work included
undertaking specifically requested management reviews with the aim of strengthening current
practices - The Integrated Care Systems, providing substantial assurance; and The Board
Assurance Framework and Risk Management, Freedom to Speak Up, Financial Govemnance,
Equality and Diversity (draft) and Patient Experience audits all provided reasonable assurance.
Controls were found to have been adequality designed and generally well applied to mitigate
associated risks to the Trust. Internal audit has provided recommendations to address and
strengthen processes in line with current sequirements.

| am confident that the intemal audit reports underiaken were a true reflection of HRCH's
position and that the updaied action plans scrutinised at the Quality Governance Committee
and Audit and Risk Committee reflect clear and concise progress in all areas

Conclusion
I confirm that no significant internal control issues have been identified.

Interim Chief Executive Date: 10 June 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
HOUNSLOW AND RICHMOND COMMUNITY HEALTHCARE NHS TRUST

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion

We have audited the financial stalements of Hounslow and Richmond Community Healthcare
NHS Trust (“the Trust®) for the year ended 31 March 2021 which comprise the Trust Slatement
of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial Position, Statemenl of Changes in
Taxpayers Equity and Statement of Cash Flows, and the related notes, including the accounting
policies in note one

In our opinion the financial statements:

* give a true and fair view of the siate of the Trust's affairs as at 31 March 2029 and of the
Trust's income and expenditure for the year then ended; and

s have been properly prepared in accordance with the accounling policies directed by the
Secretary of State with the consent of the Treasury as being relevant to NHS Trusts in
England and included in the Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting
Manual 2020/21,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with intemational Standards on Auditing (UK) {*iSAs
{UK)') and applicable law. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilied our
ethical respansibilities under, and are independent of the Trusl in accordance with, UK elhical
requiréments including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion.

Golng concem .

The Directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concem basis as they have
not been informed by the relevant national body of the inlention to dissolve the Trust without
the transfer of its services to another public sector entity. Thay have also concluded thal there
are no material uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue
as a going concern for at least a year from the dale of approval of the financial statements {"the
golng concern period®).

In our evaluation of the Direclors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Trust's
business model and analysed how those risks might affect the Trust's financial resources or
ability to conlinue operations over the going concern period.

Qur conclusions based on this work:

» we consider that the Directors’ use of the gaing concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate; and

= we have not idenlified, and concur with the Directors' assessment thal there Is nat, a
material uncertainty related to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may
cast significant doubt on the Trust's ability to conlinue as a going concern for the going
concern period.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may
resull in oulcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they
were made, the absence of reference {o a material uncertainty in this auditor's report is not a
guarantee that the Trust will continue in operation.



Fraud and breaches of faws and regulations - ability to detact
identifying and responding lo risks of malerial misstatement dus fo fraud

To identify risks of material misslatement due to fraud (*fraud risks") we assessed events or
conditions that could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an
opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk assessment procedures included:

» Enquiring of management, the Audit Committee and intemal audit as to the Trust's high-
level policies and procedures to prevent and detect fraud as well as whether they have
knowledge of any actual, suspecled or alleged fraud.

» Reading Board and Audit Committee minutes.
» Using analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships.
» Reviewing the Trust's accounting policies.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any
indications of fraud throughout the audit.

As required by auditing standards, we performed procedures to address the risk of
management override of controls and the risk of fraudulent revenue recognition, in particular
NHS and non-NHS revenue Is recorded in the wrong period and the risk that Trust
management may be in a position lo make inappropriate accounting entries.

In line with the guidance set out in Practice Note 10 Audit of Financial Statements of Public
Sector Bodies in the United Kingdom we also recognised a fraud risk related to expenditure
recognition, particularly in relation to year-end accruals. .

We did not identify any additional fraud risks in response to the risk that non-pay expenditure
may be manipulated in order to report that the control total has been met through maniputating
accruals and prepayments at the end of the year to defer expenditure o the following year.

In determining the audit procedures, we took into account the results of our evaluation and
testing of the operating effectiveness of some of Trust-wide fraud risk management conlrols.

We also performed procedures including:

+ |dentifying journal enlries and other adjustments to test based on risk criteria and
comparing the identified entries to supporting documentation. These included duplicate
journals; journals posted and approved by the same user; the last five journals posted in
the pericd; and journals with unusual accounts combination to cash and revenue.

* Assessing significant estimates for bias.

» Assessing the completeness of disclosed related party transaclions and verifying they had
been accuralely recorded within the financial statements.

+ Agreeing a sample of year end accruals to relevant supporting documents, including actual
invoices received post year end, where applicable,

+ Performing cut-off tesling of income and expenditure in the pericd before ard after 31 March
2021 1o determining whether amounts have been recorded in the correct period.

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstalement due (o non-compliance with faws
and regulalions

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected lo have a
material effect on the financial statements from our general sector experience and through
discussion wilh the directors and other management (as required by auditing standards), and
discussed with the directors and other management the policies and procedures regarding
compliance with laws and regulations.



As the Trust is regulated, our assessment of risks involved gaining an understanding of the
control environment including the entity's procedures for complying with regulatory
requirements.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to
any indications of non-compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies
considerably.

The Trust s subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including
financial reporting legislation. Under paragraph 2(1) of Schedule 5 $o the National Health
Service Act 2006 the Trust must ensure hat its revenue is not less than sufficient, laking one
financial year with another, to meet outgoings properly chargeable to revenue account (the
breakeven duty). In reporting on compliance with the breakeven duly the Trust is required to
comply with the Department of Health and Social Care’s ‘Guidance on Breakeven Duty and
Provisions’, We assessed the extent of compliance with these laws and regulations as part of
our procedures on the related financial statement items.

Whilst the Trust is subject to many other laws and regulations, we did not identify any others
where the consequences of nan-compliance aione could have a materiat eflect on amounts or
disclosures in the financial statements.

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inheren{ limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have
detected some material misstaternents in the financial statements, even though we have
properly planned and performed our audit in accordance with auditing standards. For example,
the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and
transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited
pracedures required by auditing standards would identify it.

In addition, as with any audil, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal controls. Our audit procedures are designed to delect malterial misstatement. We are
not responsible for preventing non-compliance or fraud and cannot be expected to detect non-
compliance with all laws and regulations.

Other information in the Annual Report

The Accountable Officer is responsible for the other information presented in the Annual Report
together with the financial stalements. Our opinion en the financial statements does not cover
the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except as
explicitly stated below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on
our financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or
inconsistent with the financiat statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that wark:

e we have nol identified material misstatements in the other information; and

» in our opinion the other information Included in the Annual Report for the financial year is
consistent with the financial stalements,

Annual Governance Statement

We are required to report to you if the Annual Governance Statement has not been prepared
in accordance with the requirements of the Departiment of Health and Social Care Group
Accounting Manual 2020/21. We have nothing to report in this respect.

Remuneration and Staff Report



In our opinion the parts of the Remuneration and Staff Report subject to audit have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Department of Health and Social Care Group
Accounting Manual 2020/21.

Directors’ and Accauntable Officer’s responsibilities

As explained more fully in the statement set out on page 2, the directors are respansible for the
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view. They are also responsible for
such internal control as they determine is necessary {o enable the preparation of financial
statlements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing
the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matiers related to
going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they have been
informed by the relevant nalional body of the intention to dissolve the Trust without the transfer
of its services to another public sector enlity. As explained more fully in the statement of the
Chief Executive's responsibilities, as the Accounlable Officer of the Trust, on Page 1 the
Accountable Officer is responsible for ensuring that annual statutory accounts are prepared in
a format directed by the Secretary of Slate.

Auditor's respansibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due fo fraud or error, and io issue our
opinion in an auditor's report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs {UK) will atways detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstalements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected o influence the
economic decisions of users laken on the basis of the financial statemenis.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is pravided on the FRC's website at

www.frc.org.uk/audilgrsresponsibilities.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY MATTERS

Report on the Trust's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness
in its use of resources

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report if we identify any significant
weaknesses in the arrangements that have been made by the Trust to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

We have nothing to report in this respect.

Respective responsibilities in respect of our review of arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources

As explained in the slatement set out on page 1, the Chief Executive, as the Accountable
Officer, is responsible for ensuring that value for money is achieved from the resources
available to the Trust. We are required under section 21(3)(c), as amended by schedule 13
paragraph 10(a), of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to be satisfied that the Trust
has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use
of resources.

We are not required o consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Trust's
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources are
operating effectively.

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice and related
statutory guidance having regard to whether the Trust had proper arrangements in place to
ensure financial sustainability, proper govemance and to use information aboul costs and
performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services. Based on our risk
assessment, we underlook such work as we considered necessary.



Statutory reporting matters

We are required by Schedule 2 to the Code of Audit Practice issued by the Comptroller and
Auditor General ('the Code of Audit Practice'} to report to you if:

« we refer a matter to the Secrelary of State under section 30 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 because we have reason to believe that the Trust, or an officer of
the Trust, is about to make, or has made, a decision which invalves or would involve the
body incurting unfawful expendilure, or is about to take, or has begun to take a course of
action which, if followed o its conclusion, would be unlawful and likely to cause a loss or
deficiency; or

s we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014; or

= we make a written recommendation to the Trust under section 24 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014,

We have nothing ta report in these respects.

THE PURPOSE OF OUR AUDIT WORK AND TO WHOM WE OWE OUR
RESPONSIBILITIES

This report is made solely lo the Board of Directors of Hounslow and Richmond Community
Healthcare NHS Trust, as a bady, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014, Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might stale lo the
Board of the Trust, as a body, those malters we are required 1o state to them in an auditor's
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Board of the Trust, as a body, for our audit work,
for this report or for the opinions we have formed.

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION OF THE AUDIT

We certify that we have compieled the audit of the accounts of Hounslow and Richmond
Community NHS Trust for the year ended 31 March 2021 in accordance with the requirements
of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice.

Theend

Joanne Lees

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP
Charferad Accountanis

15 Canada Square

London

E14 5GL

15 June 2021



Statement of Comprehensive income

Operaling income from palient care activilies
Other operating income
Operaling expenses
Operating surplus/{deficit) from continuing operations

Finance income
PDC dividends payable
Net finance cosis

Surplus / {deflcit) for the year from continuing operations

Surplys / {(deficit) on discontinued operalions and the gain / {loss) on

disposal of disconlinued operations
Surplus / (deficit) for the year

Other camprehensive income

Will not be reclassified to income and axpenditure:
Impairments
Revzlualions

Total comprehensive income { (expense) for the period

Adjustad financial performance (control total basis):
Surplus / (deficit) for the pericd
Remove I&E impact of capital grants and donations

Remove net impact of inventaories received from DHSC group bodies for

COVID response
Adjusted financial parformance surplus / {deficit)
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2020/21 2019/20

Note £000 £000
3 79,871 74,341
4 5,834 3,325

5.8 (85,004) {75.470)
701 2,196

1 6 159

(691) (691)

{685) (532)

16 1,664

15 . -
16 1,664

7 (358) .
18 L 1,320
{342) 2,984

16 1,664

60 57

76 1,724




Statement of Financial Position

Note
Non-current assets
Intangible assels 15
Property, plant and equipmeni 16
Total non-current assets
Current assets
Inventories 23
Receivables 24
Other investments / financial assets 21
Other assels 25
Non-current assels for sale and assets in disposal groups 26.1
Cash and cash eguivalents 27
Total current assets
Current liabilitles
Trade and other payables 28
Provisions 33
Other liabilities 29
Liabifities in disposal groups 26.2
Totat current liabilities
Totat assets less current liabllities
Non-current labilitles
Provisions 33
Other liabilities 29

Total non-current liabllities
Total assets employed

Financed by
Public dividend capital
Revaluation reserve
Income and expenditure reserve
Total taxpayers' equity

The notes on pages 27 to 83 form parl of these accounts,

Name
Position Interim Chiaf Execulive
Date 10 June 2021

22

31 March 31 March
2021 2020
£000 £000

28.342 28,264
28,342 28,264
6,497 7372
33,959 24,460
40,456 31,832
(20,305) {13,008)
{1,518) (53)
{21,823) {13,061)
46,975 47,035
(986) (704)
(986) {704)
45,989 46,331
11.615 11,973
34,374 34,358
45,989 46,334
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Information on reserves

Public dividand capital

Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of assets over liabilities at the
time of establishment of the predecesser NHS organisation. Additional PDC may also be issued to trusis by the
Department of Health and Social Care. A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the trust, is payabie to the
Depariment of Heglth as the public dividend capital dividend.

Ravaluation reserve

Increases in asset values arising from revaluations are recognised in tha revaluation reserve, except whers, and to the
extent that, they reverse impairments previously recognised in operaling expenses, in which case they are recognised in
operating income. Subsequent downward movemenls in assel valualions are charged to the revaluation reserve to the
extent that a previous gain was recognised uniess the downward movement represents a clear consumplion of economic
benefit or a reduction in service potential.

Financlal assets reserve

This reserve comprises changes in the fair value of financial assets measured al fair value through other comprehensive
income. When these instruments are derecognised, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised as other
comprehensive income or expendilure are recycled to income or expenditure, unless the assels are equity inslruments
measured at falr vatus through other comprehensive income as a resull of imevocable eleclion at racognitian.

Merger reserve
This reserve reflects balances formed on merger of NHS bodies.

incoma and expenditure reserve
The balance of this reserve is the accumulated surpluses and deficits of the trust.
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Statement of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities
Operating surplus / (deficit)
Non-cash Income and expense:
Depreciation and amortisation
Income recognised in respect of capital donations
{Increase) / decrease in receivables and other assels
{Increase) / decrease In inventories
Increase / {decrease) in payables and other liabilities
Increase / (decrease) in provisions
Net cash flows from / {used in) operating activities
Cash flows from Investing activities
interest received
Purchase of intangible assels
Purchase of PPE and investment property
Sales of PPE and investment properly
Receipt of cash donalions to purchase assels
Net cash flows from 7 (used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
PDC dividend {paid) / refunded
Net cash flows from / {used in) financing activities
Increase / {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April - brought forward

Pricr period adjustments
Cash and cash aquivalents at 1 April - restated

Cash and cash equivalents transferred under absorption accounling

Unrealised gains / (losses) on foreign exchange
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March
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Nota

6.1

271

2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000
701 2,196
1,786 1,899
875 (871)
8,936 1,589
282 (3)
12,580 4,810
6 159
(2,386) (1.624)
(2,390) (1,485)
{691) {757)
(691) (757)
9,498 2,588
24,460 21,872
24,460 21,872
33,959 24,460




Notes to the Accounts
Nota 1 Accounting pelicies and other information

Nota 1.1 Basis of preparation

The Depariment of Health and Social Care has directed that the financial stalements of the Trust shall mael the
actounting requirements of the Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual (GAM), which shall be
agreed with HM Treasury. Consequently, the following financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
GAM 2020/21 issued by the Depastment of Health and Social Care. The accounting policies contained in the GAM
follow Intemational Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to the NHS, as
determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board. Where the GAM permits a
choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy thal is judged to be most appropriate to the parlicular circumsiances
of the Trust for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selecled. The parlicular policies adopted are
described below. These have been applied consislently in dealing with items considered malerial in relation lo the
accounts.

Accounting convention

These accounts have been prepared under the histarical cosl convention modified to account for the revaluation of
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories and certain financiat assets and financial liabilittes.

Note 1.2 Golng concern

These accounis have been prepared on a going concem basis. The financial reporting framework applicable to NHS
bodies, derived from the HM Treasury Financial Reporting Manual, defines that the anticipated continued pravision of
the entity's services in the public sector is normally sufficient evidence of going concem. The directors have a
reasonable expectation that this will continue to be the case. :

HRCH continues to have tumover growth from ona financial year to the next. A five-year Outcome Based Contract with
Richmond CCG signed in 2018 is not being extended but replaced with a lead provider caniract for tha provision of
communtty services across Richmond and Kingston, with Your Healthcare Community Interest Company operaling as a
sub-contracting partner. A financial agreement is in place with Hounslow CCG for 2021-22 whila all commissioning
arrangements are suspended due to Ihe COVID-19 pandemic. Work has progressed on lhe integrated work within
Hounslow with a number of other NHS providers and partners, including an HRCH executive director taking on the role
of Borough Director, that supports financial sustainability over the medium-ierm horizon. The natianal directive and the
local system plans are for Out of Hospital (OOH) care, rapid response ieams and discharge hubs, where needs have
increased over the last 12 months as an outcome from the COVID-18 pandemic, and the focus an community services
within the NHS Long Term pian supports a drive for activity to mave from the acute sector to the communily and

primary care sector. Continued collaborative work with one lncal GP alliance and integrated working amrangements with
another also points to a positive future for the trust, as well as the establishment of Primary Care Networks. The going
concem assessmenl Is therefore positive. However, the recenl govemment paper 'fnlegration and Innovation: working
together io improve health and social care for all' brings maore focus on joint working and coflaboration across systems
rather than individual organisational plans, including the commencement of a system contral total regime, This will bring
a new level of uncertainty and challenge to ensure financial stability across the system rather than just at organisationat
level. The fulure delivery of services and financial allocations in the aftarmath of the coronavirus pandemic is still being
fully worked ihrough, with block payment arangements due for the first six months of the financial year and then
potentially reverting back to a more traditional conlracting and commissioning picture in the latter half,

Note 1.3 interests In other entities

Thee are no interests in other entilies
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Nota 1.4 Revenue from contracts with customers

Where income Is derived from coniracts with customers, It is accounted for under IFRS 15. Tha GAM expands the
definition of a conlract to include legisiation and regulalions which enables an enlity to receive cash or another financial
asset that is nol classified as a tax by the Office of National Statistics (ONS).

Revenua in respec! of goods/services provided is recognised when (or as) performance obligations are satisfied by
transfening promised goods/services to the cusiomer and is measured al the amount of the transaction price allocaled
to those performance obligations. At the year end, the Trust accrues Income relating to performance obligations
salisfied in that year. Where the Trust’s entittement lo consideration for those goods or sesvices is unconditional a
cantract recelvable will be recognised. Where entitlement to consideration is candilional on a further factor other than
the passage of lime, & conlract asset will be recognised. Where consideralion received or receivable relates lo a
performance obligatian that is to be satisfied in a futuce period, the income is deferred and recagnised as a coniract
liability

The Trust racagnises contractual revenue over lime on the basis that cur Commissioners simultaneously receive and
consume the benefits as we provide our services to the community. For contracts which are performance based, the
Trusi recagnises the revenue based on performance obligalions satisifed al a point in time in year. Revenue accruals
are made on the basis of dur lasl pariod's performance, these are submitted for Commissioners's review at year end.

Non-NHS revenue relating lo performance obligation to be satisified in future period(s) are deferred and recognised as
curreni and non-current centractual iiabikity.

Revenue from NHS contracts

The accounting policies for revenue recognition and the application of IFRS 15 are consislently applied. The coniracting
arangements in the NHS changed between 2019/20 and 2020121 affecting the application of the accounting policy
under IFRS 15. This difference in application is explained below.

2020/21

The main source of income for the Trust is contracts with commissioners for health care services. In 2020721, the
majority of the trust's Income from NHS commissioners was In the form of block contract amangements. During the first
half of the year the trust received block funding from ils commissioners. For the second half of the year, block contract
arrangements were agreed at a ICS/STP leved. The related performance abligation is the delivery of healthcare and
related services during the period, with the trust's entillement to consideration not varying based on the levels of aclivity
performed.

The Trust has received additional income outside of the black and system envelopes to reimburse specific costs
incurred and other income lop-ups o support the delivery of services. Reimbursement and top-up income is accounted
for as variable consideration.

Comparative period (2018/20)

In the comparative period (2019/20), the trus!'s contracts with NHS commissioners included thase where the trust's
entittement to income varied according lo services delivered. A performance obligation relating to delivery of a spell of
health care was generally satisfied over time as heallhcare was received and consumed simullaneously by ihe
customer as the Trust performed it. The customer In such a contract was the commissioner, but the cuslomer benefited
as services were provided {0 their patient. Even where a contract could be broken down into separate performance
obligalions, healthcare generally aligned with paragraph 22(b) of the Standard entailing a delivery of a series of goods
or services that were substantiaily the same and had a similar pattem of transfer. At the year end, the Trust accrued
income relating to aclivity delivered in that year, where a patient care spsil was incomplete. This accrual was disclosed
as a contract recelvable as entittement to payment for work completed was usually only dependent on the passage of
lime.

In 2019/20, the Provider Sustainability Fund and Financial Recovery Fund enabled providers to eam incame linked to

the achievement of financial controls and performance largets. Income earned from the funds is accounted for as
variable consideralion.
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For 121

Ravenue from research contracts

Where rasearch cantracts fall under IFRS t5, revenue is recognised as and when performance obligalions are
satisfied. For some coniracts, it is assessed that the revenue project constitules one performance obligation over the
coursa of the multi-year contract. In these cases il is assessed that the Trust's inferim performance does not create an
asset with alternativa use for the Trust, and the Trust has an enfarceable right to payment for the performance
completed to date. It is therafore cansidered that the performance cbligation is satisfied over lime, and the Trust
recognises revenue gach year over the course of the contract. Some research income altematively falls within the
provisions of fAS 20 for govemment granis.

NHS Injury cost recovery schame

The Trust raceives income under the NHS injury cost racavery scheme, designed to reclaim the cost of treating injured
individuals to whom persanal injury compensation has subsequently been pald, for instance by an insurer. The Trusl
recognises the income when performance obligations are satisfied. In practical terms this means that treatment has
been given, it racelves notification from the Depariment of Work and Pension's Compensation Recovery Unit, has

"compleled the NHS2 form and confirmed there are no discrepancies with the treatmenl. The income is measured at the
agreed lariff far the treaiments provided to the injured individual, less an allowance for unsuccessful compensation
claims and doubtful debts in line with IFRS 9 requirements of measuring expecled credit losses over the lifetime of the
assel.

Note 1.5 Other forms of Income

Grants and donations

Government granls are grants from govermment bodies other than income from commissioners or trusts for the .
provision of services. Where a grant is used to fund revenue expenditure it Is taken to the Statement of Comprehensive
Income to malch lhal expenditure. Where the grants is used to fund capital expenditure, it is credited to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income once condilions attached to the grant have been mel. Donatlons are
treated in the same way as governmenl granls.

Apprenticeship servica income

The value of the benefit received when accessing funds from the Govemment's apprenticeship service is recognised as
income at the point of recelpt of the training service, Where these funds are paid directly to an accredited training
provider from the Trust's Digital Apprenticeship Service (DAS) account held by the Department for Education, the
corresponding notional expense is also recognised at the point of recognition for the benefit.

Note 1.6 Expenditura on employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits ”

Salaries, wages and employment-relaled payments such as social security costs and the apprenticeship levy are
recognised in the period in which the service is received from employees. The cost of annual leave entitlement eamed
but nat taken by employeas &t the end of the period Is recognised in the financial statements 1o the extent that
employees are permitted to carry-forward leave inta the following period.
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Pension costs
NHS Pension Scheme

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pansion Schemes. Both schemes are
unfunded, defined benefit schemes that cover NHS employers, general pracices and other bodies, allowed under the
direction of Secretary of Stale for Heallh and Social Care in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed in a way
thal would enable employers lo identify their share of the underiying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the
scheme Is accounted for as though it is a defined contribulion scheme: the cost to the trust is taken as equal to the
employer's pension contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period. The contributions are charged to
operating expenses as and when they become due.

Additional pension liabilities arising from early relirements are not funded by the scheme except where lhe retirement is
due 1o Hi-health. The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged 1o the operaling expenses at the lime
the trust commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the method of payment.

Naote 1.7 Expenditure on other goods and services

Expendilure on goods and services is recognised when, and to the exient thal they have been received, and is
measured at the fair value of those goods and services. Expenditure is recognised in operating expenses except where
il resulls in the creation of a non-current asset such as property, plant and equipment.

Note 1.8 Discontinued operations

Discontinued operations occur where activities eilner cease without transfer lo another enlity, or transfer to an entity
outside of tha boundary of Whole of Govemment Accounis, such as private or voluntary sectors. Such activilies are
accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5. Activities that are transferred to other bodies within the boundary of Whole of
Govemment Accounts are ‘machinery of government changes’ and treated as continuing operations.
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Note 1.9 Property, plant and equipment

Recognition

Property, plant and equipment Is capitalised where:

« it is held for use In delivering services or for administrative purposes

* it Is probable that fulure economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the trust

» it is expected to be used for more than one financial year

» {he cost of the ilem can be measured reflably

« the item has cost of at leas! £5,000, or

« collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have cost of more than £250, where the
assels are functionally interdependent, had broadly simultanecus purchase dates, are anlicipated to have similar
disposal dates and are under single managerial control.

Where a large asset, for example a buliding, includes a number of companents with significantly different asset lives,
eg, plant and equipment, then these camponents are trealed as separale assets and deprecialed over their own useful
lives.

Subsequen! expenditure

Subsequent expenditure relating lo an item of property, ptant and equipment is recognised as an increase in the
camying amount of the asset when it is probable that additional future economic benefits ar service potential deriving
from the cost incurred 1o replace a component of such item will flow to the enterprise and the cost of ihe item can be
determined refiably. Where a component of an assel is replaced, the cosl of the replacement Is capiltalised if it meels
the criteria for recognition above. The carrying amount of the part seplaced is de-recognised. Olher expenditure that
does not generate additional future economic benefits or service polential, such as repairs and maintenance, is
charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which it is incurred.

Measurement
Valuation

Ali property, plant and equipment assets are measured inilially at cost, represenling the costs direcily attributable to
acquiring or consiructing the asset and bringing it to the localion and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operaling in the manner Intendad by management.

Assels are measured subsequently at valuation, Assets which are held for their service potential and are in use (ie
aperational assets used o deliver either front line services or back office functions) are measured at their current value
in existing use. Asseats thal wera most recently held for their service potential but are surplus with no pian lo bring them
back inlo use are measured at fair value where there are no restrictions on sale at the reparting date and where they do
nat meet the definitions of investment properties or assets held for sale.

Revalualions of property, plant and equipment are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that camying values are
nol malerially different from those that would be determined at the end of the reporiing period. Current values fn existing
use are determined as follows:

« Land and non-specialised buildings — market value for existing use
» Specialised buildings — depraciated replacement cast on a modem eguivalent asset basis.

For specialised assels, current value in existing use Is inlerpreled as the present value of the assel's remaining service
polential, which is assumed to be at leasl equal to the cost of replacing that service polential. Specialised assels are
therefore valued al their depreciated replacement cost (DRC) on a madem equivalent asset (MEA) basis. An MEA
basis assumes that the asset will be replaced with a modern assel of equivalent capacity and meeting the location
requirements of the services being provided. Assets held at deprecialed replacament cost have been valued on an
altarnative site basls where this would meet the localion requiremants.

Valuation guidance issued by the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors states that valuations are performed net of

VAT where the VAT is recoverable by the entity. This basis has been applied lo the trust's Private Finance Initialive
(PF1) scheme where the construction |s compleled by a special purpose vehicle and the costs have recoverable VAT for

the trust.

Properies in the course of construction for service or administration purposes are carried at cost, lass any impaimment
Ioss. Cost includes professional (ees and, where capitalised In accordance with 1AS 23, borrowings cosls. Assets are
revalued and depreciation commences when the assets are brought into use.
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IT equipment, transport equipment, fumilure and filings, and plant and machinery that are held for operational use are
valued at depreciated hisloric cost where these assets have short useful lives or low values or both, as this is nat
considered to be materially different from current value In existing use.

Deprecialion

{tems of property, plant and equipment are depreciated over their remaining usefu! lives in a2 manner consistent with the
consumption of economic or service delivery benefils. Freehald land is considered to have an infinite life and is nol
depreciated.

Property, plant and equipment which has been reclassified as "held for sale’ cease to be deprecialed upon the
reclassification. Assels in the course of construction and residual interests in off-Statemant of Financial Position PFI
conlracl assets are not depreciated until the asset is broughl inte use or reverts to the trust, respectively.

Revalustion gains and losses

Revalualion gains are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and to the exient that, they reverse a
revaluation decrease that has previously been recognised in aperaling expenses, in which case they are recognised in
operating expenditure,

Revaluation losses are charged to the revalualion reserve fo the extent that there is an available bafance for the assel
concerned, and thereafler are charged to operating expenses.

Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve are reporied in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as an
item of ‘olher comprehensive income’.

Impaiments

In accordance with the GAM, impairments that arise from a clear cansumption of economic benefits or of service
potential in the asset are charged to operating expenses. A compensating transfer is made from the revaluation reserve
to the income and expendilure reserve of an amount equal te the lower of (i) the impairment charged lo operating
expenses; and (i) the balance in the revalualion reserve attributable 1o that asset before the impairment.

An impalmenl that arises from a clear consumption of economic benefit ar of service potential is reversed when, and to
the extent that, the circumstances that gave rise to the loss is reversed. Reversals are recognised in operaling
expenditure lo the extent that the asset Is restored lo the carrying amount it woutd have had if the impairment had never
been recognised. Any remaining raversal is recognised in the revaluation reserve. Where, at the time of tha original
impairment, a lransfer was made from the revaluation reserve to the income and expendilure regerve, an amount is
transferred back to the revaluation reserve when the impairment reversal is recognised.

Other impairments are treated as revaluation losses. Reversals of ‘other impairments’ ara treated as revalualion gains.

De-recognition

Assets intended for disposal are reclassified as 'held for sale’' once the criteria in IFRS 5 are met. The sale must be
highly probable and the asset available for Immediate sale in its present condition.

Following reclassificalion, the assets are measured at the lower of their existing carrying amount and their ‘fair value
less costs to sell'. Depreciation ceases 10 be charged and the assets are nol revalued, except where the 'fair value less
cosls to sell falls below the carrying amount, Assels are de-recognised when all material sale contract conditions have
been met.

Praperty, plant and eguipment which is to be scrapped or demolished does not qualify for recognition as ‘held for sale’
and instead is retained as an operational asset and the assel's useful life is adjusted. The asset is de-recognised when
scrapping or demaolition occurs.

Daonated and grant funded assets

Donated and grant funded property, plant and equipment assets are capilalised at their fair value on receipl. The
donation/grant is credited to income at the same time, unless the donor has imposed a condition that the future
economic benefits embodied in the grant are to be consumed in a manner specified by the donor, in which case, the
donation/grant is deferred within Habllities and is camied forward to future financial years to the extent that the condition

has nol yet been met.
The donated and grant funded assels are subsequently accounted for in the same manner as other ilems of property,
plant and equipment.

In 2020/21 this includes assets danated to the trust by the Department of Health and Social Care as part of the
response to the coronavirus pandemic. As defined in the GAM, the trust applies the principle of donated asset
accounting lo assets that the lrust controls and is obtaining economic benefits from at the year end.
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Private Finance Initlative {PFJ) and Local Improvement Finance Trust (LIFT) transactions

PFI and LIFT transactions which mest the IFRIC 12 definitian of a service concession, as interpreted in HM Treasury’s
FReM, are accounted for as ‘on-Statement of Financial Position’ by the rust. In accordance with HM Treasury's FReM,
the underlying assets are recognised as property, plant and equipment, together with an equivalent ability.
Subsequently, the assels are accounted for as property, plant and equipment and/or intangible assels as appropriale.

The annual contract payments are apportioned between the repayment of the liability, a finance cast, the charges for
sarvices and lifecycle replacement of components of the asset. The element of the annual unitary payment increase due
lo cumulalive indexation is treated as contingent rent and Is expensed as incurred.

Tha service charge Is recognised in operating expenses and the finance cosl s charged to finance costs in the
Stalement of Comprehensiva Income.
The Trusl does not currently have any PFI arrangements.

Useful lives of proparty, plant and equipment
Useful lives reflect the total life of an asset and nol he remalning life of an assel. The range of useful lives are shown in

the lable below:

Min life Max life

Years Years

Land - -
Buildings, excluding dweliings 2 38
Dwallings - -
Plant & machinery 2 10
Transpart equipment 5 10
Information technology 1 10
Fumiture & fitlings 5 10

Finance-leased assels {including land) are deprecialed over the shorter of the useful life or the lease term, unless the
trust expects to acquire the asset at the end of the lease term in which case the assels are depreciated in the same
manner as owned assels above.

Note 1.10 intanglbie assets

Recognition

Intangible assets are non-monetary assels without physical substance which are capable of heing sold separately from
the rest of the lrust’s business or which arise from conlractual or other legal rights. They are recognised only where it Is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service polential be provided to, the trust and where the cost of the

asset can be measured reliably.
Intemnally generaled intangible assels

Internally generated goodwill, brands, mastheads, publishing litles, customer lists and similar ilems are not capitalised as
intangible assals.

Expenditure on research Is nol capitalised. Expenditure on development is capilalised where it meets the requirements
set out in IAS 38. ’
Software

Softwara which is integral to the operation of hardware, eg an aperating syslem, Is capilalised as part of the relevant
itlem of property, plant and equipment. Software which Is not inlegral to the operation of hardware, eg application
software, is capitalised as an intangible assel.

Megasurement

Intanglble assets are recagnised initially at cost, comprising all directly attributable costs needed to craate, produce and
prepare Lhe asset to the point that it is capabie of operaling in the manner intended by managemenl.
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Subsequently Intangible assels are measured al curent value in exisling use. Where no active markel exists, intangible
assets are valued at the lower of depreciated replacement cost and the value in use where the asset Is income
generaling. Revaluations gains and losses and impalrments are trealed in the same manner as for praperty, pfant and
equipment. An Intangible asset which Is surplus with no plan 1o bring it back Into use is valued at falr value where there
are na restrictions on sale at the reporting date and where they do not meet the definitions of investment properties or
assets held for sale.

Intangible assets held for sale are measured at the lower of thelr camying amaunt or fair value less costs to sell,

Amortisation

Intangible assets are amortised aver their expected useful lives in a manner consistent with the consumption of
economic or service delivery benefits,

Useful lives of Intanglble assets

The Trust Is not currently holding any intangible assets having fully depreciated
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Note 1.11 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and nel realisable value. The cost of inventories is measured using the first in,
first out {FIFO) methad.

In 202021, the Trust received inventories including personal proteclive equipment from the Depariment of Health and
Social Care at nil cost. In line with the GAM and applying the principlas of the IFRS Conceptual Framework, the Trust
has accounted for the recelpl of these Inventorles al a deemed cost, reflecting the best available approximation of an
imputed market value for the transaction based on the cost of acquisition by the Depariment.

Note 1.42 Investment properties

Investment properties are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised as gains or losses in
income/expenditure.

Only those assels which are held solely to generate a commercial retumn are considered to be investment properties.
Where 8n asset Is held, in part, for suppont sesvice delivery objectives, then it Is considered lo ba an item of property,
plant and equipment. Propertias occupled by employees, whether or not they pay rent al market rales, are nol classified
as invesiment properties.

Note 1.13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash Is cash in hand and deposils with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24
hours. Cash equivalents are Iinvestmeanls that mature:in 3 maonths or less from the dale of acquisition and that are readily
converible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

in the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and that form an integral part of the Trust's cash management. Cash, bank and overdraft balances are racorded
at current values.

Note 1.14 Financial assets and financial {labllities

Recognition

Financial assels and financial Habilities arise where the Trust is party to the contraclual provisions of a financial
instrument, and as a result has a legal right to recelve or a legal abligation to pay cash or another financlal instrument.

The GAM expands the definition of a contract 10 include leglslation and ragulations which give rise to arangemenls that
in ali other respects would be a financial Instrument and do not give rise to fransactions classified as a tax by ONS.

This Includes the purchasa or sale of non-financial items (such as goads or services), which are entered nto in
accordance with the Trust's normal purchase, sale or usage requirements and are recognised when, and {o the extent
which, performance occurs, ie, when receipl or dslivery of the goods or services is made.

Classification and measurament
Financial assets and financial Hablitles are Initially measured at falr value plus or minus direcily attributable transaction

costs excepl where the assel or ability is not measured at fair value through income and expenditure. Fair value is taken
as the transaction price, or otherwise determined by reference to quoled market prices or valuation techniques.

Financia! assels or financial liabilities in respect of assets acquired or disposed of through finance lzases are recognised
and measured in accordance with the accaunting policy far leases described below.

Financial assels are classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through income and expenditure.
Financial liabflities classified as subsequently measured at fair value through Income and expendilure.

FInanclal assets and financlal Hlabilities at amortlsed cost
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Financial assels and financial liablities at amortised cost are those held with the objective of collecting contractual cash
flows and where cash flows are solely paymenis of principal and Interest. This includes cash equivalents, conlract and
other receivables, trade and other payables, rights and obligations under lease arangements and loans receivable and

payable.

Afer initlal recognltion, these financial assels and financlal fabllities are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interast method less any Impairment (for inancial assets). The effective interest rate is the rate thal exactly discounts
estimaled fultre cash payments or recelpls through the expected life of the financlal asset or financial liability to the
gross carrying amount of a financial assel or to the amortised cost of a financial liabllity.

interest revenue or expense Is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amounl of a
financlal asset or amorlised cost of a financial fiability and recagnised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and a
financing income or expense. In the case of loans held from the Department of Health and Social Care, the effeclive
interast rate Is the nominal rate of inlerast charged on the loan.

Financlal assets measurad at falr value through other comprehansive Income

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income where business model objeclives are
me! by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and where lhe cash flows are solely payments
of principal and interest. Movements in the fair value of financial assets In this calegory are recognised as gains or iosses
in other comprehensive income excepl for impairment losses. On derecognition, cumulative gains and losses previously
secognised in other comprehensive Income are reclassified from equity to income and expenditure, except where the
Trust elected to measure an equity instrument in this category on initial recognitlon.

The Trust has imevocably elecled to measure lhe following equity Insiruments at fair value through other comprehensive
income:

Financial assets and flnancial liabllities at fair value through Iincome and expenditure

Financial assets measured at fair value through profil or foss are those thal are not olherwise measured al amortised
cost ar at falr value through other comprehensive income. This category also includes financlal assels and liabllltles
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term (held for trading} and derivatives, Derivatives which are
embedded in other contracts, but which are separable from the host coniract are measured within this category.
Mavements in the fair value of financial assets and liabilitles in this category are recognised as galns or losses in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The Trust has irevocably elected to measure the following financial assets / financial Habilities at (alr value through
income and expendilure: receivables (excluding non-finanical assets), cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
payables (excluding non-financial liabliities).

Impatrment of financial assets

For all financial assels measured at amortised cost including lease receivables, contract receivables and contract assets
or assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, the Trust recagnises an allowance for expecied
credit lossas,

The Trust adopts the simplified approach ta impairment for contract and ather receivables, contract assets and lease
racelvables, measuring expected losses as atl an amount equal to lifetime expected losses. Far other financlal assels,
the loss allowance Is Initially measured at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses (stage 1) and
subsequently at an amounl equal to lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk assessed for the financial asset
significantly increases {stage 2}.

For financlal assets thal have become credit impalred since Initial recognition {stage 3), expecied credit losses at the
reporting date are measurad as the difierence between the asset's gross carrying amount and the present value of
sstimated future cash flows discounled at the financlal assel’s original effective Interest rate.
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Expected losses are charged fo operaling expenditure within the Statement of Comprehensive income and reduce the
net carmying value of the financial asset In the Statement of Financtal Position.

Derecagnition

Financial assets are de-recognised when the contractual righls 1o receive cash flows from the assats have expired or the
Trust has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation Is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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Nots 1.15 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantlally all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The trust as a leasee

Finance leases

Where substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a Inased assel are borne by the trust, the asset Is recorded as
property, plant and aquipment and a corresponding liabllity is recorded. The value at which bath are recognised Is the
lower of the fair value of the asset or the prasent value of the minimum lease payments, discounted using the interest
rate implicil in the lease. The Implicit intesest rale Is that which produces a constant periodic rate of interest on the
outstanding lability.

The asset and liabllity are racognised at the commencement of the lease. Thereafter the asset is accounled for an item
of property plant and equipment.

The annual rental charge is split between the repayment of the Hability and a finance cosl so as to achieve a constant
rate of finance over the life of the lease. The annual finance cost is charged 1o finance cosls in the Statement of
Comprehensive income.

Operaling leases

Operating lease paymanls are recognised as an expense on a stralght-iine basis over the lease term. Lease incentives
are recognised Initially in other fiabiliies on the stalement of financial position and subsequently as a reduction of rentals
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.

Leases of land and buildings

Where a lease Is for land and buildings, the land component is separated from the building component and the
classification for each is assessed separalely.

The trust as a lessor

Finance leasas

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the Trust's nel investment
in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated lo accounting periods to reflect a constant periodic rate of relum on the
trust's net Investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Operating lsases

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straighl-line basis over the term of Lhe lease. Initiat direct cosls
incurred in aegotiating and arranging an operaling lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease lerm.

Note 1.16 Provisions

The Trust recognises a provision where it has a present legal or constructive obligation of uncertain timing or amaunt; for
which it is prabable that there will be a future outflow of cash ar other resources; and a refiable estimate can be made of
the amount. The amount recognised in the Statement of Financlal Position Is the best estimate of the resources required
to seltle the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is significant, the estimated risk-adjusted cash flows
are discounted using HM Treasury's discount rates effective for 31 March 2021:

Nominal rate
Short-term Up to 5 years -0.02%
Medium-term After 5 years up (o 10 years 0.18%
Long-term Exceeding 10 years 1.99%

HM Treasury provides discounl rates for general provisions on a nominal rate basis. Expected fulure cash flows are
therefore adjusted for the impact of Inflation before discounling using nominat rates. The following Inflalion rates are sel
by HM Treasury, effective 31 March 2020:

Inflation rate

Year 1 1.20%
Year 2 1.60%
Into perpetuity 2.00%
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Early retirement provislons and injury benefit provisions both use the HM Treasury's pension discount rate of minus
0.95% in real terms.

Clinlcal negilgence costs

NHS Resolulion operales a risk pooling scheme under which the trust pays an annual contribution to NHS Resolution,
which, in return, settles all clinical negligence claims. Although NHS Resolution is adminisiratively responsible for all
ciinical negligence cases, the legal liability remains with the Trusl. The total value of clinical negligence provisions carried
by NHS Resolution on behalf of the trust is disclosed al note 33.2 but Is not recognised in the Trust's accounis.

Non-clinical risk pooling

The trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities o Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk pooling
schemes under which the trust pays an annual coniribution to NHS Resolution and in return receives assistance with the
costs of clalms arising. The annual membership contributians, and any excesses payable in respect of particular claims
are charged o operating expenses when the Hability arises.

Note 1.17 Contingencies

Confingent assets (that Is, assels arising from past events whose existence will only be confirmed by one or more future
events not wholly within the entity’s conlrol) are not recognised as assets, but are disclosed In nate 34 where an inflow of
economic benefits Is prabable,

Contingent fiabliities are not recognised, but are disclosed in note 34, unlass the probability of a transfer of economic
benefits is remaote.

Conlingent liabilities are defined as:

- possible obligations arising from past events whose exislence will be confirmed anly by the occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not whally within the enlity's centrol; or

. i:aresent obligations arising from past events bul for which & is nat probable that a transfer of economic benefits will arse
or for which the amount of the abligation cannol be measured with sufficient reliabiiity.

Note 1.18 Public dividend capital

Public dividend caplial {PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of assets over liabllities at the
time of establishment of the predecessor NHS erganisation. HM Treasury has determined that PDC Isnot a financial
instrurnent within the meaning of I1AS 32.

The Secrelary of State can issue new PDC 1o, and require repayments of POC from, the trust. PDC is recorded at the
value received,

A charge, reflecting the cost of capital ulilised by the trust, is payable as public dividend capital dividend. The charge Is
calculated at the rate set by HM Treasury (currently 3.5%) on the average relevant net assets of the trust during the
financiat year. Refevant nat assels are calculated as the value of all assets less the value of all iabilitles, with certaln
additions and deductions as defined by the Depariment of Health and Social Care.

This policy is available at ht!ps:ﬂwmv.gov.uklgovemmentlpublicalions!guldance—on—ﬁnancing—avallahle-lo—nhs-lrusts-and-
foundation-trusis.

in accordance with the requirements laid down by the Department of Health and Sacial Care (as the issuer of PDC), the
dividend for the yeas is calculated on the actual average relevant net assets as set out in the *pre-audit® version of the
annual accounts. The dividend calculated Is not revised should any adjustment to nel assets occur as a result the audit
of the annual accounts.,

Note 1.19 Value added tax
Most of the activities of the trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, oulput tax does not apply and input tax on
purchases Is not recaverable. Imecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the

capltalised purchase cost of fixed assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT Is recoverable, the amounts ara
stated net of VAT.
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Note 1.20 Corporation tax
The Trust has no corporation tax liability

Note 1.24 Climats change levy

Expendilure on the climate change levy Is recognised in the Stalement of Comprehensive Income as incutred, based on
the prevaiiing chargeable rates for energy consumption.

Note 1.22 Forelgn exchange

The functiona) and presentational currency of the trust Is stering,

A transaction which is denominated In 2 forelgn currency is transtaled into Ihe functional currency at the spot exchange
rate on the date of the transaction.

Whera the trust has assels or liabililles denominated In a foreign cumrency at the Stalement of Financial Posilion date:

» manelary items are translated at the spot exchange rate on 31 March

« non-monelary assets and Habilities measured at historical cost are translated using the spot exchange rate al the date
of the transaction and

« non-monetary assets and liabilities measured al fair value are translated using the spot exchange rate al the date the
falr value was determined.

Exchange gains or losses on monetary items (arising on settiement of the transaction or on re-iranslation at the
Statement of Financial Position date) are recognised in incoma or expense in the period in which they arise.

Exchange galns or losses on non-monelary assels and liabllities are recognised In the same manner as ather gains and
losses on these ilems.

Note 1.23 Third party assets

Assets belonging to third parties in which the Trust has no beneficial interest (such as money held on behall of patients)
are not recognised in the accounts. However, they are disclosed in a separate note to the accounts in accordance with
the requirements of HM Treasury's FReM.

Nate 1.24 Losses and speclal payments

Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplaled when it agreed funds for the health
sefvice or passed legislation. By their nature they are items that ideally should nol arise. They are therefore subject to
special control procedures compared with the generality of payments, They are divided into different categories, which
govem the way that individual cases are handled. Losses and special payments are charged {o the relevant functional
headings in expenditure on an accruals basis.

The losses and special payments note is compiled directly from the losses and compensations regisler which reporis on
an accrual basls with the exception of provislons for future losses.

Note 1.25 Gifts i

Gifts are items that are voluntarily donated, with no precanditions and without the expectation of any retum, Gifts include
all transaclions economically equivalent to free and unremunerated transfers, such as the loan of an asset for its
expected useful life, and Ihe sale or lease of assets at below market value.

Note .26 Transfers of functions to or from other NHS bodles and local government bodles

For functions that have been transferred to the lrust from another body, the transaction is accounted for as a transfar by
absorption. The assels and liabilities transferred are recognised in the accounts using the baok value as at the dale of
transfer. The assets and liabllities are not adjusted to fair value prior to recognition. The net gain or loss comresponding
to the nel assets or liabllities iransferred is recognised within income and expenditure, but not within operating activities.

For property, plant and equipment assets and intangible assets, the cost and accumulatad depreciation / amortlsatlon
balances from the transferring entity's accounts ara preserved on recognition in the trust's accounts. Where the
transferring body recognised revaluation resesve batances atiributable to the assets, the trust makes a transfer from ils
income and expenditure reserve to ils revaluation reserve lo maintain transparency within public seclor accounts.
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Eor functions that the trust has transferred to another body, the assets and liabilities transferred are de-recognised from
the accounts as at the date of transfer. The net loss or gain corresponding to the net assels or liabilitles transferred Is
recognised within income and expenditure, but not within oparating aclivities. Any revaluation reserve balances
atiributable to assels de-recognised are transferred to the Income and expenditure reserve. [Adjustments to align the
acquired function to the trust's accaunting policies are applied after inflial recognition and are adjusted directly in

taxpayars’ equity.]

in 2020-24 Hounslow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust did not transfer or receive any assets from
another body
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Note 4.27 Early adoption of standards, amendments and Interpretations
No new accounting slandards or revisions 1o existing standards have been early adopled in 2020/21.

Note 1.28 Standards, amendments and Interpretations In Issue but not yet effective or adopted

IFRS 16 Laases

{FRS 16 Leases will replace IAS 17 Leasss, IFRIC 4 Dstermining whether an arangement conlains a lease and other
interpretations and Is applicable In the public sector for pericds beginning 1 April 2022, The standard provides a single
accounting madel for lessees, recognising a right of use asset and obligation in the siatemenl of financial position faor
most leases: some leases are exempt through application of practical expedients explained below. For those recognlsed
in the statement of financlal position the standard also requires the remeasurament of lease liabillties in specific
circumstances after the commencement of the lease lerm. For lessors, the distinction batween operating and finance
leases will remain and the accounting will be largely unchanged.

IFRS 16 changes the definiticn of a lease compared to |AS 17 and [FRIC 4. The trust will apply this definition to new
leases only and will grandfather ils assessments made under the old slandards of whether exisling contracts contain a
lease.

On Iransition to IFRS 16 on 1 April 2022, the trust will apply the standard retrospectively with the cumulalive effect of
initially applying the standard recognised in the income and expenditure reserve at that date, For existing operating
leases with a remaining lease term of more than 12 months and an underlylng asset value of at least £5,000, a lease
liability wilt be recognised equal to the value of remaining lease payments discounted on transition at the trust's
incremental borrowing rate. The trust's incremental borrowing rate will be defined by HM Treasury. Currently this rate Is
0.91% but this may change between now and adoption of the standard. The related right of use assel will be measured
equal to the lease liabifity adjusted for any prepaid or accrued leasa payments. For existing peppercom leases nol
classified as finance leases, a right of use assel will be measured at current value In existing use or fair value. The
difference between the asset value and the calculated lease liability will be recognised In the Income and expenditure
reserve an transition. No adjustments will be made on 1 April 2022 for existing finance leases,

For leases commencing in 2022/23, Ihe trust will not recognise a right of use asset or lease labllity for shont lerm leases
(less than or equal to 12 months) or for leases of low value assels (less than £5,000), Right of use assels will be
subsequently measured on a basis consistent with owned assels and depreciated over the length of the lease term.

The implementation date for IFRS 16 in the NHS was revised to 1 April 2022 in November 2020. Due o the need fo
reassess lease calculations, together wilh uncertainty on expected leasing activity in from April 2022 and beyond, a
quantification of ihe expecied impact of applying the standard In 2022/23 is currently impracticable, However, the trust
does expect this slandard to have a material impacl on non-current assets, llabilities and depreciation.

Other standards, amendments and interpretations

IFRS 18 Accounting far Leases Is expecled to apply from 1 April 2022, having been deferred from 1 April 2019, April
2020 and again from April 2021

Note 1.28 Criticat judgements In applying accounting policies

The following are the judgements, apar from those involving estimations (see befow) that managemenl has made in the
process of applying the trusl accounting policles and that have the most significant effect an the amounts recognised In
the financial slatements:

No significant critical [udgements have been made In the process of applying the Trust's accounting policies

Note 1.30 Sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are assumptions aboul the fulure and other major sources of estimation uncertainty that have a signlficant
risk of resulling in a material adjustment to the carrying amounis of asgets and liabliities within the next financial year:
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- Under the ierms of the operaling lease on one of the Trust's properties, the Hounslow & Richmond Community
HeaRhcare NHS Trust was abliged to restore the building to ils pre lease state at the end of the lease period In January
20%9. The Trust had made an estimated provision for ditapidations based on current markel benchmarks in 2015-16. An
expert advisor was appointed to ravise this provision and a report received in September 2018. The provision has been
adjusted lo reflect the valuations in this report, which is based on industry standards, however it remains an aslimale
until actual works are carried aut. The value of the dilapidation provision was left unchanged as at 31 March 2019 and
31 March 2020, Subsiantial work Is baing underiaken in the buiiding which could Impact on any future dilapidation costs
and we will review this provision once these are complete, Work conlinues in to 2021-22 and therefore the provision has
again been left unchanged as at 31 March 2021. The Trust signed both an extension to the lease and then a new 10
year lease effective from 1 June 2018 1o 31 May 2029 with a five year break clause. As soon as the refurbishment
works are complete the Trust will then review the future dilapidation requirements of the new lease.

- The Trusl's property assels were previously subject to a full revaluation as at 31 March 2020 Issued alongside an
RICS malerial valuation uncertainty statement. A desk top revaluation was carried out as at 31 March 2017 by the same
valuer and using the same Information provided for the full revaluation two years previously. Internal desk top valuation
has been underlaken both as at 31 March 2018 using koecation factor indices relevant to the locality and as at 31 March
2019 using national indices. An intemal desk top valuation was undertaken as at 31 March 2021 using National Indices.
Due to the angoing pandemic and market uncertainty, the Trust decided ta undertake an Inlernal desk top revaluation in
March 2021 which will ba followed up by another full revaluation. In 2020 the external valuer recommended an early
impaimnent review and this will ba undertaken before 31 March 2022,

The external valuation exercise was carried out in March 2020 wilh a valualion date of 31 March 2020. In applying the
Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Valuation Global standards 2020 (Red Book'), the valuer has declared a'
material valuation unceralinty' in Ihe valuation report. This on the basis of uncertainties in markels caused by COVID 19.
The values in the report have been used to inform the measurement of property assels al valuation In these financial
stalements. With Ihe valuer having declared this material valuation uncertainty, the valuer has continued o exercise
professional judgement in praviding the valuation and this remains the best Information available to the Trus. the Trust
has considered this revaluation and as at 31 March 2021 has determined that while the pandemic Is ongoing, the full
Impact of any change in value of the Trusts assels cannot be measured. Therefore have taken the decision to undertake
an internal desk top revaluation using natlonal indices.

The trust has made an additional provision for dilapidations in 2020-21 for the Wheelchair Hub. A significant sum was
spent In creating the Hub which is & leased property in Hounslow. The provision for dilapidations Is an estimale based on
the Initlal cost of creating the Hub but will be reviewed as part of negotiations for the renewal of the lease in 2021.

- It Is impracticable to disclose the exient of the possible aeffects of an assumplion or anather source of estimation
uncerainty at the end of the reporting period. On the basls of existing knowledge, outcomes within the next financial year
that are different from the assumption around the valuation of our tand, property, pfant and equipment could require a
maleria! adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability recorded in note 17
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Note 2 Operating Segments

The Trust operaled as a single segment in 2020-21

A business segment is a group of assals and operations engaged in providing products or services that are subject o
risk and retums that are different from other business segmenis. A geographical segment is engaged in providing
products or services within a paricular economic environment that is subject to risks and retums that are difierent from
those segments operating in different economlc environments. The diractors consider that the Trust's activities
constitute a single segment since they are provided whally in the UK, are sublect to similar risks and rewards and all
assels are managed as one central pool
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Note 3 Oparating income from patlent care activities

All Income from patient care activities relates 1o contract Income recognised in line with accounting policy 1.4

Note 3.1 Income from patient care activities (by nature)

Community services
Block contract / syslem envelope income®
Income from other sources (e.g. local authorilles)
All servicas
Private patient Income
Additiona! pension contribution central funding**
Other clinical income
Total income from activities

2020/21 2019720
£000 £000
69,441 63,509
8,140 8.422
2,290 2,120
- 280
79,871 74,341

*As part of the coranavirus pandemic response, transaction flows were simplified in the NHS and providers and lheir
commissioners moved onlo block contract payments at the starl of 2020/21. in the second half of the year, a revised
financial framework built on these arrangements but with a greater focus on system partnership and providers derived
most of their income from these system envelopes. Comparaltivas in this note are presenled to be comparable with the
cumenl year activity. This does nol reflect the conlracting and payment mechanisms in place during the prior year.

**The emplayer coniribution rate for NHS pensians increased from 14.3% to 20.6% (excluding administration charge)
from 1 April 2019, Since 2016/20, NHS providers have continued to pay aver contributions at the former rate with the
additional amount being paid over by NHS England on providers' behalf. The full cost and relaled funding have been

recognised in these accounts,

Naote 3.2 [Income from patient care activities (by source)

Income from patient cara activities recelved from:
NHS England
Clinical commissioning groups
Department of Health and Social Care
Other NHS providers
NHS other
Local authorities
Non-NHS: private patients
Non-NHS: overseas patlents (chargeable (o patient)
Injury cost recovery scheme
Non NHS: other
Total income from activities
Of which:
Relaled to conlinuing operations
Related to discontinued operalions

2020421
£000
6,647
65,134
33
1,691
35
6,025

209
97

2019/20
£000
8,741
60,178
7
1,740
5,934

189
542

79,874
=

79,871
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74,341
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Note 5.1 Additional information on contract revenue (IFRS 15) recognisad in the perlod

2020/21 2019/20
£000 £000
Revenue recognised in the reporting period that was Included in within contract
fiabilities at the previous period end
Revenue recognised from performance obligations satisfied {or partially salisfied) in
previous periods
Note 5.2 Transaction price allocated to remalning performance obligations
31 March 31 March
2021 2020

Revenue fram existing contracts allacaled 1o remaining performance abtigations is
expecled to be recognised: £000 £000
within one year
afler one year, not later than fiva years
after five years

Total revenue allocated to remaining performance obligations - =

The trust has exercised the practical expedients permitied by IFRS 15 paragraph 121 in preparing this disclosure.
Revenue from (i} contracts with an expectad duration of one year or less and (i) contracts where the trust recognises
revenue directly coresponding to work dane fo date Is not disclosed.

Note 5.5 Fees and charges

HM Treasury requires disclosure of fees and charges income. The following disclosure is of income from charges to
service users where income from thal service exceads £1 million and Is presented as the aggregale of such income. The
cost assaciated with the service that generated the income Is also disclosed.

The Trust has nof incurred any fees or charges
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Note 6.1 Operating expenses

Purchase of heallhcare from NHS and DHSC bodies
Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS and non-DHSC bodies
Purchase ol social care
Stafl and executive directors cosis
Remuneration of non-executive direclors
Supplies and services - clinical (excluding drugs costs)
Supplies and services - general
Drug costs (drugs inventory consumed and purchase of non-inventory drugs)
Consullancy cosls
Establishment
Premises
Transpait (including patient travel)
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortisation on intangible assels
Audit fees payable to the external auditor

audit services- statulory audit

other auditor remuneration (extemal auditor only)
interna! audit costs
Clinical negligence
Legal faes
insurance
Research and development
Education and training
Rentals under operating leases
Early retirements
Redundancy
Car parking & security
Hospitality
Losses, ex gratia & special payments
Other

Total
Of which:

Related to continuing operallons
Related to discontinued operations

** Audit fee - fee payable to the extemal auditors is £43,100 { excluding VAT of £ 8,620 )
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2020121 2019/20
£000 £000
3.907 2,554
380 247
57,823 53,070
95 77
8,340 6,706
428 256
185 157
188 115
4,235 4,178
4,043 2,682
100 47
1,786 1.899
52 45

30 7

75 85
196 199

30 25

72 57
3,038 3,034
85,004 75470
85,004 75,470



Nota 6.2 Nightingale hospital

During 2020721 the Trust did not operate as a host Trust for a Nightingale facllity as pari of the regional coronavirus
pandemic respanse.

Note 6.3 Other aud!tor ramuneration
Thera was no other auditor remuneration pald to extarnal auditor

Note 6.4 Limitation on auditor’'s liability

The limitation on auditor’s liability for external audit work Is £2 million (2019/20: £2 million).

Note 7 Impairment of assets

The Trusi has not impaired any assets in 2020-21. Nilin 2019-20.
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Note 8 Employee benefits

2020121 2019/20

Total Total

£000 £000
Salaries and wages 41,863 38,114
Soclal security cosis 4,104 3,744
Apprenliceship levy 195 180
Employer’s contributions to NHS pensions 7,548 6,983
Pension cost - other - -
Other post employment benefits - -
Gther employment benefits - -
Termination bensfits - .
Temparary staff (including agency} 4,113 4,069
Total gross staff costs 57,823 53,070

Recoveries In respect of secanded staff _— =
Total staff costs 57,823 53,070

Of which

Cosls capilatised as part of assels - -

Nate 8.1 Retirements due to lll-health

During 2020/21 there wese no early relirements from the trust agreed on the grounds of ill-health (none In the year ended
31 March 2020). The estimated additional pension lizbilitles of these Hl-health relirements Is Ok (Ok in 2018/20).

These estimaled costs are calculaled on an average basis and will be bome by the NHS Pension Scheme.
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Note 9 Pansaion costs

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pension Schemes. Details of the benefits
payable and rules of the Schemes can be found on the NHS Pensions webslHe at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions, Both
are unfunded defined benefit schemes that cover NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the
direction of the Secretary of State in England and Wales. They are not designed to be run in a way that would enable
NHS badies lo identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, each scheme is accounted
for as I it were a defined coniribution scheme: the cost to the NHS body of participating in each scheme is taken as equal
1o the conlributions payable to that scheme for the accounting period.

In order that the defined benefit abligations recognised in the financiat stalemenls do nol differ malerialty from those that
would be determined al the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that “the period between
formal valuations shalt be four years, with approximate assessments in intervening years™. An outiine of these follows:

a) Accounting valuation

A valuatian of scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary (currently the Government Actuary's
Department) as at the end of the reporting period, This utilises an acluarial assessment for the previous accounting
period in conjunclion with updated membership and financial data for the current reporting period, and Is accepled as
providing suitably robust figures for financial reporting purposes. The valuation of the scheme [iability as at 31 March
2021, Is based on valuation data as at 31 March 2020, updated to 31 March 2021 with summary global member and
accounling dala. In undertaking this actuarial assessment, lhe methodology prescribed in IAS 18, relevant FReM
interpretations, and the discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also been used.

The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is containad in the report of U1e scheme actuary, which forms part
of the annual NHS Pension Scheme Accounls. These accounls can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website and are
published annualty. Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery Office.

b) Full actuarial (funding) valuation

The purpose of this vatuation is to assess the Jevel of liability In respect of the benefils due under the schemes (laking
into account recent demographic experience), and to recommend confribution rates payable by employees and

employers.

The latest actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed as at 31 March 2018, The resufts
af this valuation set the employer conlribution rate payable from April 2019 at 20.6% of pensionable pay. The 2016
funding valuation was alsc expected lo test the cost of the Scheme relalive to the employer cast cap that was set
following the 2012 valuation. In January 2019, the Governmenl announced a pause 10 the cost contro! element of the
2016 valuations, due t the uncertalnty around member banefils caused by the discrimination rufing reiating 1o lhe
McCloud case.

The Govemment subsequently announced in July 2020 that the pause had been lifted, and so the cost conlrol element of
the 2016 valuations could be completed. The Govemment has sel out that the costs of remedy of the discrimination will
be included In this process. HMT valuation directions will set out the technical delall of how the costs of remedy will be
included in the valuation process. The Gavernment has alsa confirmed thal the Government Actuary is reviewing ihe cost
conirol mechanism {as was originally announced in 2018). The review will assess whether the cost control mechanism Is
working in line with original govemment objectives and reported to Government In April 2021, The findings of this review
will ot impact the 2016 vatuations, with the aim for any changes lo the cost cap mechanism 1o be made in time far the
completion of the 2020 actuarial valuations.
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Note 10 Operating leases

Note 10.1 Hounslow and Rlchmand Community Healthcare NHS Trust as a lassor

This note discloses income generaled In aperating lease agreements where Hounslow and Richmond Community

Healthcare NHS Trust is the lessor,

2020/21 2019720
£000 £000
Operating lease ravenus
Minimum lease raceipts 748 1,267
Total 748 1,267
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
£000 £000
Futura minimum lease recelpts due:
- not later than one year, 1,120 1,267
- later than one year and not later than five years; 4,480 1.488
- later than five years. 2,984 1,860
Total 8,584 4,615

Note 10,2 Hounslow and Rlchmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust as a lessee

This nole discloses costs and commitments incurred in operating lease amangements where Hounslow and Richmend

Community Healthcare NHS Trust is the lessee.

Hounslow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust is the lessor for Thames House. Richmond and Kingston
CCGs are occupying this property on a sub lease arrangement. HRCH are the head lease holders so the sub lease

arrangement aligns with our agreement which was renewed In June 2019 on a len year lease.

Your Healthcare CIC is the lessor for an inpatient ward at Teddinglon Memorial Hospital. The lease is agreed on a

rolling one year lease

2020/21 2019/20
EDOD £000
Oparating lease expense
Minimum lease payments 3,038 3,034
Total 3,038 3,034
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
£000 £000
Future minimum lease payments dua:
- not later than one year, 2,201 3,124
- later than one year and not Iater than five years; 7.451 6,017
- later than five years, 2,220 3,273
Tota) 11,872 12,414
Future minimum sublease payments to be received - -
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Nate 11 Finance income
Finance income represents interest received on assets and investmants in the period.

202021 2019/20

£000 £000
Interest on bank accounts 6 158
Total finance Income 6 159

Note 42.1 Finance expenditure
Finance expenditure represents interest and other charges Involved In the borrowing of money or asset financing.

The Trust did nol incur any expenditure on Inlerest and cther charges refating to the borrowing of money
Note 12.2 The late payment of commercial debts (interest) Act 1998 / Public Contract Regulations 2015
The Trust did not incur any interest due lo late payment of commercial debls

Note 13 Other gains / (losses)

There are no Other Gains and Losses to report in 2020-21, Nil ln 2018-20
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Note 14 Discontinued operations

There were no discontinued operations
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Note 17 Donations of property, plant and equipment

In 2018-19, the Trust received income from the Richmaond League of Friends to purchase or contribute to the
purchase of fixed assets. The League of Friends made a donation of £366k 1o fully fund the purchase of new radiology
equipment in the unit based at Teddington Memarial Hospitat. A further £168k was used as a contribution to the
refurbishment costs of the Urgent Trealment Cenlre at the same locatlon.

Mo further donalions to purchase fixed assels have been made in 2020-21. Nil in 2019-20

Note 18 Revaluations of property, plant and equipment

The Trust's property assets were subject to a full revaluation on 31 March 2020, the last full evaluation having been in
March 2015. A desk lap revaluation was underiaken as al 31 March 2017. All external valuations were underiaken by
the same District Valuer, At 31 March 2019 ( as at March 2018) the assels were subject to a desk top vatuation by
Trust experts. At 31 March 2018 the Assets were valued using local indices which belier reflected the property market
st that time. In March 2019 National indices were used to revalue the bulldings which indicate a 8.9% increase in
value. However, after taking account of investment in the Trusi properties during 2018-19, a loss on revaluation of
3.9% was reported. The Trusl commissioned g full extemnal valuation in March 2020.

The valuation as at 31 March 2020 had been prepared having regard fo market evidence and other data available
from the period prior and including BCIS and location factors. Full inspeclions during sile visils were undertaken and
ctarification sought on land and GIA floor areas. Due account was taken of malerial assel changes and investment
since the last desk lop valuation in March 2017.

The external valuer considered as part of a RICS profession discussion forum, the potential impact of COVID 19 on
asset valuations wilh a valuation date of 31 March 2020, They therefore issued an RICS material valuation
uncertainty statement and recommended an early impairment review.

An intemal desk lop valuation was undertaken as at 31 March 2021 using Nationat Indices and site data collected for
the full external revatuation in March 2020. Due to the ongoing pandemic and market uncertainty, the Trust decided o
undertake an intemnal desk top revaluation in March 2021 which will be followed up by another full revatuation. In 2020
the extamal valuer recommended an early impairment review and this will be undertaken before 31 March 2022,

The useful economic lives have not materially changed.

Fixtures and fitlings are carried at deprecialed historic cosl and this is not considered to be materially different from
fair value,

Note 19.1 Investment Property

The Trust does not hold any invesiment property

Note 19.2 Investment property Income and expenses

The Trust does not hold any investment property



Note 20 Investments in associates and joint ventures

The Trust does not have any investments in assaciates or joint ventures

Note 21 Other investments / financlal agsats (hon-current)

The Trust does not have any other investments/financial assels { non current)

Note 21.1 Othar Investments / financlal assets {current)

The Trust does not have any other investments/financial assels (current)

b1



Note 22 Disclosure of interests in other entitias

The Trusl does not have any interests in other entities to disclose.

Note 23 Inventories

Inventories recognised in expenses for the year were £2k (2019/20: £0k). Write-down of inventaries racognised as
expenses for the year were £0k (2019/20: £0k).

In response to the COVID 192 pandemic, the Department of Health and Social Care centrally procured personal
proteclive equipment and passed these lo NHS providers free of charge. During 2020/21 the Trust received £2k of
items purchased by DHSC.

The deemed cost of these inventories was charged directly to expenditure on receipt with the corresponding benafit
recognised In income.
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Nota 24.1 Recelvables

Current
Contract receivables
Conlract assels
Capital receivables
Allowance for impalred contract recelvables / assets
Allowance for other impaired receivables
PDC dividend receivable
VAT receivable
Corporation and other taxes receivable
Other receivables

Total current recelvables

Non-current
Contract receivables
Capilal receivables
VAT receivable
Corporation and other taxes receivable

Other receivables
Total non-current recaivables

Of which raceivabla from NHS and DHSC group bodies:

Cumrent
Neon-current
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31 March 31 March
2021 2020
£0090 £000

6,413 7.220
(13} {13)

- 134

a7 31
6,497 7,372
37173 5,725



Note 24.2 Allowances for credit losses

Allowances as at 1 April - brought forward
Prior period adjustments

Allowances as at 1 April - restated
Transfers by absorplion
New allowances arising

Changes In existing allowances
Allowances as at 31 Mar 2021

Note 24.3 Exposure to credit risk

2020/ 2019120
Contract Contract
receivables recelvables
and contract All other and contract All other
assets recelvables assats racelvables
£000 £000 £000 £000
13 - 13 .
13 - 13 -
13 . 13 -

Because the majority of the Trust's revenue comes from contracts with other public sector bodies, the Trust has low
exposure lo credit risk. The maximum exposures as at 31 March 2020 are in receivables from customers, as

disclosed in the trade and olher receivables note.



Note 25 Other assets

The Trust does not have any other financial assets - current at 31 March 2021 { nil at 31 March 2020)

Nots 26.1 Non-current assets held for sale and assets in disposa! groups

The Trust does not have any ather financia) assets - non curreni at 31 March 2021 { nil at 31 March 2020)

Note 26.2 Liabilities in disposal groups

The Trust daes not have any liabilities In dispasa! groups
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Note 27.1 Cash and cash aqulvalents movements

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, In hand and cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are readily
convertible investments of known value which are subject (o an insignificant risk of change In value.

2020721 2019/20

£000 £000

At 1 April 24,460 21,872
Prior period adjustments -
At 1 Agrll {restated) 24,460 21,872
Transfers by absorption 5 -
Nel change in year 9,499 2,588
At 31 March 33,959 24,460

Broken down into:
Cash al commercial banks and in hand 5 -
Cash with the Government Banking Service 33,959 24,460
Deposits with the National Loan Fund - S
Other current invesiments - -

Total cash and cash equivalents as in SoFP 33,955 24,460
Bank overdrafls (GBS and commercial banks) - -
Drawdown in commitied facility

Total cash and cash equivalents as in SoCF 33,959 24,460

Note 27.2 Third party assets held by the trust

The Trust does nol hold any third party assels



Note 28,1 Trade and other payables

Current
Trade payables
Capilal payables
Accruals
Recelpis in advance and payments on account
PFI lifecycle replacement received in advance
Soclal security costs
VAT payables
Other laxes payable
PDC dividend payable
Other payables
Total current trade and other payables

Non-current
Trade payables
Capital payables
Accruals
Receipts in advance and payments on accouni
PFI lifecycle replacament received in advance
VAT payables
Other taxes payable
Other payables
Total non-current trade and other payables

Of which payables from NHS and DHSC group bodlas:

Current
Non-current

Note 28.2 Early retirements In NHS payables above

The payables note above does not include any amounts in refation to early retirements

&7

31 March 31 March
2021 2020
E000 £000

7.913 8,089
225 399
10,952 5,544
668 595

16 -

467 381
64 i
20,305 13,008
4323 3,564



Nota 28 Other liabilities

Currant
Deferred income: contract liabililies
Defesred grants
Deferred PFI credits / income
Lease incentives
Other deferred income

Total other current liabilitles

Nan-current
Deferred income: conlract labilities
Deferred granis
Deferred PF| credits / income
Lease incentives
Qther deferred income
Net pension scheme liabllity

Total other non-current liabilities

Note 30.1 Borrowlngs

There ﬁrara no borrowings at 31 March 2021 { nlil at 31 March 2020)
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31 March 31 March
2021 2020
£000 £000

1,518 53
1,518 53
5 -



Note 30.2 Reconcillation of liabilities arising from flnancing activities - 2020/21

The Trust does not have any liabilities arising from financing activities

Note 30.3 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities - 2019/20

There were no other financlal liabilities arising from finanncing activities at 31 March 2020

Note 31 Other financlal llabilities

Thare were no other financial liabililies at 31 March 2021 { nil at 31 March 2020)
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Nota 32 Finance leases

Note 32.1 Hounslow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust as a lessor
Fulure lease receipts due under finance lease agreements where lhe trust is the lessor.

The Trust does not currenily have any finance lease abligations as a lessor

Neote 32.2 Hounslow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust as a lessae
Obligations under finance leases where the trust is the lessee.

The Trusi dees not have any finance |ease obligalions as a lessee.
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Note 33.2 Clinical negligence liabilitles

Al 31 March 2021, £1,905k was included In provisions of NHS Resolution in respect of cfinical negiigence labilities of

Hounslow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust (31 March 2020: £1,585k).

Note 34 Contingent assets and llabllities

Value of contingent llabilities
NHS Resolution legaf clalms
Empioyment tribunal and olher employee related litigation
Redundancy
Other
Gross value of contingent liabilitles
Amounts recoverable against liabilities
Net value of contingent liabilities
Net value of contingent assets

Note 35 Contractual eapital commitments

The Trust does not have any Coniractual Capital Commilments at 31 March 2021 { nif at 31 March 2020)

Note 36 Other financlal commitments

31 March
2021

£000

31 March
2020

£000

The trust is committed to makiFlg payments under non-cancelable contracts {which are nol leases, PF| contracts or
other service concession arrangement), analysed by the periad during which the payment is made:

The Trust does not have any other financial commitments at 31 March 2021 ( nil at 31 March 2020)
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Note 37 Defined bensfit pension schames

The Trust does not operate a defined benefit pension scheme
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Note 37.1 Changes In the defined benefit obllgation and falr value of plan assets during the year

The Trust does nol operate a defined benefit pension scheme
Note 37.2 Reconcillation of the present value of the defined benafit obllgation and the present value of the plan

assets to the assets and liabllities recognised in the balance sheet

The Trust does not operate a defined benefit penslon scheme

Note 37.3 Amounts recognised in the SoCl

The Trust does not operate a defined benefit pension scheme
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Note 38 On-SoFP PFl, LIFT or other service concesslon arrangements

The Trust has no obligations in respect of PFI, LIFT or other service concession arrangements

Note 38.1 On-SoFP PFI, LIFT or other service concession arrangement obligations

The following obligations in respect of the PFI, LIFT or other service concession arrangements are recognised in the
stalement of financlal position:

Hounslow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust has no obligations in respect of the finance lease element
of on-Stalement of Financial Position PFI and LIFT schemes:

Note 38.2 Total on-SoFP PFl, LIFT and other sarvice concession arrangament commitments
Total future commitments under these on-SoFP schemes are as follows:

The Trust has no obligations in respect of PFI, LIFT or other service concesslon arangements

Note 38.3 Analysls of amounts payable to service concession operator

The Trust has no obligations in respect of PFt, LIFT or alher service concession arrangements

Note 39 Off-SoFP PFi, LIFT and other service concesslion arrangements

Hounslow and Richmand énmmunlty Healthcara NHS Trust incurred no charges in respect of off-Statement of Financial
Position PF) and LIFT arangements:
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Nate 40 Financial instruments

Note 40.1 FInancial risk management

Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period
in creating or changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities. Because of lhe continuing service provider
relationship that the NHS Trusl has with [commissioners] and the way those [commissioners} are financed, the NHS
Trust Is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by business entities. Also financial instruments play a much
more limied role in crealing or changing risk than would be typical of listed companies, to which the financiat reporting
standards mainly apply. The NHS Trust has limited powers to borrow ar invest surplus funds and financial assets and
liabilities are generated by day-lo-day operational aclivities rather than being held to change the risks facing the NHS
Trust in undertaking its activitles.

The Trusl's treasury management operations are canied out by the finance depariment, within parameters defined
formally within the Trust's standing financial inslructions and policies agreed by the board of directors, Trust treasury
activity is subject to review by the Trust's inlemal auditors.

Currency risk
The Trust is principally a domestic organisation with {he great majority of transactions, assets and liabilities being in the

UK and sterfing based. The Trust has no overseas operations. The Trust therefore has Jow exposure o currency rale
fluciuations.

inlerest rate risk

The Trust borrows from govemment lor capital expenditure, subject to affordability as confirmed by NHS improvement.
The borowings are for 1 — 25 years, in line with the life of the associated assets, and interest is charged at the National
Loans Fund rale, fixed for the life of the loan. The Trust therefore has low exposure to inlerest rate fluctuations.

The Trust may also borrow from govemment for revenue financing subject to approval by NHS Improvement. Inlerest
The Trust therefore has low exposure to intarest rate fluctuations.

Credit risk

Because the majority of the Trust's revenue comes from contracts with other public sector bodies, the Trust has low
exposure to credil risk. The maximum expostres as at 31 March 2019 are in receivables from cuslomers, as disclosed
in the trade and other recelvables note.

Liquidity risk

The Trus!'s operating costs are incurred under contracts with primary care Trusts, which are financed from resources
voled annually by Parllament . The Trust funds its capiial expendilure from funds obtained within its prudential
borrowing limit. The Trust is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks.
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Note 40.2 Carrylng values of financial assets

Carrying values of financlal assets as at 31 March 2021

Trade and ather receivables excluding non financial assels
QOther invesiments / financial assets
Cash and cash equivalenis

Total at 31 March 2021

Carrying values of financial assets as at 31 March 2020
Trade and other receivables excluding non financial assets
Other invesiments / financial assels

Cash and cash equivalents
Total at 31 March 2020

Note 40.3 Carrying values of financlal liabilities

Carrylng values of financlal liabllitles as at 31 March 2021

Loaps from the Depariment of Health and Social Care
Obligalions under finance leases

Obligations under PFL, LIFT and other service concession conlracls

Other bormawings
Trade and other payables excluding non financial Habliilies
Other financial liabilities
Provisions under caontract
Total at 31 March 2021

Carrying values of financiaf liabllitles as at 31 March 2020

Loans from the Depariment of Health and Soclal Care
Obligations under finance leases

Obligations under PFI, LIFT and ather service concession contracts

Other borrowings
Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities
Other financial Habilities
Provisions under contract
Total at 31 March 2020
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Held at Held at Held at
amortisad fair value falr value Taotal
cost through J&E through OCl book value
£000 £000 £000 £000
8,384 - - 6,384
33,959 - - 33,859
40,343 - - 40,343
Held at Held at Held at
amortised fair value fair value Total
cost through I&E through OCl  book value
£0600 £000 £000 €000
7.251 - - 7,251
24 480 - - 24,460
31,711 - . 31,711
Held at Held at
amortised fair value Total
cost throughl&E book value
£000 E£000 £000
18,683 - 18,683
18,683 - 18,683
Held at Heid at
amortised fair valug Total
cost throughI&E book valua
£000 £000 £000
12,032 . 12,032
12,032 - 12,032



Note 40.4 Maturity of financial liabllitles

The following maturity profite of financial liabilities is based on the contractual undiscounted cash flaws. This differs lo
the amounts recognised In the statement of financal position which are discounted to present value.

31 March 31 March
2021 2020
£000 £000
In one year or less 18,683 12,032
In more than one year but not more than five years N -
in more than five years 5 -
Total 18,683 12,032
—————

The prior year comparator figures in this note were previously prepared on a discounted cash flow basis. In fine with the
recemmendations of the Group Accounting Manua! this has been updated 1o be shown on an undiscounted basis. This
has no impact on the value of the liabilities within the Statement of Financial Position.

Note 40.5 Falr values of financlal asseis and labilities

Book value is a reasonable approximation of falr value for each relevant class of financial assels and liabililies
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Note 41 Loases and spacial payments

Losses
Cash losses
Fruiless payments and conslructive losses
Bad debts and claims abandoned
Stores losses and damage to property
Total losses
Special payments

Compensaltion under court order or legally binding
arbitration award

Extra-contractual payments

Ex-gratia payments

Special severance payments

Extra-statutary and extra-regulatory payments
Total special payments
Total losses and special payments
Compensalion payments received

Note 42 Gifis

There are no gifts to disclase

2020121 201820
Total Total

number of Total value numberof Total value
cases of cases cases of cases
Number £000 Number £000

- - 1 1

- - 1 1

i . 1 .

- - 1 -

- - 2 1
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Note 43 Related parties

During the year none of the Department of Health and Sacial Care Ministers, Hounslow & Richmond
Communily Healthcare NHS Trust board members or members of the key management staff, or parties
related to any of them, have undertaken any material transactions with Hounslow & Richmond Community
Healthcare NHS Trust

The Department of Health and Social Care is regarded as a related party. During the year, Hounslow &
Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust has had a significant number of material transactions with the
Depariment and with other entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent Department.

Receipls Payments Amounts Amounis

from foRelated duefrom owedto
Related Party Related Related

Party Party Party

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Ealing CCG 9 - - -
Hounslow CCG 34,313 - 16 -
South West London CCG 29,196 - 1,371 199
Surrey Heartlands CCG 695 - 10 -
NHS England 8,778 - 91 720
Guys and St Thomas NHS Foundation Trust 51 1,752 66 160
Chelsea and Westminster NHS Foundaltion Trust 808 1,554 831 B3z
Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 205 B5 258 33
Croydon Health Services NHS Trust 161 - 162 80
Epsom & St Helier University Hospitals NHS Trust - - 379 -
St George's Healthcare NHS FT 240 100 430 85
South West London & 5t George's NHS Trust 87 - - -
West London Mental Health NHS Trust 32 283 6 11

In addition, the Trust has had a number of material transactions with other government departments and
other central and local government bodies. Most of these transactions have been with Local Autharities

Receipts Payments Amounis Amounts

from foRelated duefrom owedto
Related Party Related Related
Party Party Party
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
London Borough of Hounslow 5,089 - an 185
London Borough of Richmond upan Thames 736 781 1 647
London Borough of Merton 200 - - -

The Trust has also received £9k payment {£9k in 2019-20) from the charitable fund it hosts for the
administration and governance of the fund, The Trust Board is the trustee of the fund and some board
members are also members of the Charitable Funds Commitiee. The summary financial statements of the
Funds Held on Trust are not included in these accounts They are reported separately to the Charities
Commission.



Note 44 Transfers by absorption

There are no transfers by absorption

Note 45 Prior period ad]ustments

There are no prior period adjustments

Note 46 Events after the reporting date

There were no evenls after the reporling period

Nole 47 Final period of operation as a trust providing NHS healthcare

The Trust continues ta operate as a trust of NHS Heaithcare
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Note 48 Better Payment Practice code

2020/21 2020/21 2049120 2019720

Non-NHS Payables Number £000 Number £000

Tolal non-NHS trade invoices paid in the year 15713 34,061 16,157 32,368

Tola! non-NHS lrade invaices paid within target 15,006 33,375 15,034 31,707

Percenlage of non-NHS trade invoices pald within

{arget 95.5% 98.0% 93.0% 88.0%
NHS Payables

Total NHS trade involces paid in the year 728 8,928 ga4 8,145

Total NHS trade invoices paid within target 714 8,792 842 7,718

Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid within target 98.1% 98.5% 85.2% 94.8%

The Better Payment Practice code requires the NHS boady 1o aim ta pay all valid invoices by the due date or within 30

days of receipt of valid invoice, whichever is later,

Nate 43 External financing limit

The trust is given an externa) financing limit against which it is permitted to underspand

Cash flow financing
Finance leases taken out in year
Other capital receipls

External financing requirement

Extemal financing limit (EFL)
Under / (over} spend against EFL

Note 50 Capital Resource Limit

Gross capilal expenditure

Less: Disposals

Less: Donated and granted capital additions

Plus: Loss on dispasal from capital grants in kind
Charge against Capital Resource Limit

Capilal Resource Limit
Under / (over} spend against CRL

Nbte 51 Breakeven duty financial performance

Adjusted financial performance surplus / {deficit) (control total basis)
Remove impairments scoring lo Deparimental Expenditure Limit
Add back non-cash element of On-SoFP pension scheme charges
IFRIC 12 breakeven adjustment

Breakeven duty financlal performance surplus [ (deficit)

202021 2019/20
£000 £000
(9,488) (2.588)
(8,499) {2,588)
(374) (1.659)
9,125 929
2020721 2019/20
£000 £000
2,222 1,837
2,222 1,837
2,595 1,890
373 53
2020121
£000
76
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NHS

Hounslow and Richmond

Community Healthcare
NHS Trust

Thames House
180 High Street
Teddington
TW11 8HU
020 8973 3014

Joanne Lees
Director

KPMG LLP

15 Canada Square
London

E14 5GL

10 June 2021

Dear Joanne

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the Trust financial
statements of Hpunslow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust {“the Trust"), for
the year ended 31 March 2021, for the purpose of expressing an opinion:

» as to whether these financial statements give a frue and fair view of the state of the financial
position of the Trust as at 31 March 2021 and of the Trust's income and expenditure for the
financial year then ended; and

» whether the Trust's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual (GAM).

These financial statements comprise the Trust Statement of Financial Position, the Statement
of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows, the Statement of Changes in Equity
and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

The Board confirms that the representations it makes in this letier are in accordance with the
definitions set out in the Appendix to this letter.

The Board confirms that, to the best of its knowledge and beligf, having made such inquiries as
it considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing itself:

Financial statements

1. The Board has fulfilled its responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit
engagement dated 21 March 2017, for the preparation of financial statements that:

i. give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Trust as at 31 March 2021
and of the Trust’s income and expenditure for that financial year; and

i. have been prepared in accordance with the GAM 2020/21.

The financial staternents have been prepared on a going concern basis,



2. The methods, the data and the significant assumptions used in making accounting
estimates and their related disclosures are appropriate 1o achieve recognition,
measurement or disclosure that is reasonable in the context of the applicable financial
reporting framework.

3. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which IAS 10 Events
after the reporting period requires adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or
disclosed.

4. The effecls of uncorrecled misstatements are immaterial, both individually and in
aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole. There are no uncorrected adjustments
above £290K following audit of the 2020/21 financial statements.

Information provided
5. The Board has provided you with:

» access lo all information of which it is aware, that is relevant to the preparation of the
financial statements, such as records, documentation and other matters;

« additional information that you have requested from the Board for the purpose of the
audit; and

» unrestricled access to persons within the Trust from whom you determined it
necessary to obtain audit evidence.

6. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflecled in the
financial statements.

7. The Board confirms the following:

i. The Board has disclosed to you the results of its assessment of the risk that the
financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

Included in the Appendix to this letter are the definition of fraud, including misstatement
arising from fraudulent financial reporting and from misappropriation of assets.

fi. The Board has disclosed to you all information in relation to:
a) Fraud or suspected fraud that it is aware of and that affects the Trust and involves:
¢ management;
« employees who have significant roles in internal contral; or

= others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements:
and

b} allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the Trust's financial
statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts,
regulators or others.

In respect of the above, the Board acknowledges its responsibility for such internal
control as it determines necessary for the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. in particular, the Board
acknowledges its responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of
internal control to prevent and detect fraud and error.

8. The Board has disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspecied non-
compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing
the financial statements.

9. The Board has disclosed to you and has appropriately accounted for and/or disclosed in
the financial statements, in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and



Contingent Assets, all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should
be considered when preparing the financial statements.

10. The Board has disclosed to you the identity of the Trust's related parties and all the related
party relationships and transactions of which it is aware. All related party relationships
and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with
IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures. Included in the Appendix to this letter are the definitions
of both a related party and a related party transaction as we understand them and as
defined in IAS 24.

11. The Board confirms that all intra-NHS balances included in the Statement of Financial
Position (SOFP) at 31 March 2021 in excess of £300,000 have been disclosed to you and
that the Trust has complied with the requirements of the intra NHS Agreement of Balances
Exercise, The Board confirms that Intra-NHS balances inciudes all balances with NHS
counterparties, regardless of whether these balances are reported within those SOFP
classifications formally deemed to be included within the Agreement of Balances exercise.

12. The Board confirms that;

» The financial statements disclose all of the key risk factors, assumptions made and
uncertainties surrounding the Trust's ability to continue as a going concern as
required to provide a true and fair view and to comply with GAM.

» No material events or conditions exist that may cast significant doubt on the ability
of the Trust to continue as a going concern.

= The Board confirms that the financial statements disclose its plans for future action
relevant to the Trust's ability to continue as a going concem, and its assessment of
the feasibility of these plans.

13. The Trust is required to consolidate any NHS charitable funds which are determined to be
subsidiaries of the Trust. The decision on whether to consolidate is dependent upen the
financial materiality and governance arrangements of the charitable funds. The Board
confirms that, having considered these factors, it is satisfied that the charitable funds
should not be consolidated.

14. The Board provides the following specific representations as follows:

a) The Trust confirms that it has reviewed its Property, Plant and Equipment portfolio to
ensure that it has been classified correctly in all material aspects. This includes the
basis upon which the valuation has been delermined and the identification of assets in
use which drive the basis for valuation. The Board confirms that the valuation of land
and buildings in the financial statements is appropriate and refiects all relevant factors
impacting upon the valuation

This letter was tabled and agreed at the meeting of the Audit and Risk Committee on 8t
June 2021.

Yours sincerely
David Hawkins, Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Finance and Corporate Services, for
and on behalf of the Board of Hounslow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust



Appendix to the Board Representation Letter of Hounslow and Richmond Community
Healthcare NHS Trust: Uncorrected audit differences

The following uncorrected audit differences have been presented as part of the Audit Report
to those charged with governance and are considered by management to be immaterial to the
Trust's financial statements:

Unadjusted audit differences (£m)

1 | Dr Accruals 897 ' The Trust has provided for a number |
| Cr Receivables (997) | of NHS balances which are in dispute

' and included within the accrual

| | balance rather than an impairment to

_receivables. |



Appendix to the Board Representation Letter of Hounstow and Richmond
Community Healthcare NHS Trust: Definitions

Financial Statements

IAS 1.10 states that a complete set of financial statements comprises:

a statement of financial position as at the end of the period;
a statement of comprehensive income for the period;

a statement of changes in equity for the period;

a statement of cash flows for the period,;

notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information;

comparative information in respect of the previous period; and

a statement of financial position as at the beginning of the earliest comparative period when
an entity applies an accounting policy retrospectively or makes a retrospective restatement
of items in its financial statements, or when it reclassifies items in its financial statements.

An entity may use titles for the statements other than those used in this Standard. For example,
an enlity may use the title ‘statement of comprehensive income’ instead of ‘statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income'.”

Material Matters

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters thal are

material, [AS 1.7 and IAS 8.5 state that:

“Information is material if amitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on
the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial information about a specific
reporting entity.

Materiality depends on the nature or magnitude of information, or both. An enlity assesses
whether information, either individually or in combination with other information, is material in
the context of its financial statements taken as a whole,

Information is obscured if it is communicated in a way that would have a similar effect for
primary users of financial statemenls to omitting or misstating that information. The following
are examples of circumstances that may result in material information being obscured:

a)

b}

c)
d)

e)

information regarding a material item, transaction or other event is disclosed in the
financial statements but the language used is vague or unclear;

information regarding a material item, transaction or other event is scattered throughout
the financial statements;

dissimilar items, transactions or other events are inappropriately aggregated,;
similar iterns, transactions or other events are inappropriately disaggregated; and
the understandability of the financial statements is reduced as a resuit of material

information being hidden by immalerial information {o the extent that a primary user is
unabie to determine what information is material.



Assessing whether information could reasonably be expected 10 Influence decisions made by
the primary users of a specific reporting entity’s general purpose financiat statements requires
an entity to consider the characteristics of those users while also considering the entity’s own
circumstarnces.

Many existing and polential stakehalders cannot require reporting entities to provide information
directly to them and must rely on general purpose financial statements for much of the financial
information they need. Financial stalements are prepared for users whe have a reasonable
knowledge of business and economic activities and wha review and analyse the information
diligently. At times, even well- informed and diligent users may need to seek the aid of an
adviser to understand informalion about complex economic phenomena.”

Fraud

Fraudulent financial reporting involves intentional misstatements including omissions of
amounts or disclosures in financial statements to deceive financial statement users.

Misappropriation of assets involves the theft of an entity’s assels. It is often accompanied by
false or misleading records or documents in order to conceal the fact that the assets are
missing or have been pledged without proper autharisation.

Error

An error is an unintentional misstatement in financial statements, including the omission of
an amount or a disclosure. .

Prior period errors are omissions from, and misstatements in, the entity’s financial
statements for one or more prior periods arising from a failure to use, or misuse ol, refiable
information that;

a) was available when financial statements for those periods were authorised for issue: and

b) could reasonably be expected to have been obtained and taken into account in the
preparation and presentation of those financial slatements.

Such errors include the effects of mathematical mistakes, mistakes in applying accounting
policies, oversights or misinterpretations of facts, and fraud.

Management

For the purposes of this letter, references to*management” should be read as “management and,
where appropriate, those charged with governance”.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its financial
statements (referred to in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures as the “reporting entity").

a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to a reporting entity if that
person:

i. has contro! or joint control over the reporting entity;
i. has significant influence over the reporting entity; or

ii. is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent
of the reporting entity.

b) An entity is relaled to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:

i.  The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group {which means
that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

i. ~One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or jaint



venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

i, Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.



vi.

Vil

viii.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third
antity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the
reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting entity. If the reporting entity is itself
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the reporting entity.

The entity is controlled, or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which itis a part, provides key management
personnel services to the reporting entity or to the parent of the reporting entity.

Related party transaction

A transter of resources, services or obligations between a reporting entity and a related party,
regardless of whether a price is charged.






PERFORMANCE

Annual report and accounts 2020-21

Performance analysis
Clinical Services

Following the publication of the NHS Long Term Plan and a recent White Paper, we continue to
boost our out-of-hospital care and deliver urgent community response and recovery support in
Primary Care Networks (PCNs).

HRCH is proud to be finalists in three categories of this year's 2021 Health Service Journal (HSJ)
Value Awards for our work with Hounslow Integrated Care Partnership and the Trust's integrated
Community Recovery Service (ICRS).

Outcomes and benefits commended in our applications have highlighted:

* improved collaboration throughout the coronavirus pandemic

» reduced acute attendances and impact of high intensity users, as well as improving care for
frail patients and those discharged from hospital

« improved person-centred/holistic care and patients’ skills/confidence in managing their own
long-term conditions

« quality improvement initiative on the intravenous therapy (IV) pathway from acute medical
services to ICRS to prevent unnecessary hospital admissions

Primary care

Hounslow GP Consortium took a step forward in its partnership with HRCH in 2020. The
Consortium asked us to host its management team and offer back office support to GP practices,
providing holistic healthcare for local residents. This follows the setting up of our Hounslow
Working Together partnership two years ago, out of a shared belief that we can provide better care
for our patients by working more closely together.

The move is in line with the NHS Long Term Plan’s aim to integrate primary and community care. It
also offers individual practices back office support that smaller GP surgeries previously did not
have, leaving them free to carry out their clinical work. Our shared goals are to work together to:
improve healthcare for local people and make better use of our resources; join up and coordinate
healthcare services in better ways for the borough; and break down organisational barriers by
creating multidisciplinary teams who focus on patients’ individual needs.

We already have a joint primary care networks (PCN) team of operational managers, plus clinical
and practice support workers, who coordinate care and free up time for clinicians to concentrate on
patients rather than paperwork. HRCH also recruits and hosts a range of people who work across
PCNs, including physiotherapists, pharmacists, paramedics and project leads.

Care homes

During 2020-21, working closely with our commissioners, we set up a Care Home Support Team in
Richmond. They support 17 care homes in the borough and help residents who need healthcare to
stay safely in their homes, so they can avoid going to hospital if they do not need hospital care.
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This team has been very successful and has seen a reduction in patients being admitted to
Kingston Hospital. As a result, we entered the team for a Nursing Times Award in 2020.

We are proud the team went over and above during COVID-19, including providing mutual aid, eg,
supporting with the provision of personal protective equipment (PPE). The team visited homes in
person, helping to keep care safe for residents and supporting staff with expert training and advice.

Other outcomes were:

s decreased emergency admissions

¢ improved partnership working

« end-of-life improvements

s 24-hour support for homes through night nursing services, ensuring continuity

« supporting residents with dementia, linking with safeguarding/dementia teams

s supporting unqualified carers during COVID-19

« daily contact with homes during COVID-18, supporting complex residents/preventing
admissions, including medication support

+ building personal relationships, trust, credibility with homes/private providers

The team helped local councils and GP practices to provide education and clinical guidance to
care homes to keep residents safe and also organised COVID-19 vaccinations for this particularly
vulnerable group of people.

In Hounslow, 9 older people’s care homes and 17 learning disability homes needed our skilled
nurses and knowledge to work with GP leads to provide integrated care, including vaccinating
residents with learning disabilities who commonly have severe needle phobia. The Hounslow Care
Home Support Team vaccinated about 850 people who have learning disabilities.

Wheelchair Hub

Our Wheelchair Hub provides an exceptional service to users of all ages in the borough of
Hounslow and we are extremely proud of its high quality. One area of outstanding practice is the
team’s innovative sleep system for children with complex conditions.

This helps prevent secondary complications and deformities, reducing hospital admissions and
improving overall health and quality of life for service users. Parents report the positive impact this
has had on children’s lives, including being more relaxed at school and during personal care.

The Wheelchair Hub in Hounslow finished in the top three in the Evaluating Health and Social Care
Practice category at the Advancing Healthcare Awards 2020.

The Hub's nomination was for its sleep system service, which caters for the needs of clients with
some of the most complex disabilities. The system enables people to relax and manage their
posture during the night. The team worked collaboratively with service users, using research and
outcome measures to evaluate the effectiveness of the service, which has now been running for
four years.

The Advancing Healthcare Awards recognise and celebrate the work of allied health professionals,

healthcare scientists and pharmacists, and those who work alongside them in support roies,
leading innovative healthcare practice across the UK.
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One You

One You Hounslow and One You Merton have been supporting clients in the community
throughout the pandemic on physical and mental wellbeing. Following research on the impact of
COVID-19 across both boroughs, it was clearer than ever there was a need to raise awareness of
local health inequalities. Research identified core groups not engaging or accessing services
available to them due to like communication, lack of knowledge and cultural differences.

From this research, the services developed a wellbeing champion training programme for
volunteers and community sector organisations to be able to support people in the local community
by promoting local health and wellbeing services to help people make informed choices.

The training incorporates inequalities in health, importance of promoting improvements in health
and wellbeing, how to effectively communicate health messages, and impact of behaviour change
on health and wellbeing.

Wellbeing Champions take a proactive approach in the community or groups, to engage people to
build and strengthen good health and wellbeing, build confidence, knowledge and skills in the
community, and work with local organisations to improve community health and wellbeing.

National and local evidence shows engaging communities improves health and wellbeing as it:

» encourages health-enhancing attitudes and behaviour

« contributes to developing community cohesion

» increases confidence and self-esteem and gives communities an increased sense of control
over decisions affecting their lives

Redeployment Hub

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, we set up a Staff Redeployment Hub over 2020-21 to
redeploy clinical and non-clinical staff into frontline services and support them in their new
placements, such as in community nursing and our community hospital inpatient unit, where the
demands and complexity of patient needs has increased over the year, as well as externally, eg, to
the Nightingale Hospital. We have had the most amazing response from our staff in their flexibility,
spirit and volunteering to work across roles (corporate, clinical, externally and internally).

Digital consultations for patients

We rolled out virtual patient consultations across the trust, using the Attend Anywhere platform.
This allowed us to offer flexible assessments and care when face-to-face services were
constrained. Since March 2020, we have offered about 25,000 virtual consultations, totalling about
11,000 hours. Feedback from patients has been overwhelmingly positive:

“I was anxious of how the video would go but the therapists were brilliant and
did a fantastic job and also gave me the information me and my son needed.”

Inpatient unit

The Pamela Bryant Unit for inpatients at Teddington Memorial Hospital supported patient flow
across the local healthcare systemn by adapting from a rehabilitation ward to admit patients with a
positive COVID-19 diagnosis who no longer needed acute hospital care. We also opened up
additional surge beds by adapting one of our therapy gyms into a ward annex te support additional
demand.
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Over the last year, the ward staff cared for COVID-19 positive patients, working closely with our
local hospitals and Your Healthcare in Kingston to manage patients safely with a range of post-
COVID-19 needs at a crucial time for care.

COVID-19 recovery team

We worked in partnership with the Richmond Wellbeing Service to set up a COVID-19
multidisciplinary team to support continued recovery in the community. NHS England guidance
suggests that for many of those who have survived, the virus and the required treatments will have
a lasting impact on their health.

We set up a weekly virtual muiltidisciplinary team meeting with our Richmond Response and
Rehabilitation Team (RRRT), Respiratory Care Team, Community Neuro Rehabilitation Team, and
Richmond Wellbeing Service. Each patient has a management plan reviewed and coordinated
between the services, with close links to our MSK Physiotherapy and Diabetes services.

Children’s services

Children’s audiology

During 2020-21 our paediatric audiology service was awarded the Improving Quality in
Physiological Diagnostic Services (IQIPS) standard for the fifth year in a row. IQIPS is a
professional assessment and accreditation scheme which recognises healthcare organisations that
ensure patients receive consistently high-quality services, tests, examinations and procedures,
delivered by competent staff working in safe environments.

The team was also shortlisted for the Team of the Year Award at the British Academy of Audiology
Annual Awards 2020. This recognised the team's efforts to improve service and experiences for
patients. In addition, team leader Bhavisha Parmar was nominated for Audiologist of the Year. It
was an honour to be nominated for these awards, a testament to everyone’s continued hard work
and dedication to the service, which is recognised by all our stakeholders and service users.

Children’s therapies

Over the past year we have worked closely with children and young people in Richmond, in
partnership with Achieving for Children, seeking their feedback and engagement to improve their
experiences of our services.

Through our Children and Young People’s Participation meetings we:

+ developed ‘all about me’ guides to support a positive experience when attending clinics
« co-created service information leaflet, eg, a trip to the hearing clinic

« created children’s name badges

+ developed appointment letters for children

» created a video about children’s therapy appointments

« produced information for children about wearing PPE

In Hounslow, the Children’s Occupational Therapy and Speech and Language Therapy Team were
transferred from the Hounslow School's Education Therapy Hub and recommissioned from HRCH
after a 6-year gap. This service cares for children with Education and Health Care Plans (EHCPs)
in special schools and settings.
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They provided advice for parents and families following telephone and virtual reviews and
discussions. They also liaised regularly with school staff and made sure they knew how to contact
therapists with any queries or concerns.

The team identified the most vulnerable children and have been providing virtual input and advice
throughout the pandemic. Despite the challenges facing the team and the schools this year, they
worked well together to support children and families.

Schools vaccination programmes

Our school age vaccination programme in nine south London boroughs was one of the few
services to complete the Diphtheria, Tetanus and Polio (DTP) and Meningitis ACWY vaccination
programmes, despite national lockdown and school closures, reducing the risk of the resurgence of
these diseases. We vaccinated children in school and community settings, working closely with our
public health partners to identify suitable venues.

When the flu vaccination programme was extended to include year 7, we recruited many more
immunisation nurses and completed the programme on time, with higher-than-expected uptake,
even with restrictions in place. The teams were congratulated by NHS England on their
achievements during the pandemic and a second iockdown.

Schools vision screening

In April 2020 Hounslow School Nursing Service was commissioned to carry out vision screening in
primary schools. Screening identifies vision impairments in children aged 4 to 5 who can then get
the right treatment at the right time, as recommended by the UK National Screening Committee.

The School Nursing Service worked in partnership with the orthoptist-led service provided by
Chelsea and Westminster Hospital Foundation NHS Trust. This gave them access to orthoptic-led
screener training and the local community orthoptic provider, to develop referral pathways.

While the programme was delayed during the pandemic, due to school closures, our nurses
regularly liaised with school staff and orthoptist leads and are working on vision screening now
schools are open again.

Breast feeding

One of the services provided by our Health Visiting service is support for mums in breastfeeding
their newborn babies. As a result of extra funding, we employed an Infant Feeding Lead. This led
to Health Visiting, the Family Nurse Partnership and local children’s centres being awarded
UNICEF level 2 Baby Friendly status.

The Infant Feeding Lead trained staff, produced a joint Hounslow Council and HRCH infant feeding
policy and developed strong links with National Childbirth Trust (NCT) Baby Cafeé breastfeeding
counsellors in Hounslow. As a result, new mums received the right support during the COVID-19
pandemic.

One NCT Baby Café breastfeeding counsellor said our staff and partners “all pulled together
getting the support in place ... the HV team has been a pleasure to work with. Every single person
who has rung me has been really respectful and checking that it was OK to ring and that I'm OK to
talk. What lovely sensitive people they are.” Compared to national figures, more new mums in
Hounslow are still breastieeding 6 to 8 weeks after birth (NHS Benchmarking Network 2019/20).
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Children’s nursing

Many of our Children’s Community Nursing Service patients have complex health care needs. The
challenges COVID-19 brought were widespread, not only for nursing staff but for families who look
after children who need a lot of care.

We set up quality improvement projects, eg, teaching parents to insert their children's nasogastric
tubes, administer injections, flush central lines, clean entry sites and change dressings, to name
but a few. Cur nurses were on hand but mostly carried out virtual visits to help with any problems,
training needs, continuing care assessments and discharge planning.

We made rapid changes in the pandemic and some are likely to be here to stay. Remote discharge
planning saves significant time that would ordinarily be spent travelling to various hospitals and
educating families to look after children themselves. This makes time for seeing families and
children at the right time and prevents the need to go to A&E or be admitted to hospital.

In addition, despite school closures during the third national lockdown, our Lead Asthma Nurse
stayed in contact with Hounslow staff, trained them virtually and supported them in achieving
Asthma Friendly School status, as part of an initiative across north-west London last winter.

During the pandemic, it was even more important to ensure pupils with asthma were effectively
supperted so they could piay a full and active role in school life, remain healthy and achieve their
academic potential, Poor control and management of asthma can lead to asthma attacks, which
can be fatal, so it is important that parents feel confident their schools can provide effective support
and pupils feel safe.

Part of this project relates to identifying children whose asthma is not well controlled. intervention
at an early stage will help children control their asthma and reduce school absences.

Family Nurse Partnership

Based on decades of international research, the effectiveness of the Family Nurse Partnership lies
in its home visiting model. At a time when home visits were restricted during COVID-19, we quickly
adapted to communicating via phone and video, but accessibility was a challenge for many.

Issues ranged from the practical lack of mobile phone data to lack of self-confidence to engage on
calls. Confidentiality challenges and potential for increased risk of domestic abuse added to the
new risks. Our quick fix was to offer accompanied walks to clients we were particularly concerned
about, including parents with mental health concerns or who struggled with engaging via virtual
methods, people in crowded, unsafe housing, those with child protection concerns and those with
possible domestic abuse issues.

Benefits included:

+ freer communication

e easier and more open dialogue

* role modelling — nurses able to discuss how to stimulate a child on a walk, maintaining limits
outside and how to keep social distancing.

s easier management of anxiety

o stress busting

* in some of the home setting it is impossible to stop babies and children coming too close to
them. but when they are strapped in a pushchair, this is not a risk.
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Adult services

Hounslow Diabetes Service
The Diabetes Structured Education Team received an award for
the greatest improvement in
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reduction. This was a great
achievement for the people of Hounslow, whose multicultural -
communities are at high risk of diabetes and cardiovascular disease.
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Musculoskeletal physiotherapy

Primary and community care providers are in the frontline of changes to how and where patients
receive treatment. During 2020-21, we developed a First Contact Practitioner (FCP) role to support
GP practices, as 30% of their patients have a musculoskeletal condition.

Expert MSK physiotherapists work in practices, with patients going straight to them rather than to a
GP. This has reduced pressure on GPs, while improving patient experience and patient flow,
relieving pressures on other parts of the NHS.

Adult learning disabilities

Our Hounslow Adult Learning Disabilities Health Team comprises specialist multidisciplinary health
professionals. They support people with learning disabilities who are registered with a Hounslow
GP and live locally, plus their families and carers.

In a switch to online services, the Hounslow Adult Learning Disability Health Team have been
working to support people with learning disabilities via social skills groups during the pandemic.
These proactive groups have provided direct and invaluable support in relation to issues of social
isolation, anxiety, and wider emotional wellbeing for this cohort. The social skills groups have
helped clients by easing the impact of the wider pandemic.

The team have also developed a range of online resources for families, carers and care providers
to support people with learning disabilities in key areas, ranging from dysphagia information to face
mask communication tips.

Community nursing

The community nursing service is made up of matrons and senior district nurses, plus their teams
of community nurses and healthcare assistants. They provide community healthcare services for
mainly housebound patients who may:

e be acutely unwell

e have long-term conditions

« need palliative care

* require intensive and technological care
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During the pandemic the community nursing service has done an amazing job of caring for patients
in their own homes, including patients with a COVID-19 diagnosis. The community nursing service
in Hounslow and Richmond went above and beyond to care for their patients during the pandemic.
The trust also acknowledges and thanks all our colleagues who were redeployed to this service to
help support them during the pandemic.

Urgent care

Our Teddington and Hounslow Urgent Treatment Centres (UTC) had a challenging year managing
patients without a known COVID-19 status. However, this did not deter our people from providing
high-quality, safe patient care.

During the pandemic Teddington UTC saw fewer patients than usual, with 26,468 patients
attending with a variety of complaints, including minor ilinesses in adults and children, limb
fractures and other minor injuries. The average performance for the UTC against the four-hour
standard was 99.9%.

We would like to thank UTC staff who were redeployed to other services, such as our inpatient
unit, during the pandemic.

Similarly, our Hounslow UTC at West Middlesex Hospital also had a challenging year, although it
saw fewer patients than usual, with 66,574 patients, 99.4% of whom were seen within four hours.

Urgent care in the community: Richmond Rapid Response and Rehabilitation Team
and Hounslow Integrated Community Response Service

These are multidisciplinary and multi-agency teams who work with patients referred to them by
local hospitals and other community services. They aim to help people avoid unnecessary hospital
care and can respond within two hours. Our response services have been involved in work to
improve care and response to patients.

Both these teams were extremely busy during the pandemic, especially in supporting our local
acute services with getting patients home safely and undertaking discharge to assess in the
community. We would like to thank all our people redeployed to this service during the pandemic.

Shared care of community intravenous treatment service

Our Integrated Care Response Service launched a launched a shared care community 1V service
in collaboration with West Middlesex Hospital's Ambulatory Emergency Care Service. We now
carry out intravenous treatment in patients’ homes, including antibiotics and fiuid therapy for
conditions such as cellulitis, sepsis and dehydration.

It is more convenient for patients not to go to hospital for treatment, relieves pressure on busy
hospitals and cuts unnecessary costs, even more important during the COVID-19 pandemic.

We also developed strong professionai relationships, focused on patients, with a holistic and
individualised care plan for everyone, agreed collaboratively, working as one team. Feedback from
patients has been positive and the service has halved comparable costs. This service development
has been shortlisted for the HSJ Value Awards 2021.
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COVID-19 services - integrated discharge hub

Senior staff from the Hounslow Community Recovery Service and Continuing Health Care Team
joined West Middlesex Hospital's Discharge Team to set up a discharge hub, along with Hounslow
Council, Hounslow CCG and the voluntary sector.

We were asked to lead on helping patients with health or social care needs to leave hospital safely.
The Hub provides clinical expertise, advice, support and planning for all patients leaving West
Middlesex Hospital and has strong working relationships with community services and other local
discharge hubs to help patients who don't live in our area.

From April 2020 to March 2021 it supported 7,000 patients. Alongside this, the Community
Recovery Service set up a community referral hub as a coordination point for other hospitals
discharging Hounslow patients.

Most patients with health and social care needs who left hospital had a same-day or next-day
assessment at home, to ensure they were safe and plan next steps for their recovery. The
Community Recovery Service completed about 2,000 of these visits.

For three months, with leadership from the Integrated Community Response Service and
coordination support from the Primary Care Patient Coordination Service, the team worked on
discharge planning, therapies and clinical leadership for residents at Coniston Lodge Care Home.
All these initiatives have been supported by redeployed staff in both waves of the pandemic.

Working with pariners

The NHS has a long-standing ambition to make integrated care a reality everywhere, with a focus
on improving care and tackling health inequalities at borough level. Indeed, the publication of a
recent white paper, which encourages structural change in the way services are delivered,
proposes to bring commissioners and providers together across health and local government, as
well as patients and the wider community.

This is in order to: better understand the needs of the local population, jointly plan how they can
keep people healthy, treat them when they are unwell, reduce unwarranted variation, and ensure
that care is delivered in the right care setting.

The spirit of this has never been more evident than through the COVID-18 pandemic. Different
parts of the local health and care system have broken out of traditional models in the best interests
of patients. HRCH has placed a huge emphasis on supporting local partners, seeking to be an
indispensable provider across three boroughs, (Hounslow, Richmond and Kingston).

HRCH has not only offered outstanding quality care and areas of excellence, it has played major
roles in systems leadership through significant times of change. At HRCH, we want to continue this
momentum, ensuring the patient is at the centre of everything we do, co-producing services to
meet the needs of local people in better ways.

Annual Report 2020/21 page 9 of 71



Through the pandemic, examples of how HRCH offered support to partners in Hounslow,
Richmond and Kingston boroughs included:

» joint planning with partners in our response and recovery during the COVID-19 pandemic

» supporting local care homes

« supporting vulnerable patients who were shielding at home

+ ensuring patients had one contact person to liaise with health and social care services,
streamlining face-to-face care and minimising potential risks to patients, families and carers

* collaborative development of COVID-19 rehabilitation pathways

= supporting the roll out of the COVID-19 vaccination programme

Hounslow

In Hounslow, the Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) has set out its vision for partnership working.
This includes tackling population health and inequalities, integrated care for patients who are
elderly and frail and a single-team approach at HRCH to delivering primary and community
services.

in line with the North West London CCG leadership model for place-based partnership, Hounslow
has an ICP senior leadership team, This is chaired by HRCH's Director of Clinical Services and
Transformation for Hounslow and North West London, in a new system role of ICP Lead Director.

HRCH has also formalised joint working with Hounslow primary care networks and clinical directors
via the Hounslow Working Together partnership. A joint PCN back office team (including a Director
of Primary Care Networks, operational management, clinical, and practice support roles) has been

working to coordinate care and free up capacity in primary care.

The partnership has jointly developed additional roles in GP practices, with support from HRCH.
We are supporting recruitment and hosting roles like first contact physiotherapists, pharmacists,
social prescribers, paramedics and clinical transformation project leads. Areas of focus include:

= recruiting additional clinical roles in line with the primary care Direct Enhanced Scheme (DES)
requirements

» promoting and increasing use of Coordinate My Care (CMC) — a confirmed commitment by all
partners in Hounslow

= joint planning of estates/sites and management of patient flow/prioritised patients

Further, HRCH and Hounslow GP Consortium have reviewed the benefits of an alliance, such

as greater corporate integration, alignment in the delivery of primary and community care, and
supporting/creating additional capacity for the consortium team. As such, the consortium has now
been fully incorporated into HRCH.

Richmond

The Richmond Community in Health Partnership (RCHiP} was established in 2016 between HRCH
and Richmond General Practice Alliance (RGPA). Through the partnership, a number of pathways
and care models have been redesigned across health and care partners. The development of the
locality model of care and more multidisciplinary team working has continued and moved into the
development of primary care networks (PCNs).
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HRCH continues to work closely with RGPA, PCN clinical directors and other primary care
representatives via RCHIP at an executive, managerial and clinical level.

Key areas of focus during the pandemic have been on supporting COVID-19 and pos- COVID-19
patients in the community and in the inpatient ward at Teddington Memorial Hospital.

HRCH is also fully engaged in local transformation programmes and the Director of Clinical
Services and Transformation for Richmond and South West London is leading the system’s urgent
and emergency care transformation programme.

Kingston

Over the last year, South West London (SWL) Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) has supported
a move towards a single community contract for Kingston and Richmond. HRCH and Your
Healthcare are working in partnership to deliver community healthcare services in the boroughs of
Kingston and Richmond.

This new partnership arrangement is a great opportunity to work together, taking best practice from
both organisations and using expertise and resources to do more for local patients.

This is in line with the Government’s recent white paper, which includes proposals to make
integrated care a reality and encourages greater levels of collaboration between health and care
organisations.

Next steps x

Over the next year, alongside the white paper’'s aspirations for integrated provider groups and
systems, HRCH will continue to prioritise partnerships and borough-based integrated
transformation/recovery programmes on both sides of the river, creating organisational models that
will ensure the sustainability of care closer to home for the future.
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Measuring and monitoring performance

Measuring performance

Measurements of performance may be set nationally, agreed locally with commissioners, or
devised by the trust itself to monitor improvements in care, safety and service delivery. These were
integral in supporting the trust in its response to the COVID-19 pandemic

In addition to producing regular, scheduled performance reports, the trust produces reports on
request for managers. HRCH also has a business intelligence portal on the staff extranet, which
allows managers to access useful performance information.

Monitoring performance

Our performance management framework acknowledges the national context, as well as
addressing local quality and service priorities. HRCH has a culture of continuous improvement,
using the performance management cycle, plus a system of performance reporting against agreed
measures and quality priorities.

The monthly performance scorecard allows continuous monitoring of specific datasets such as
quality and finance, service specific information and deviation from commissioned targets. This
information is used to monitor compliance with service standards and contract review and is used
to populate national external data sets, as set out below

Planning and setting KPIs
and service objectives

Communicating
results and improving Monitoring activit
performance Performance and outco?nes :
Management
Using data for reports Collecting data and
and decision making measuring results

The scorecard is reported to the performance executive committee, finance and performance
board sub-committee, and the trust board itself. All reports are monitored and discussed at these
meetings to identify reasons for any deviation from expected performance, as well as reviewing
progress with action plans to remedy underperformance.

In addition, sub-committee chairs submit reports to the board to highlight areas of assurance or
where further actions are needed. The trust continues to develop its performance scorecard report
to ensure we are monitoring issues that affect the delivery of high-quality care and has been
commended by NHS England/improvement for use of statistical process control (SPC) charts.
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As part of a community benchmarking network, we are integrating benchmarking data into reports
to provide greater assurance and contextualise our performance against peers and other local
organisations.

Board sub-committees receive reports on subject areas within their terms of reference, such as
quarterly performance reports on outcomes against quality priorities, patient experience, infection
prevention and control, and safeguarding, together with annual reports in these areas.

Contractual performance reports are reviewed internally each month by the performance executive
committee and finance and performance board sub-committee.

During the pandemic, commissioner meetings were temporarily suspended. Despite this, we
maintained our internal performance management cycle. Using legacy metrics, the trust continued
to monitor performance management cycle activity and waiting times, among other indicators.

We also discussed additional performance reports at COVID-19 working group meetings. These
underpinned our response, supported staff in the delivery of essential clinical services and helped
in our restart process.

Performance information was essential in the delivery of our vaccination programme, allowing us to
be an essential contributor to vaccinations for staff, plus housebound and vulnerable patients.

During 2020-21, we reported monthly to NHS England/Improvement, which supports and holds
NHS provider organisations to account for consistently safe, high-quality, compassionate care for
patients in local health systems that are financially sustainable. NHS England/Improvement
assessed HRCH on its financial outturn performance, including agency staffing expenditure.

The trust continues to use the national single oversight framework (SOF) as a fundamental
structure on which it bases performance reports. Alongside this, model hospital indicators have
expanded to include all areas of finance, workforce, operational delivery, and estates.

Finally, the trust publishes its annual outcomes on workforce race and disability equality standards
(WRES and WDES) and against the NHS Equality Delivery System framework. It also publishes
analysis and actions against all protected characteristic in its annual Public Sector Equality Report
(PSED).

Please see more detail further on in this report in the Embracing equality, diversity and inclusion
section.
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Performance 2020-21

The trust reports performance against the five CQC quality domains to ensure a continued focus
on quality. The year-end position against a suite of indicators used to measure performance is
outlined in the following tables. Unless indicated otherwise, the figure quoted is the average for the
year or the total number in 2020-21. Further detait is provided under the headings of:

« Clinical Services ¢ Quallty » Workforce ¢ Finance » Information Governance = Stj_sdéinabi!ity

SAFE

People are protected from abuse and avoidable harm.
KPI DESCRIPTION Ln

|TARGET |ACTUAL ||

Incidence of Clostridium difficile 2 0 ]
{Incidence of MRSA o 0 [
Never events occurring in month o 0 O

edication errors causing serious harm o 0 e
|Inpatient falls per 1,000 occupied bed days 8.6 - 9.37 c

Note: All areas rated red are scrutinised by senior managers and committees and assigned
remedial action plans

EFFECTIVE

People’s care, treatment and support achieve good outcomes, promote a good quality of life and
are based on the best available evidence.

KPI DESCRIPTION

~_ |ramcET JAcTuAaL T ]

Percentage of staff appraised 90% 89% C

|Percentage of staff — statutory & mandatory training 90% 92% ®
Clinical supervision — % of staff) 90% 90.3% o

Note: due to the coronavirus pandemic the Trust suspended appraisals Apr-Jul 2020 and
Jan 2021.
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CARING

Involving people in their care and treating them with compassion, kindness, dignity and respect.
KPI DESCRIPTION TARGET ACTUAL | !

Trust composite FFT — % recommend 90% 94.4% 2
Trust composite FFT — % not recommend 10% 1.3% P
Staff FFT — % recommend the trust as a place to receive care and . .
ftreatment (average at year end) 67% 83.1% bt
Staff FFT — % not recommend the trust as a place to receive care . .

|and treatment (average at year end) 33% 3.3% .
[Patient Survey — % patients who felt their privacy and dignity were . .
respected 95% 98% L d
|Patient Survey — % of patients who feit they received their care in a . .

way that was right for them 95% 98.6% ®

Note: during coronavirus pandemic FFT and patient survey data collections were paused.
Patient FFT and patient survey resumed December 2020. Staff FFT figures are from national
staff survey.

RESPONSIVE
Organising services so that they are tailored to people’s needs.
B IS —
TARGET|ACTUAL ||

KPI DESCRIPTION

A&E: maximum waiting time of four hours from arrival to admission/
I(ransfer/ discharge

95% 99.8% L

RTT waiting times for non-admitted pathways: percentage within

18 weeks 92% 86.9% [ ]

IRTT waiting times incomplete pathways: percentage within 18

weeks 92% 83.7% @

Percentage of delayed transfers of care 7.5% 1.4% ©

Note: All areas rated red are scrutinised by senior managers and committees and assigned
remedial action plans
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WELL LED

Leadership, management and governance of the organisation to assure the delivery of high-quality
person-centred care, support learning and innovation, and promote an open and fair culture,
KPIDESCRIPTION E :

—[TAnGeT ACTUAL

Inpatient Friends & Family Test (FFT) response rate 30% 54.3% ®
A&E FFT (Teddington urgent treatment centre and Hounslow

urgent treatment centre response rate) 5% 4.3% ®
Staff FFT — % recommend the trust as a place to work (year-end) 61% 74.9% ®
Staff sickness 3.2% 4.1% L
Staff turnover 15.5% 11.5% ®
Vacancy rate 10% 7.5% Q

Temporary costs and overtime as a percentage of total pay bill

(reported a month in arrears) 20% 13.2% 3]

Note: during coronavirus pandemic FFT data collections were paused. Patient FFT resumed
in December 2020 and Staff FFT figures are from national staff survey.

Staff sickness figure is 3.6% if you discount COVID-19 sickness rates.

All areas rated red are scrutinised by senior managers and committees and assigned
remedial action plans
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Quality

Our Journey to Outstanding (J20) quality improvement programme is our framework for quality
improvement and assurance of compliance with CQC standards. The accountable officer for
quality and the CQC until May 2020 was Donna Lamb, director of nursing and non-medicai
professionals. She was succeeded by Sarah Shingler from May 2020 for a year.

Registration with the Care Quality Commission 2020-21

We are registered with the Care Quality Commission (CQC) without any conditions. With other
NHS trusts, we participated in a review of COVID-19 PPE and infection prevention and control
arrangements in 2020-21, which were commended by CQC inspectors. Our last full inspection was
in 2018, in adult community services, end of life care, and urgent care services. We were rated
Good in all services and domains of quality, safe, effective, caring, responsive, and well led.

We were anticipating an inspection in 2020-21 and submitted our Provider Information Request in
March 2020, but the pandemic caused the CQC to reorganise its inspection regime. In addition,
Teddington Memorial Hospital was registered as a temporary alternative discharge destination
(TADD) as an interim measure, to support arrangements for patients before they tested negative
for COVID-19 and could, therefore, return to their care homes.

CareQuality - Last rated
Commission 19 October 2018

Hounslow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust

Qverall
rating

Effective Canng Responsive  Well led Overall

BEAaEEs
BB
=3 53 53 53 £
E e = E) EE
o | oo e ] oo e ]

Commumity end of hife
Chre

Community health
inpahent senvices

Community health
services for adults

Community health
services for children.
young people and families

Urgent care services.
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Overarching Journey to Outstanding focus for 2020-21

Our quality and clinical strategy 2019-23 strengthens our mission to provide outstanding care and
services that we and our families would want to use. Its purpose is to provide a clear framewaork for
delivering outstanding services to our patients, service users, families and carers.

The overall trust strategy says that, by 2023, we will be at the forefront of improving the health and
wellbeing of local people. Our patients and service users will be able to say they have had
outstanding experiences and we will be able to demonstrate that care is consistently safe and
effective.

Following on from that, our quality and clinical strategy supports our belief that being outstanding
comes from a consistent approach and demonstrable evidence of:

o quality improvement
» patient and public engagement/co-production
s a strong safety culture

QOur quality priorities align with annual deliverables from our quality and clinical strategy based on:
o patient safety — building a strong safety culture

« clinical effectiveness — embedding quality improvement
» patient experience - strengthening patient and public engagement and co-production

Patient safety Clinical effectiveness Patient experience

Build on our culture of keeping  Staff to be trained and Fully develop an approach that
people safe and develop a engaged in/using quality puts people at the heart of
safety culture which places a improvement methodology in  care, to improve service

high level of importance on the our journey of continuous quality, engaging in continuing
management of safety, improvement. service delivery, making
including beliefs, values and changes to services or
attitudes. redesigning care pathways.
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Quality priorities

We identify three quality priorities each year in the domains of patient safety, patient experience
and clinical effectiveness. We also set several other priorities to improve quality of care. However,
the three below are the priorities against which we report progress in our annual Quality Account.

1. Improving patient safety

Ensure staff receive feedback and learning is
shared widely.

Build on our culture of being open, honest
and transparent when things go wrong.

Build consideration of human factors into
how we investigate incidents.

Ensure we close the loop in our responses to
patient safety alerts and NICE guidelines, to
ensure assurance of continuous
improvement.

2. Improving clinical effectiveness

Ensure there is a flexible and responsive
training programme, appropriate to all levels
of staff.

Provide quality improvement (Ql) support
through a network of champions and
resources.

Evidence that Qi methodology has been used
to drive improvement in care from audit and
NICE review, demonstrating utilisation of
evidence to drive improvement.

Demonstrate a trend of increasing incident
reporting and decreasing levels of harm
from incidents,

Provide a flexible and open approach to
learning across the trust.

Develop our learning and training from
serious incidents and the role of human
factors.

Develop a process for assurance; closing
of loops; implementing actions for
continuous improvement, patient safety
alerts (CAS) and NICE guidelines.

Share learning between urgent care and
rapid response (UTC, ICRS and RRRT).

Have a training programme and awareness
that deliver an appropriate level of training
for all staff on Ql.

Support teams with their QI projects, using
QI methodology.

Develop internal support for Ql, including a
skills bank.

Develop a central hub for registration of QI
projects and outcomes.
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3. Improving patient experience

Embed and further develop Always Events, Have representation of various protected

sharing learning from what we've done well.  characteristics on the patient engagement
forum.

Develop an integrated model of public

engagement with primary care and other Involve patients and carers in co-design of

stakeholders. any service changes.

Ensure we are inclusive in our approach to Develop a network of patient safety
engagement. partners

Scope the feasibility of collaborative working
with local organisations, to enhance
engagement work.

Important achievements in 2020-21

0 medication errors causing serious harm

0 never events

94% of patients on average reported they would recommend our services to their
friends and family (from December when FFT nationally restarted)

98% of patients, on average reported their privacy and dignity were respected

Monitoring quality performance

As reported elsewhere in this report, we review all the information available to us about quality of
care in the services we provide. We produce a wide range of reports for internal and external
monitoring and performance management each month, as well as action plans for rectifying any
issues. For further details of improvements in 2020-21, our quality account will be available online
at htips://www hrch.nhs.uk/about-us/quality from mid-December 2021.

Patient feedback

We have an online system for collecting patient feedback, clinical audits and other surveys.
Feedback from patients is collected using various methods, such as iPads, kiosks, comment cards,
electronic links and our website.

We also use paper surveys when electronic means are not appropriate and upload resuits to the
system. Due to the pandemic, the collection of FFT feedback stopped in April 2020 and restarted in
December 2020. This affected the amount of feedback we received. This year 7,525 people told us
about their care and treatment, compared to 25,698 in 2019-20.
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As part of this year's patient feedback:

9870 of patients said they were treated with respect and in dignified ways

98. 80/0 of patients said they felt they had been listened to

Friends and Family Test (FFT)

Our patients are positive about our services and would recommend our services to their friends
and family if they needed similar care or treatment. In 2020-21, 94% of our patients said they
would recommend our services to their friends and family.

Listening to what patients tell us

Compliments

Most patients appreciate the kindness, care and expertise of our colleagues and share their
appreciation with us. We record and report all compliments and are pleased to report we received
542 formal compliments in 2020-21, compared to 434 in 2019-20.

These numbers do not capture the many lovely expressions of thanks patients regularly share with
our teams. We are always grateful when patients and families take the time to tell us how much
they appreciate our care, as we want to provide the kind of care we would want our families to
receive. The word cloud below captures what people say about our services and our colleagues in
feedback that we captured on our electronic patient feedback system in 2020-21.
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Complaints

In 2020-21, we had 63 formal complaints and nine joint compiaints that required detailed
investigation, plus 198 enhanced PALS enquiries that were resolved at a local level, a total of 271.
In 2019-20 we had 80 formal complaints and 187 enhanced PALS enquiries, a total of 267. This
suggests complainants want their complaints to be handled as quickly as possible but investigated
properly. We respond in the way that is right for each complainant, which means more complaints
receive an immediate response from the service manager or lead clinician to resolve the issue.
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The top three themes of complaint are the same as those in 2019-20. Complaints about treatment/
ability and diagnosis (provision of safe and high-quality care) together represent 44% of complaints
for the year, with staif attitude at 25 %. Last year 97% of formal complaints were responded to
within 25 working days, compared to 91% the previous year.

Patient survey

We undertake an annual postal survey of 1,000 patients, focusing on a specific service to provide a
snapshot of patient satisfaction. The 2020-21 survey will survey children's community services in
Hounslow and Richmond and we will report on learning from the feedback once responses have
been analysed.

Embracing equality, diversity and inclusion

Equality, diversity and inclusion is overseen by the trust's Equality, Diversity and Inclusion (EDI)
Committee, chaired by the Director of Workforce, with a Non-Executive Director EDI lead and the
Director of Nursing as the patient executive lead. Assurance is reported via the trust's Executive
Committee.

Hounslow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust presents its Equality Report every
year, in line with specific duties for publicly funded bodies in the Equality Act (2010). We are
strongly committed to providing personal, fair and diverse services to the people we serve and
employ for three key reasons.

First, this aligns with our core equality aims to be the local community healthcare provider and
employer of choice. Secondly, we believe fundamentally in the business case for valuing diversity
and inclusion, supported by underpinning evidence that demonstrates more diverse organisations
provide higher quality care. Thirdly, this is the right thing to do from a moral and ethical
perspective, to advance fairness for our patients and staff and to eliminate discrimination.

Our ambition remains to improve the health outcomes, access and experience of all our patients,
carers, visitors, volunteers and employees. During the past year, we focused on a number of
areas. |

Working with patients and service users
Our Adult Learning Disability Heath Team set up The Good Chat Group, a name that service users
chose for themselves. It is a group made up of young men who have varying communication skills.

Our children’s services worked closely with children and young people in partnership with
Achieving for Children. They were able to seek feedback and engagement from them to improve
their experiences of accessing our services.

Through our children and young people’s participation meetings we:

developed ‘all about me’ guides to support a positive experience when attending clinics
co-created service information leaflets, eg, A trip to the hearing clinic

created name badges for children

developed appointment letters for children

created a video about children’s therapy appointments

developed information around for children about wearing PPE

O 0 0 0 0 O
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The Family Nurse Partnership (FNP) team held their annual service review virtually and involved, a
client. One of the Family Nurses attended the meeting from the client’s house. The nurse, wearing
full PPE, interviewed the client about her experiences of having a baby and receiving the service
during the pandemic. This gave the client an opportunity to have a her say and share views with
stakeholders, while also showing stakeholders the reality of client visits in PPE.

The Dementia Team advise a local charity, Brighter Together, which links care homes and
nurseries. Nursery staff had training in communication and behaviour for people living with
dementia. Two care homes have continued their visits in some form during lockdown, including
Zoom singalongs or garden visits from the nurseries.

Working with the local community

The pandemic stopped our cutreach work with the community, due to restrictions. However,
services have continued to engage with their patients by using virtual methods such as using an
online platform to carry on with clinics, called Attend Anywhere. This has really helped with patient
experience and care, at a time when patients could not attend for clinic appointments.

As part of our embracing equality, diversity and inclusion — valuing our people work we:

« launched Race Equality and Inclusion Network (REIN) to provide an open forum for our
colleagues to share their experience of the workplace in a supportive and safe environment

« launched DiverseAbilty Network to empower and support staff with a disability/ long-term health
conditions to achieve and/or maintain their potential

« appointed a-Head of Equality Diversity and Inclusion to drive and support the trust's equalities
agenda

» commissioned a reverse mentoring scheme to give our staff an opportunity to share lived
experiences, help shape and influence policies and procedures, while ensuring equality is
proactively considered

» included black, Asian and minority ethnic staff as one of the considered factors in our risk
assessment process

* ran listening in events and specific question and answer sessions to support staff groups

+ facilitated educational talks on cultural adaptability for all staff, plus resilience and mental
health awareness, and coffee break sessions for our shielding staff

» offered a diverse health and wellbeing programme, which is also covered as part of our
corporate induction

» recruited three Freedom to Speak Up Champions to continue to encourage and support staff to
feel comfortable with speaking up

* continued to publicise and promote training and development opportunities for minority
ethnicity colleagues — this year several colleagues have enrolled on the black, Asian and
minority ethnicity Capital Nurse, mental health first aiders, and strength coaching programmes

* continue to publicise and celebrate national equality and diversity initiatives such as LGBT+
History Month, Black History Month, menopause awareness, mental health awareness, and
share staff stories

+ set up a COVID-19 vaccine hesitancy Q&A session for all staff and the REIN created a factual
information handout to help staff make informed decisions

« facilitated Microsoft Teams training and devised guidance to support home working

The 2020 national Workforce Race Equality Standard lists HRCH in the top performing trusts for
percentage minority communities experiencing harassment, bullying or abuse from other staff.
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Mortality review process

NHS Engiand/improvement's national guidance on learning from deaths, published in March 2017,

states ‘community trusts should ensure their governance arrangements and processes include,
facilitate and give due focus to the review, investigation and reporting of deaths, including those
deaths that are determined more likely than not to have resulted from problems in care. Trusts
should also ensure that they share and act upon any learning derived from these processes.

The trust reports separately if any adults die in the Teddington Memorial Hospital inpatient unit or
the community and records deaths of any adults with learning disabilities through the Learning

Disability Mortality Review Programme (LeDeR) process, managed by Hounslow CCG and
Richmond CCG.

Adult Services

All deaths of patients in our inpatient care or who have been discharged within 30 days are
screened once the service becomes aware of the death

All deaths occurring while services were being provided in the carrying on of a regulated
activity or have, or may have, resulted from the carrying on of a regulated activity (eg, wrong
dose of medication} are screened once the service becomes aware of the death (reportable to
the CQC)

In addition to the mandatory list above, the trust takes a measured approach to identifying
other groups for review (frontline clinicians and managers identify any case that might warrant
review) and from which learning would be beneficial

Cases on the adult caseload are reviewed if:

there is a concern that the management of care fell short of expected clinical practice

the GP, pharmacist or any other relevant health professional requests a review

patients’ families or friends raise issues or concerns

individual members of a clinical team wish for a review to take place

the trust decides it will record the total number of deaths on a service caseload, once we are
informed of the death — these deaths may be entirely unrelated to our services, for example, if
someone dies in a road traffic accident, or one of our patients with a leg ulcer then has an
unrelated stroke

In the past year no deaths met the criteria for review at the Teddington Memorial Hospital inpatient
unit. More information is available on our website: http //'www.hrch.nhs.uk/about-us/publications-
declarations/

Annual Report 2020/21 page 24 of 71



Our people

The NHS People Plan aims to make the NHS the best place to work, with compassionate and
inclusive leadership and the delivery of 21st century care. Our people are fundamental to our
success in delivering high-quality patient care.

We are immensely proud of our staff, the care we deliver and the fact that more than 95% of our
patients consistently say they would recommend our services. We employ a skilled workforce of
around 1,200. We support them in aiming to be the best they can be, across clinical and non-
clinical services, and in contributing to the delivery of high-quality, patient-centred care.

The people we employ reflect the diverse backgrounds of the communities we serve. Our trust
board is one of the most diverse boards in the country. We are proud to have diverse staff and
board members to serve and engage with our diverse population. We celebrate diversity by
encouraging staff to bring their authentic selves to work.

Percentage of employees, leaders and board members with black and
minority ethnic backgrounds:

40.9% of employees

22.5% of leaders up to Band 8C

. 28.6% of executive directors

23.1% of board members

Gender
85.1% of employees are female
14.9% are male

Disability
12% of staff survey responders have declared a disability

Our approach to developing our workforce is set out in our Workforce Strategy and the
supplementary Learning, Development & OD Strategy, which were co-developed with staff. We
made progress on our vision of making HRCH a great place to work, but need to continually
improve our services and workforce, helped by our quality improvement {Ql) approach. This is vital
as people and their health and social care needs change, along with their expectations.

The NHS is facing another period of change, with an even greater focus on improving the way we
run our services to be as efficient as possible. Our colleagues have been rising to the challenge by
working in collaboration with health and social care partners on service redesign to meet the
changing needs of patients in north west and south west London.

Every single member of our staff is fundamental to our mission to provide care and services that
we and our families would want to use.

We are committed to constantly improving HRCH as a great place to work. We have also taken
steps to ensure we have an inclusive workforce that feels listened to and is engaged.
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One of the key parts of our strategy has been to work in a more integrated way with local GPs in
Hounslow and Richmond to design more seamless services, utilising the skills of all our workforces
via Primary Care Networks (PCNs) in each borough.

In Hounslow we established joint PCN delivery resource teams, employed by us but working for
the PCNs, which include primary care support, joint clinical transformation project leads,
pharmacists and first contact physiotherapists. We also secured funding for delivery resource
teams and infrastructure support.

Our partnership working via the Hounslow Working Together alliance was commended by the
North West London sector. Joint working is well established between HRCH and PCN clinical
directors, through strong relationships and joint resources.

In Richmond, we maintained our joint venture partnership with Richmond GP Alliance (RGPA) and
Richmond Community Healthcare in Partnership (RCHiP) provides support to PCNs and integrated
primary and community services,

Workforce performance
Over the course of 2020-21 the trust continued its senior-level focus on this key priority area.

Statutory & mandatory training 90.7%
Staff appraisa.ls 89%

Vacancy rate 7.9%

Staff turnover 11.5%

Staff sickness rates 4.1%

Equality, diversity and inclusion

Our Race Equality and Inclusion Network and DiverseAbility Network aim to offer a safe space for
staff to share their lived experiences and help shape and influence the Trusts equality and diversity
agenda. We have had great feedback from all who have attended and will continue to provide a
forum for pour staff to raise challenges and concerns.

Apprenticeships

We continued to promote apprenticeships as a gateway to careers in the NHS, including more non-
clinical apprentices, such as master’'s degrees, learning and development level 3, as well as
promoting new Nursing Associate apprentice roles.

e-Rostering
Our rostering system is embedded in the trust with 100% staff coverage and enables us to reduce
unfilled shifts and use our Bank more for temporary cover, cutting down on agency costs.
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Agile working

We reviewed all our estate to ensure it was fit for purpose for agile working, ensuring access to
technology that aids remote working. Trainers were given “Deliver virtual training with confidence”
training for mandatory and essential training through the pandemic. There are also monthly support
sessions for trainers to improve virtual delivery. Trainers received excellent feedback from staff.

Wellbeing matters

The outbreak of COVID-19 saw an increased pressure on the NHS. As a trust, our focus remains
on making staff wellbeing paramount. We adopted some innovative measures in response to the
pandemic to support and improve services for staff wellbeing and time at work.

We increased focus on strong and visible leadership, communications and engagement, inclusion
and diversity, and physical, mental and financial wellbeing.

Following the outbreak in March 2020, we set up regular virtual alf staff question and answer
sessions with the executive team and subject experts to discuss staff concerns. We created a
dedicated COVID intranet page and published regular COVID newsletters, with a wellbeing section
providing selfcare advice and tips.

We also collated and circulated an extensive information pack, with details of local and national
welibeing resources, apps and tools. These included a local helpline to listen to staff who feel
overwhelmed or anxious and signpost them to relevant support.

We offered salary advances of £1,000 to staff (to repay within 6 months) to help alleviate increased
financial pressure due to loss of earnings for some families. We engaged our minority communities
staff and circulated information about taking vitamin D supplements, as recommended by Public
Health England following the adverse impact of COVID on minority communities.

In line with social distancing rules, we moved our exercise and wellbeing classes online and
staggered timings to accommodate work-life balance.

Our wellbeing programmes are aligned with national campaigns to support health promotion
activities. Some examples include Dry January, Time to Talk in February, Ramadan and wellbeing
in March (in advance of Ramadan), stress awareness in April, mental health awareness in May
and October. Our staff health and wellbeing group are active and lead on improving wellbeing
where they work.

Our specialist diabetes team have continued to run a weight management support programme to
help employees lose weight on a low-carb diet and reduce the risk of developing type 2 diabetes
and other weight-related illnesses. They have run three cohorts till date. We also started coffee
break sessions, giving our staff an opportunity to decompress, connect and discuss wellbeing
topics.
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As part of our recovery plans, we are focusing on creating effective
teams, so people benefit from peer support and support from
managers. Wellbeing is part of our induction programme and we have HEALTHY

a wellbeing checklist to support managers. WORKPLACE

. . FOUNDATION
In recognition of efforts to support staff physical and mental health, 2020

particularly during COVID, we were awarded the London Healthy
Workplace Foundation Award by the Mayor of London.

MAYOR OF LONDON
Organisers praised our considered and well-thought-out approach to
tackling different issues, such as the stigma around mental health issues. We will continue to
invest efforts in looking after our staff to improve their wellbeing.

Flu vaccinations for patient-facing employees
We continued to use electronic forms for employees to give their consent to having the fiu vaccine

and were pleased that about 3% of patient-facing colleagues were vaccinated — our best result
ever and placing us number 2 in London and among community trusts nationally.

Valuing and recognising our colleagues

During the pandemic, we felt it was unfair to single out individuals and teams for our much-valued
annual staff awards, so we found other ways of rewarding colleagues, including recognition packs,
thank you cards, HRCH Hero 2020 badges, gift bags and free lunches, to name a few. We would
like to thank NHS Charities Together for their donations to our Charitable Fund, which helped us
reward colleagues in these ways.

We also regularly recognise and reward the hard work and accomplishments of people who go the
extra mile for local patients through our quarterly HRCH Champion Awards programme, with
individual awards for caring, respect and rising star, plus a team award for communication and
innovation.

NHS Staff Survey 2020

Each year we take part in the annual national NHS Staff Survey to receive feedback from staff on
their experience of working here, to monitor trends and measure the impact of changes we have
made in response to feedback. The results from the staff survey are incredibly important to us, as
we get to hear what people really think about working here.

The report is analysed by themes and individual questions. HRCH was the joint top trust in
London, with a combined score of 7.69 for the ten key themes of:
¢ Equality, diversity and inclusion

s Health and wellbeing

+ Immediate manager

+ Morale

¢ Quality of care

s Safe environment - bullying and harassment

» Safe environment — viclence

» Safety culture

o Staff engagement

o Team working
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We also had the best response rate of all community trusts in England (72%) and were joint first for
quality of care with a score of 7.8. We are proud to come top for a third year in a row for questions
relating to quality. We also had one of the highest scores for safe environment — violence, and staff
engagement.

We were pleased that 813 colleagues participated in the survey — our best result ever. This is
brilliant and means we have some rich, valid data from which to pull out areas of improvement on
which to focus.

We came top of all community trusts in the country in:

» ability to do my job to a standard | am personally pleased with (84.3%)
s opportunities to use my skills (76.3%)

* knowing what your responsibilities are (88.1%)

« ability to deliver care | aspire to (76.7%)

» satisfaction with quality of care | give (86.5%)

» the trust acting on concerns raised by patients (86.6%)

We improved in areas we particularly focused on last year. These include positive views about
communication and engagement with senior managers, job quality, safety, and wellbeing. Overall,
we have seen some great results and significant increases of 3% or 5%.

We were joint fourth nationally in the Freedom to Speak Up Index, which used the results of the
previous year's staff survey to understand how staft perceive the ‘speaking up’ culture. We scored
85%, against the top score of 86.5%. This is not only a fantastic achievement but highlights efforts
across the organisation to foster a culture in which we learn from mistakes and encourage
reporting of incidents to improve safety.

We saw an improvement in the Freedom to Speak up index questions:

» 97% of respondents would know how to report if they were concerned about unsafe practice
(same as last year)

* 81% would feel secure raising concerns about unsafe clinical practice (up from 79%)

s 73% were confident the trust would address their concerns (up from 71%)

Most importantly, the percentage of colieagues recommending HRCH as a place to work increased
from 71% to 75% — 6% better than the national average of 69%. Colleagues who would be happy
with the standard of care provided by the trust if a friend or relative needed treatment is up from
79% to 81%, better than the national average of 80% for community trusts.

Two additional questions were added to the survey to capture people's experiences of the COVID-
19 pandemic. The questions were on safety.

In response:
+ B4% of our staff said they feel safe at work

¢ 71% said they feel safe to speak about anything that concerns them in the organisation

Our staff who were required to work from home had an overall positive experience, unlike those
shielding at home and those working in COVID specific areas, particularly morale and wellbeing.
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We responded to this by talking to staff and making changes based on lessons learned. We
provided team interventions and support like therapy and bereavement sessions, monthly coffee
break sessions, including specific sessions for staff who are shielding, offering them an opportunity
to connect and get support from our HR team and occupational health.

While most of our latest results remain positive, we still have areas for improvement, including:

» staff wellbeing especially managing work related stress and MSK problems
e work relationship and support from immediate managers
» equality, diversity and inclusion

Our trust board will use the feedback to support improvements based on key themes or areas that
need more focused efforts from the trust. In addition, we have asked all teams to suggest at least
one thing they can do themselves to make a difference to their teams and our patients.

People development

Our learning, development and organisational development strategy has now been integrated into
the five pillars of the trust's Workforce Strategy. It was created to ensure our people get the right
support for developing their knowledge, skills, and talent. We are committed to training, learning
and development for all our people and offer a wide range of opportunities and courses to support
a culture of continuous improvement and learning.

Through creating a conducive learning environment in which employees can challenge and reflect
on their practices, we believe we can enable our staff to be the best they can be.

Many of our learning opportunities were put on hold during the pandemic and as such we have not
been able to move forward many of our excellent programmes.

In 2020-21 we:

+ continued to promote apprenticeships in the trust, offering more clinical apprenticeship
opportunities — we have recruited 4 nursing associate apprentices and now have 16
apprentices across the trust including 5 staff undertaking master’'s degrees. Although low key
national apprenticeship week was well received within the trust

s procured training to develop a cohort of 24 accredited coaches to build a coaching culture at
HRCH :

o we delivered “Deliver virtual training with confidence” training to enable mandatory and
essential training workshops throughout the pandemic

+ we delivered virtual customer service workshops using actors

s in March 2021, we launched a virtual leadership platform with NHS Elect to give staff the
opportunity to attend online webinars, e-learning around developing their leadership skills

» procured a coaching and mentoring system to enable staff to access coaching, mentoring and
an array of resources to support their development and increase performance

« evaluated and enhanced our in-house Management Essentials programme to include coaching
and mentoring support and reflective study, with 66 managers enrolled

¢ launched our executive development programme in Spring 2020; all executive directors and
their deputies completed the Outward Mindset Leadership development programme

e continued to improve clinical skills development, supporting colleagues at university with
funding from Health Education England — supplemented by directly-funded development
sessions for people applying through the training panel
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Statutory and mandatory training

In 2020-21, 90.7% of colleagues completed their statutory and mandatory training, exceeding our
target of 90%. Our training programme promotes the safety and wellbeing of all our people and
patients. It includes national core skills which have a direct impact on patient safety, such as
information governance, safeguarding adults and children, and resuscitation.

Finance and information

In 2020-21:

*  We received £85.7 million in income, mainly in the form of block contracts under a temporary
financial regime due to the COVID 19 Pandemic
We achieved break even and delivered a small surplus of £16,000
We invested £2.222 million of capital expenditure, all on purchased assets, just below our plan
of £2.224 million
We maintained our low spending on agency staff through a variety of measures, including
increasing the number of staff who work for us through bank arrangements, a positive in terms
of quality of care and lower costs; in addition, due to the pandemic, sometimes agency staff
were not available
HRCH achieved the highest rating under NHS England/improvement’s Use of Resources
framework, which rates NHS trusts against a range of financial management tests

Accounts payable - position as at 31 March 2021

Better Payment Policy Compliance (BPPC) — cumulative

. | By number . 95.5% 98.1%

By Value 98.0% 97.7%

Debtors due more than 90 days are £1.289m

Despite significant pressure on staffing, we maintained low spending on agency staff and
remained within pay rate caps, except for small numbers of specialist staff — the agency spend
cap in 2020-21 was £4,134,000; we spent £4,112,304, which was 99.5% of the cap on agency
spending and 7.1% of our overall pay bill

Cash at 31 March was £33,959,000 against a target of £25,902,000

Temporary Staff Spend

mmreem Bank 2020-21

Bank 2019-20

Spend in £'000
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Information governance and cyber security

information governance (IG) supports our statutory duty to safeguard patients’ information and
keep it confidential but available. It assures us and patients that personal information is dealt with
legally, securely, efficiently and effectively. This has been a crucial element to support the new
ways of working throughout the pandemic.

Due to our rigorous IG framework and data protection by design approach, we have been able to
work across our boundaries, sharing key data with relevant and appropriate staff in partner
organisations to help combat the virus. For example, the Trust Data Protection Officer has worked
closely with IG colleagues, as part of a number of sector wide working groups to ensure that the
trust can join the Connecting your Care project. This means that Richmond services have access
to relevant and appropriate data from key health and care organisations at point of treatment.

Effective data security guidance has also enabled staff to work remotely using new software and
business tools, while ensuring the security of patient data.

Throughout 2020, we still marked ourselves against the NHS Digital's annual Data Security and
Protection Toolkit audit. The audit assesses the trust against current data protection legislation and
related regulations, giving either a pass or fail mark.

We did submit a fully compliant assessment in March 2020, but due to the Covid pandemic the
usual timetable for the toolkit audit submission was extended from March 2020 to September 2020.
Therefore, the 2020-21 baseline audit was submitted at the end of February 2021. The full
assessment is due at the end of June 2021.

We continue to maintain high standards of information governance through a variety of measures

and actions, including:

« continued review of personal data flows to guarantee the trust operates in line with General
Data Protection Regulations (GDPR), especially with regards to temporary Covid data
processing, ensuring a register all activities is maintained and reviewed

» review of all GDPR rights requests, including the right of access, to ensure requests are
answered within the legislated timeframe, to avoid breaching GDPR and incurring large fines
from the iCO

» continuing review and revision of the trust privacy notice, giving assurance that the trust is
transparent with all data processing, this is of particular importance during the pandemic

+ completion of data protection impact assessment for all new research projects, services,
systems and applications which involve the use of personal data

» an audit of our compliance against a small sample of standards from the NHS Digital toolkit by
our external auditors

« continuing review of policies and staff guidance

* helping colleagues to complete information governance and security e-learning training

+ attending team meetings to ensure data protection and security is a key element of all work
and staff take responsibility for data in their teams
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Environmental sustainability

We operate within the guidelines of the sustainable development strategy for the health and social
care system 2014-2020. The trust has invested in an upgraded building management system
(BMS) at Teddington Memorial Hospital. BMS refers to a computerised way of controlling and/or
managing various electrical and mechanical components.

This has allowed the Estates Team to control the efficiency of our plant. We are replacing aging
lighting systems with new LED efficient lighting systems at all our sites and carried out a survey on
all-low use areas, planning to change to motion-detected lighting controls.

Staff engagement
This year the HRCH Board signed up to the Single-use Plastics Reduction Pledge, which has a
range of milestones that we should meet.

We no longer buy single-use plastic stirrers and straws, except if someone has a specific need. We
have already worked towards meeting next year's target of no longer buying single-use plastic
cutlery, plates or single-use cups made of expanded polystyrene or oxo-degradable plastics.

We have removed plastic plates and single-use cups from our wards, staff rooms and meeting
rooms. We plan to install dishwashers with a view to removing single-use cutlery. Wherever
possible, colleagues are consulted and asked for their involvement in new and innovative ideas.
Sustainability meetings with clinical teams help to gain ideas.

Actions to encourage environmental sustainability

» Woe have a zero-waste-to-landfill policy

+ All domestic waste is burned to generate energy, enabling zero landfill — this energy is
distributed to the National Grid

» We encourage use of public transport and agile working, adding agile working locations to the
trust's property portfolio .

e Continuous auditing and the introduction of ISO9001 processes ensures legal compliance and
captures any missed carbon and/or financial saving opportunities

+ Up-to-date reporting identifies trends in utility consumption and waste production and enables
the estates team to take action to resolve issues

Utilities

Electricity is hourly metered, so we can see daily peaks and troughs, enabling closer usage
management. With our efficient gas boilers and new BMS we anticipate our plant will allow us to
maintain a consistent usage of gas which will put less strain on the main system. Water
consumption has been tightly controlled, reducing stored water on site, while creating a more
reliable water system of reducing leaks and water waste.

Waste

We recycle just about 68% of non-clinical waste, against the UK national average of 45.2%.
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Transport

Through the rationalisation of our estate, we have created a lot of agile working spaces and
reduced the need for colleagues to travel around our boroughs. Walking and public transport are
encouraged whenever possible.

We have continued our partnership with AccessAble, which provides online information to help
colleagues and patients with and without accessibility issues to plan their travel, particularly by
public transport to all HRCH sites. This partnership with AccessAble has been well received and
helped HRCH in coming first out of Community Trusts in a PLACE inspection under the disability
category.

Modern Slavery Act (2015)

In accordance with the Modern Slavery Act 2015, the trust has made a statement on its website
regarding the steps taken to ensure that slavery and human trafficking are not taking place in any
part of its own business or any of its supply chains: https://www.hrch.nhs.uk/about-us/corporate-
information-and-assurance/modern-slavery

Interim Chief Executive, 10 June 2021
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SECTION 2 -~ ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT

Corporate governance report

a. Directors’ report

Board of Directors

UNTABILITY
Pl

‘acco

The trust board of directors has overall responsibility for setting the corporate and clinical strategy
of the trust, as well as overseeing performance, including finance.

The board meets in public 6 times per year to discuss performance across the trust, current and
future challenges, and corporate and clinical strategy. When discussing issues of a confidential
nature the trust board resolve to meet in private in accordance with the Public Bodies Act 1960.

The chairman Sian Bates is chair in common with Kingston Hospital Foundation Trust. This
supports the Government's recent white paper, which includes proposals to make integrated care a
reality and encourages greater levels of collaboration between health and care organisations.

Details of public board meetings and papers are available on the trust website Board meetings ::

Hounslow & Richmond Community Healthcare

Changes to the trust board

During 2020/21 the following changes took place to the membership of the trust board:
On 30 November 2020 David Hawkins was appointed as interim Chief Executive.

Phil Hall and Joanne Hay both had their Terms of Office renewed until 31 July 2021.

Board members

The full list of members of the trust board who served in 2020/21, is as follows. Biographies of
board members can be found on our website https://www.hrch.nhs.ul/about-us/trust-board-and-

leadership

Chairman
Sian Bates

Non-Executive Directors
Judith Rutherford

Bindesh Shah

Joanne Hay

Phil Hall

Ginny Colwell

Executive Directors

Patricia Wright, Chief Executive (until 29
November 2020)

Monique Carayol, Director of Strategy &
Transformation* (until 12 March 2021)

David Hawkins, Director of Finance &
Corporate Services (until 29 November
2020)

David Hawkins, interim Chief Executive
(30 November 2020)

Stephen Hall, Director of Clinical
Services?, Richmond and South West
London (SWL)

Alison Heeralall, Director of Workforce &
Communications”

Rosalyn King, Director of Primary Care
Networks (1 October 2020)

Donna Lamb, Director of Nursing & Non-
Medical Professionals (until 31 May
2020)

Annual Report 2020/21 page 35 of 71



Sarah Shingler, Director of Nursing & Observers (non-voting):

Non-Medical Professionals (1 June The following are also able to attend board
2020) meetings in a non-voting capacity, to

Dr John Omany, Medical Director represent the community’s views:

Anne Stratton, Director of Clinical John Marshall — Healthwatch Hounslow
Services, Hounslow and North West Paul Pegden Smith — Healthwatch

London (NWL)» Richmond

Bridget Welch, interim Director of
Finance (30 November 2020)
*Non-voting Directors, A Voting Directors
who share a single vote
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The table below details board members’ position at 31 March 2021 on the Sub-Committees of the trust
board. Profiles of trust board members are available at hitps.//www.hrch.nhs.uk/about-us/trust-board-

and-leadership

Non-Executive Board Members

Committee membership (*chair)

Sian Bates

Trust Board*
Nominations and Remuneration®
Attends all committees at least once a year

Judith Rutherford

Trust Board

Audit and Risk

Charitable Funds®*

Nominations and Remuneration

Richmond Community Healthcare in Partnership
Committee (RCHIP)**

Bindesh Shah

Trust Board

Audit and Risk

Finance and Performance*
Nominations and Remuneration

Joanne Hay

Trust Board

Finance and Performance
Nominations and Remuneration
Worlkforce and Education*

Phil Hall

Trust Board

Audit and Risk*

Quality Governance
Nominations and Remuneration

Ginny Colwell

Trust Board

Quality Governance™
Nominations and Remuneration
Workforce and Education

** RCHIP is a joint committee set up with the RGPA to oversee progress with delivery of the Outcome-
Based Commissioning contract. RCHIP is a committee of both the trust's and RGPA’s Boards.

Executive Board Members Committee membership (*chair)
Patricia Wright (until 28 Trust Board
November 2020) RCRHIP

Part Il risk session of audit and risk
Afttends all committees at least once a year

Monique Carayol (until 12 March
2021)

Trust Board
(RCHIP)**

David Hawkins (interim CEO 30

Trust Board*

November 2020) Finance and Performance
(RCHIP)**
Part Il risk session of Audit and Risk
Stephen Hall Trust Board

Finance and Performance
Workforce and Education
(RCHIP)**
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Alison Heeralall, Trust Board
Workforce and Education

Donna Lamb (until 31 May 2020) | Trust Board

Quality Governance
Workforce and Education
{(RCHIP)**

Rosalyn King (1 October 2020)*** | Trust Board

Sarah Shingler (1 June 2020) Trust Board
Quality Governnace
Workforce and Education

(RCHIP)**
Dr John Omany Trust Board
Quality Governance
| Anne Stratton Trust Board
Charitable Funds
Quality Governance
Bridget Welch (30 November Trust Board
2020) Finance and Performance

Part Il risk session of Audit and Risk

** RCHIP is a joint committee set up with the RGPA to oversee progress with delivery of the Outcome-
Based Commissioning contract. RCHIP is a committee of both the trust’s and RGPA's Boards.

***The hosted Director of Primary Care Networks (PCN) (Hounslow) is responsible for the successful
running of the PCNs in Hounslow, with accountability to and scrutiny from the Hounslow Consortium
Board. The postholder is invited to attend all public board meetings and to attend private sessions of
the board meetings as and when required. The Director of PCNs (Hounslow) does not share corporate
responsibility with Executive and non-executive directors of the Trust Board for the successful running
of the trust under NHS Corporate Governance arrangements and has therefore been excluded from
the governance and remuneration sections of this report.

The Register of Interest of Executive and Non-Executive Directors is published on the trust's
website on the ‘Our Board’ tab https:/www.hrch.nhs.uk/about-us/trust-board-and-
leadership/board-meetings

From 1 April 2021, Jo Farrar joined the trust as interim CEO and David Hawkins was appointed as
itnerim Deputy Chief Exeucitve in addition to his substantive role as the Director of Fiannce and
Corporate Services.

Interim Chief Executive Date: 10 June 2021

Annual Report 2020/21 page 38 of 71



b. Annual governance statement

Scope of responsibility

As Accountable Officer, | have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal control that
supports the achievement of the NHS trust's policies, aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding the
public funds and departmental assets for which | am personally responsible, in accordance with the
responsibilities assigned to me. | am also responsible for ensuring that the NHS trust is administered
prudently and economically and that resources are applied efficiently and effectively. | also
acknowledge my responsibilities as set out in the NHS Trust Accountable Officer Memorandum.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to
eliminate all risk of failure, to achieve policy aims and objectives; it can therefare only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on
an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the policies and
strategic objectives of Hounslow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust, to evaluate the
likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them
efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Hounslow
and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust for the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the
date of approval of the annual report and accounts.

Risk Management

In 2019 as a trust on our Journey to Outstanding, we decided to take a fresh look at risk management to
ensure that risk was further embedded into all decision making. To enable us to deliver the ambition set
out in the trust strategy and the NHS Plan we decided it was timely to produce a risk management
strategy to support our commitment to provide high quality services. We recognised that successful risk
management must be forward thinking; the responsibility of all; comprehensive and coordinated; and that
proactive and continuous identification and management of risk is essential to the delivery of high value
healthcare.

The strategy sets out clear goals, achievements and timescales for implementation. This enables our
people to work towards the same aims empowering innovation whilst ensuring patient quality and care
are at the centre of delivery. Within the strategy we created a vision for risk management. Risk
management will be everybody’'s business — integral to professional and operational practice at every
level and across organisational/professional boundaries. We will continually strive to test the boundaries
of practice, whilst ensuring that we operate within legal and regulatory frameworks to reduce the
exposure to risk to ensure that patients receive outstanding care.

Risk governance

The trust board is accountable to NHS England/Improvement (NHSE/) for the trust’s performance. The
main governance committees are chaired by a Non-Executive Director and report directly to the board.
Each committee is informed and supported by a variety of groups and local meetings.

Risk and control framework

The trust has a robust approach to risk management with:
the board holding an annual risk seminar to review risk management systems and processes and to
agree the organisational risk appetite statement
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the Audit and Risk Committee assuming delegated authority from the board for oversight and
assurance on the management of strategic risks to the delivery of the trust’s objectives. The Audit
and Risk Committee is supported in its oversight of strategic risks by the Finance and Performance,
Executive, Quality Governance and Workforce and Education Committees which lead on specific
strategic risks

the Interim Chief Executive has overall accountability for the development of risk management
systems and delegates responsibility for the management of specific areas of risk to named Directors
all staff are provided with risk management training as part of their induction to the trust
face-to-face training for those staff regularly involved in risk management being provided as
appropriate

an open culture to empower staff to report and resolve incidents and risks through the Datix
recording system and to share learning with teams

{n April 2020 the trust on direction of NHS England/Improvement as part of the pandemic response
implemented light and lean governance arrangements. The arrangements have ensured that the trust
maintains oversight and assurance on equality and sustainability whilst providing patient care. The
introduction of digital meetings brought with it new ways of working.

Managing workforce risks

HRCH has a five-year workforce strategy in place (2020-2024), which was co-developed with clinical

and corporate staff and agreed by the board
the strategy and its associated action plans and workforce risks are monitored and assured through
the board's Workforce and Education Committee (WEC), which is a sub-committee of the board.
The WEC receives the workforce performance report that uses local and national metrics and
triangulates with benchmark data and quality and financial data
the workforce planning methodology entails firstly understanding the trust strategy and how to best
serve our vision that people will live healthier lives through high-quality, effective and co-ordinated
care. Then follows a review of where the trust is and what gaps in skills and training are required to
deliver that vision (such as digital and mobile technology and multi-agency transformation and
engagement skills), followed by planning of the workforce required to meet the future strategy and
activity assumptions in the most efficient way. The planning phase includes consideration of the
needs of the local population in terms of workforce diversity, workforce supply (greater use of
apprenticeships, ‘retire and return’ options and the development of new roles) and service
transformation in line with the NHS Long Term Plan (greater use of on-line consultations etc)

Managing quality risk

The clinical governance agenda is led by the Director of Nursing and Non-Medical Professionals and

the Medical Director. Monitoring arrangements are delivered through a structure of committees,

supporting clear responsibilities and accountabilities from board to front line delivery. The Quality

Governance Committee (QGC) is a committee of the board, which affords scrutiny and monitoring of

the quality agenda.
the Quality and Safety Committee (QSC) reports to the QGC. The Director of Nursing and Non-
Medical Professionals chairs this commiitee; membership of the QSC's committees and working
groups ensures senior leadership as well as frontline engagement with the governance agenda
the trust's clinical governance structure ensures there are robust systems in place for key
governance and performance issues to be escalated from frontline services to the board and gives
assurance of clinical quality. It gives a strong focus on service improvement and ensures high
standards of delivery are maintained

Annual Report 2020/21 page 40 of 71



the board and the relevant committees use a performance scorecard which has been developed to
include a suite of quality indicators at trust and service level aligned to each of the Care Quality
Commission’s five domains of quality. Services are expected to provide exception reports for any
indicators which are not performing as agreed and managers are held to account against action
plans to ensure trajectories are maintained. This approach enables centralised reporting of
performance and quality data and improved triangulation of information

the trust has rolled out the Integrated Quality Assurance Dashboard. The dashboard highlights the
trust’s performance in a range of designated areas of quality. It visualises performance data and

critical quality parameters in a single dashboard to simplify quality management analysis and
reporting.
the trust’s quality improvement strategy is encapsulated in the Journey to Outstanding (J20)

programme. The J20 programme is a structured quality improvement plan with quality improvement
plans in all services to monitor and demonstrate compliance with the CQC’s fundamental standards

and against each of the CQC’s domains and Key Lines of Enquiry (KLOE)

Risk management process

The trust defines risk management as a process to identify factors which may possibly prevent us
from providing an excellent, safe, efficient and effective place of work to deliver patient care and for
staff to work. Risk management includes the process of identifying hazards, risk assessment,
formulating a response, risk reporting and risk review. Risk management is as much about exploiting
new business opportunities and innovation as mitigating risk.

Risk management process

o] *Using Trust objectives, incidents, complaints, claims, patient feedback, safety inspections etc
WAL

ld'eﬁtify"' s|dentify the risk; what is or could cause harm and stop you achieving your objectives

=How significant is the risk?
*Who and what are at risk, estimate of consequence, assess the risk scoring, document your assessment

=How is risk managed?
<1| *Describe controls, document actions, score risk, add to risk register, escalate, monitor and assure controls

sKey outputs of risk register are reported to relevant committee/groups depending on score

«All risk owners continually monitor and review risks

Trust Risk Registers (TRR) (inc Board Assurance Framework (BAF))

Comprise of the local risk registers, the trust risk register as well as the board assurance framework
(BAF), which seek to present an overview of the main risks facing the organisation. The local risk
registers are reviewed, updated and monitored regularly by the relevant directorate and, if necessary, a

risk can be escalated onto the trust risk register, which is monitored each quarter. The TRR is monitored

monthly by the directorate management meeting (DMT), every 4-6 weeks at the Quality and Safety
Committee and quarterly by the Quality Governance and the Audit and Risk Committees.
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The BAF provides the trust with a simple but comprehensive method for effective and focused
management of the principal strategic risks to the delivery of the trust's business. It identifies the controls
and assurances in place to mitigate these risks, the gaps or weaknesses in controls and assurances,
and actions required to further strengthen these mechanisms. The system of internal control is designed
to manage risks to a reasonable level and not to eliminate all risk. The trust has a risk appetite which
defines the risk tolerance with regards to its strategic objectives. These range of a low risk appetite for
patient safety and quality to a high risk appetite for learning and development.

The BAF is monitored by each Executive Director who assess the status of their risk entry by having
oversight of the Trust Risk Register. The BAF is monitored each month by the Executive Committee and
quarterly by the Audit and Risk Committee on behalf of the trust board.

An annual assurance review on the BAF and Risk Management was carried out by Internal Audit. Which
provided responsible assurance that the trust controls are robust and effectively designed. RSM
confirmed the BAF is discussed at relevant committee meetings to ensure that risks included are up to
date with regards to controls and assurances; and any progress against actions is also monitored.

Incident reporting

The trust follows the National Patient Safety Agency viewpoint “Trusts that report incidents regularly
suggest a stronger organisational culture of safety. They lake all incidents seriously and link reporting
with learning.” All services and staff are trained to use the Datix system which facilitates linking of
information across incident reporting, complaints and risk management.

A monthly report of incidents and serious incidents is reported to the Quality and Safety Committee
where it is discussed and analysed for themes and trends and assurance is sought that risk is being
effectively managed across the trust.

The trust is a learning organisation and uses all opportunities to learn from when things go wrong and to
share that learning. It has embraced a ‘being open’ approach and ‘duty of candour’. Crganisational and
service level learning is identified through incidents, audit and patient feedback and it reports lessons
learned and monitors that any required changes in practice are implemented.

The trust promotes a culture of ‘shared learning’ that is embedded throughout the services and has a
number of processes to enable this which includes a monthly ‘Learn and Share’ newsletter and reflective
learning panels to ensure that staff are involved in the discussion and agreement of actions. This
promotes clinical ownership, mitigates the risk of a Serious Incident reoccurring and promotes shared
learning.

Board and Committee oversight and assurance

The board of directors leads on integrated governance and delegates key duties and functions to its
sub-committees. In addition, the board reserves certain decision-making powers including decisions on
strategy and budgets. The diagram below gives an overview of the trust's integrated governance
structure

Corporate governance framework

There are five key sub-committees with responsibility for receiving information on risk management
within the structure that provide assurance to the board of directors. The Executive Committee reports
directly to the board although not a board sub-committee.
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There are a range of mechanisms available to these committees to gain assurance that systems are
robust and effective. These include utilising internal and external audit, peer review, management
reporting and clinical audit.

Committee structures
Each Committee Chair works within a framework which ensures a consistent approach across all
committees, including terms of reference, upward reporting and review of effectiveness.

The Board of Directors

Membership of the board of directors is currently made up of the trust chairman, five

independent, Non-Executive Directors, and eight Executive Directors of which six are

voting members of the board, two with a share of one vote. The key roles and

responsibilities of the board are as follows:
to set and oversee the strategic direction of the trust
review and appraisal of financial and operational performance
to review areas of assurance and concerns as detailed in the chair's assurance reports from its
board committees
to discharge its duties of regulation and control and meet statutory obligations
to ensure the trust continues to deliver high quality patient care, with quality and safety as its
primary focus, receiving and reviewing quality and patient safety reports and also a chair’s report
from the key board committee which deals with patient quality and safety — the Quality Governance
Committee
to receive reports from the Audit and Risk Committee, which include the BAF and progress against
the delivery of strategic objectives, the annual internal auditor’'s report and external auditor’s report
and to take decisions, as appropriate
to agree the trust's annual budget and plan and submissions to NHS Improvement
to approve the annual report and annual accounts
to certify the requirements of NHS provider licence conditions is reviewed annually and the self-
declaration is uploaded onto the website. This can be found on the ‘Provider licence tab
htips:/www.hrch.nhs.uk/about-us/trust-board-and-leadership/board-meetings
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The board of directors meets in public bi-monthly and a breakdown of attendance for the board’s
2020/21 part | meetings is shown below:

Job Title and Name Attendance
Chairman, Sian Bates 6ofb
Non-Executive Director, Ginny Colwell 6of6
Non-Executive Director, Phil Hall 50f6
Non-Executive Director, Joanne Hay 6of6
Non-Executive Director, Judith Rutherford 6of 6
Non-Executive Director, Bindesh Shah 6of 6
Chief Executive, Patricia Wright (to 29 November 2020) 40f 4
Interim Chief Executive, David Hawkins (from 30 November 2020) 20of2
Director of Finance and Corporate Services, David Hawkins (to 29 40f4
November 2020)

interim Director of Finance, Bridget Welch (from 30 November 2020) 2of2
Director of Clinical Services, Stephen Hall (shared vote) 6 of 6
Director of Clinical Services, Anne Stratton (shared vote) 6of6
Director and Nursing and Non-Medical Professionals, Donna Lamb (to 31 10of1
May 2020)

Director of Nursing and Non-Medical Professionals, Sarah Shingler (1 June |50of5
2020

Direc{or of Strategy and Transformation, Monique Carayol (non-voting) (to 50f5
12 March 2021)

Director of Workforce, Alison Heeralall (non-voting) 6of6
Medical Director, John Omany 6of 6
Roz King, Director of Primary Care Networks 20f3

At the end of March 2020 the government declared the COVID-19 pandemic. The NHS was under a
structure of command and control requiring trusts to suspend certain functions including sub-
committees. The trust continued to hold some committees to ensure that the quality and sustainability
of the trust was closely monitored. The board has continued to meet during this time with presentation
of a COVID-19 report which included, finance papers, the board scorecard, risk management and
workforce data.

Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee is a formal committee of the board and is accountable to the board for
reviewing the establishment and maintenance of an effective system of integrated governance, risk
management and internal control, across the trust's activities both clinical and non-clinical, that
supports the achievement of the trust’s objectives. The committee continued to meet in a shortened
form throughout the pandemic. It meets at least five meetings per year

Quality Governance Committee

The Quality Governance Committee (QGC) is a formal committee of the board which focuses on
ensuring robust structures and processes are in place for governing the quality and clinical services
and ensuring services are safe. The committee’s role is to provide assurance on clinical quality,
including clinical effectiveness, patient safety and patient experience.

It supports the board with an integrated approach to risk, control and governance, monitoring
performance against quarterly quality indicators, the quality accounts and all aspects of the three
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domains of quality namely - patient safety, clinical effectiveness and patient experience. The committee
continued to meet in a shortened form throughout the pandemic to ensure the trust’s focus on quality
was maintained. It meets at least six times per year

Finance and Performance Committee

The Finance and Performance Committee reviews financial and non-financial performance across the
trust, reporting to the board. It also has lead oversight for risks to the delivery of trust’s sustainability
strategic priority, along with delivery of the trust’s strategies for estates and information management
and technology. The committee was stood down at the start of the pandemic. The board received
financial performance reports as part of the COVID-19 update. The committee restarted in September
2020. ltis scheduled to meet at least four times per year.

Workforce and Education Committee

The Workforce and Education Committee is responsible for providing assurance that there are
processes and plans in place to agree and achieve the workforce objectives. The committee oversees
the trust's staff engagement and recruitment and retention strategic priorities that enables the trust to
compete successfully for recruits in areas where there is a shortage of supply. it reviews performance
against the delivery of key workforce plans which also cover staff engagement actions taken following
the outcome of the annual NHS staff survey. The committee was stood down at the start of the
pandemic and has kept up to date via informal meetings. The monthly COVID-19 update presented to
the board included workforce data. The committee restarted in September 2020 and will continue with
a light-touch approach. The committee is scheduled to meet four times each year.

Executive Committee
The Executive Committee has delegated responsibility to oversee the effective operational
management of the trust. The committee meets monthly to review and continued throughout the
pandemic:
the development and implementation of business plans, policies, procedures and budgets
operating and financial performance
the prioritisation and allocation of investment and resources within limits set down by standing
financial instructions
the effective mitigation of risks to the delivery of the trust's strategic priorities

Nominations and Remuneration Committee

The Nominations and Remuneration Committee is responsible for determining the pay and contractual
arrangements for Executive Directors and for monitoring and evaluating their performance and
ensuring appropriate succession plans are in place for board members. It is also responsible for
ensuring that Directors meet the Fit and Proper Person Test as required by the Health and Social Care
Act 2008, (Regulated Activities), Regulations 2014.

Charitable Funds’ Committee

The Charitable Funds Committee has been established by the board to make and monitor
arrangements for the control and management of the trust's charitable fund. Key duties of the
Committee are to apply the charitable funds in accordance with the charity’s governing documents. The
committee ensures that appropriate policies and procedures are in place to support the objects of the
charity and ensures that donated funds and assets are properly spent, managed, invested and
accounted for in line with guidance from the Charity Commission and in compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements.
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The trust's charitable funds saw an increase in funding with the trust joining NHS Charities Together
which was responsible for administering the money raised by Sir Tom.

Richmond Community Healthcare in Partnership Committee (RCHiP)

RCHIP is a joint committee set up with the Richmond GP Alliance (RGPA) to oversee progress with
delivery of the Outcome-Based Commissioning contract. RCHiP is a committee of both the trust’s and
RGPA's boards.

Annual committee effectiveness reviews

In line with good governance practice and, as an integral part of being a well-led organisation, each
board committee annually reviews its performance against its specific terms of reference and
objectives. Each committee also comments on its oversight of performance against the delivery of the
key work plans for the year. This information is then presented to the trust board with any revisions to
the terms of reference and the forthcoming year's work plan. The trust board also considers the whole
of its committee structure annually to ensure that it is delivering its requirements.

Equality analysis

Equality analyses (formerly known as equality impact assessments) are integrated into core business
as a requirement for all trust decisions contained in its strategies, policies, procedures and protocols.
The trust has systems in place to ensure that it collects, analyses and acts on information relating to
the legislation on equality and diversity of its workforce and the population it serves. Control measures
are in place to ensure that all the organisation’s obligations under quality, diversity and human rights
legislation are complied with. Equality and diversity is overseen by the trust Equality, Diversity and
Inclusion committee chaired by the Director of Workforce with a NED and patient executive lead.
Assurance is reported via the trust execulive committee.

Care Quality Commission registration
The trust is fully compliant with the registration requirements of the Care Quality Commission.

NHS Pension Scheme

As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS Pension Scheme, control measures are in
place to ensure all employer obligations contained within the Scheme regulations are complied with.
This includes ensuring that deductions from salary, employer’s contributions and payments into the
Scheme are in accordance with the Scheme rules, and that member Pension Scheme records are
accurately updated in accordance with the timescales detailed in the Regulations.

Carbon reduction

The trust has undertaken risk assessments, and carbon reduction delivery plans are in place in
accordance with emergency preparedness and civil contingency requirements, based on UK Climate
Projections 2018 (UKCP18) to ensure that obligations under the Climate Change Act and the
Adaptation Reporting requirements are complied with.

Review of economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources
The trust has in place a range of processes which help to ensure that resources are used
economically, efficiently and effectively. These include:
monthly reporting of financial and non-financial performance to the board of directors and the
Finance and Performance Committee of the board
monthly Executive Performance review meetings where directorates are held to account for financial
and non-financial performance
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the production of annual reference costs, including comparisons with national reference costs
continuous benchmarking of costs and key performance indicators (KPIs) against community trusts
and other providers

standing financial instructions, standing orders and treasury management policy

a budget holder's manual which sets out managers' responsibilities in relation to managing budgets
policies covering the declaration of conflicts of interest, anti-fraud and anti-bribery measures, and
also standards of business conduct

reports by RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP as part of the annual internal audit work plan on
control mechanisms which may need reviewing

the Head of Internal Audit's draft and final opinions being presented to the Audit and Risk
Committee

external audit of our accounts by KPMG LLP who also provide an independent view of the trust's
effective and efficient use of resources, particularly against value for money considerations

good performance under NHS Improvement’s Single Oversight Framework for NHS providers

Information governance and cyber security

Information governance (IG) supports our statutory duty to safeguard patients’ information and keep it
confidential but available. It assures us and patients that personal information is dealt with legally,
securely, efficiently and effectively. This has been a crucial element to support the new ways of
working throughout the pandemic.

Due to our rigorous |G framework and data protection by design approach, we have been able to work
across our boundaries, sharing key data with relevant and appropriate staff in partner organisations to
help combat the virus. For example, the Trust Data Protection Officer has worked closely with I1G
colleagues, as part of a number of sector wide working groups to ensure that the trust can join the
Connecting your Care project. This means that Richmond services have access to relevant and
appropriate data from key health and care organisations at point of treatment.

Effective data security guidance has also enabled staff to work remotely using new software and
business tools, while ensuring the security of patient data.

Throughout 2020, we still marked ourselves against the NHS Digital’'s annual Data Security and
Protection Toolkit. The toolkit provides a benchmark for the trust against current data protection
legislation and related regulations, giving either a pass or fail mark.

We did submit a fully compliant assessment in March 2020, however due to the Covid pandemic, the
usual timetable for the toolkit submission was extended from March 2020 to September 2020.
Therefore, the 20/21 baseline was submitted at the end of February 2021. The full submission is due
at the end of June 2021.

We continue to maintain high standards of information governance through a variety of measures and
actions, including:

» continued review of personal data flows to guarantee the trust operates in line with General Data
Protection Regulations (GDPR), especially with regards to temporary Covid data processing,
ensuring a register all activities is maintained and reviewed

» review of all GDPR rights requests, including the right of access, to ensure requests are answered
within the legislated timeframe, to avoid breaching GDPR and incurring large fines from the ICO
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» continuing review and revision of the trust privacy notice, giving assurance that the trust is
transparent with all data processing, this is of particular importance during the pandemic

» completion of data protection impact assessment for all new research projects, services, systems
and applications which involve the use of personal data

= an audit of our compliance against a small sample of standards from the NHS Digital toolkit by our
internal audit

« continuing review of policies and staff guidance

» helping colleagues to complete information governance and security e-learning training

+ attending team meetings to ensure data protection and security is a key element of all work and
staff take responsibility for data in their teams

Annual Quality Account

In line with the Health Act 2009 and the National Health Service (Quality Accounts) Regulations 2010
(as amended} the trust prepares an annual Quality Account which is signed off by the trust board prior
to it being shared with commissioners, Healthwatch and the local authority scrutiny committees.

The Quality Account is a summary of performance in the last year in relation to quality priorities and
national requirements. The Account is not required to be audited however an internal process of
scrutinising the data to ensure it is consistent with the trust performance scorecard is used. The
template used for the quality account meets statutory requirements and the trust reviews new guidance
annually.

Data quality

General data quality is audited annually and the trust has undertaken actions to improve the quality of
its electronic patient record through better use of templates and the automation of data where
appropriate. The trust assures the quality and accuracy of elective waiting time data through both its
Business Intelligence reporting and the Patient Tracking List (PTL) that is distributed to, and discussed
by, operational leads. Waiting times are individually monitored by both service lines and urgency.
Alongside external data quality audits, data capture is continually reviewed by the applications team
and any training requirements are subsequently assessed with resource then appropriately allocated.
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Review of effectiveness

As Accountable Officer, | have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal
control. My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by the work of the
internal auditors, clinical audit and the Executive managers and clinical leads within the NHS trust who
have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal control framework. | have
drawn on the information provided in this annual report and other performance information available to
me. My review is also informed by comments made by the external auditors in their management letter
and other reports. | have been advised on the implications of the result of my review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control by the board, the Audit and Risk Committee and Quality
Governance Committee and plans to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the
system are in place.

The board ensures the effectiveness of the system of internal control through clear accountability
arrangements.

An annual “Head of Internal Audit Opinion” based on the work and audit assessments undertaken
during the year for 2020-21 was issued and provided assurance that the organisation has an adequate
and effective framework for risk management, governance and internal control.

The Head of Internal Audit's Opinion is achieved through a risk-based plan of work included
undertaking specifically requested management reviews with the aim of strengthening current practices
- The Integrated Care Systems, providing substantial assurance; and The Board Assurance
Framework and Risk Management, Freedom to Speak Up, Financial Governance, Equality and
Diversity (draft) and Patient Experience audits all provided reasonable assurance. Controls were found
to have been adequality designed and generally well applied to mitigate associated risks to the Trust.
Internal audit has provided recommendations to address and strengthen processes in line with current
requirements.

1 am confident that the internal audit reports undertaken were a true reflection of HRCH's position and
that the updated action plans scrutinised at the Quality Governance Committee and Audit and Risk

Committee reflect clear and concise progress in all areas

Conclusion
| confirm that no significant internal control issues have been identified.

Interim Chief Executive Date: 10 June 2021
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2.2 Financial report from the Director of Finance

The directors are required under the National Health Service Act 2006 to prepare accounts for each
financial year. The Secretary of State, with the approval of the treasury, directs that these accounts
give a true and fair view of the situation of the trust and of the income and expenditure, recognised

gains and losses and cash flows for the year. In preparing those accounts, directors are required to:

apply on a consistent basis, accounting policies laid down by the Secretary of State with the
approval of the Treasury

make judgements and estimates which are reasonable and prudent

state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the accounts

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the trust and to enable them to ensure that the accounts
comply with requirements cutlined in the above mentioned direction of the Secretary of State. They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the trust and hence for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors confirm to the best of their knowledge and belief they have complied with the above
requirements in preparing the accounts.

The directors confirm that the annual report and accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced, and
understandable and provides the information necessary for patients, regulators, and stakeholders to
assess the NHS trust’s performance, business model and strategy.

By order of the trust
10 June 2021....Date Interim Chief Executive
10 June 2021 Date Finance Director

Financial Balance

Hounslow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS trust planned for a control total of £374k surplus
early in 2020. However, the introduction of a new financial regime during the COVID 19 pandemic saw
this reduced to a breakeven plan in the first six months foliowed by a £1.3m planned deficit in the final
half of 2020-21. The trust delivered a £16k surplus. This was achieved through sound financial planning
and control by budget managers despite being faced with several in-year financial pressures and
unprecedented local and national challenges.

Total Income for 2020-21 was £85.7m with 76% of this coming from Clinical Commissioning Groups and
13% from NHS England. Hounslow and South West London CCGs were the trust’s two main
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commissioners. Included in this income is £2m of notional income representing the value of additional
pension contributions paid centrally by NHS England. As a consequence of the pandemic, new block
contracting arrangements were introduced early in 2020-21, combining all income sources into these
payments and therefore limiting transactional activity. A system of top up funding from NHSE to cover
most COVID related spend and any other shortfalls ensured that all trusts broke even in the first six
months of 2020-21. Local system funding arrangements in the latter half of 2020-21 replaced this top up
process

Where our income comes from

B NHS England

B NHSE Top Up
% I

8%
5
\ Clinical Commissioning
% | Groups
A, b B NHS Trusts

® Foundation Trusts

2%

| W y | Local Authorities

—— i All Other
76%

Total Expenditure for 2020-21 was £85.7m and 67.5% of this was spent on staff salaries and wages.

Annual Report 2020-21 page 51 of 71



Where we spent our money
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Statement of Financial Position _

Hounslow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS trust ended the year in a strong financial position.
Total assets employed decreased slightly by £0.34m to £46.0m due to new investment of £2.2m of capital
schemes mainly into buildings and IT. Of this investment, £1.8m was funded from depreciation, the
remainder from the Trust's cash balances. There was a revaluation of our land and buildings as at 31
March 2021 which decreased their overall values by £0.35m. Trust creditors and accruals have increased
by £7.48m and debtors have decreased by £0.875m. The trust continues to have no borrowing.

Cash-flow

Cash increased by £9.1m in the year due to the increase in creditors. The cash balance may contribute
positively towards future including spending on capital projects to improve the patient experience and
enhance our technology and systems, However, this will be subject to approval from SW London CCG
and future discussions regarding priorities for the local capital departmental expenditure limit ( CDEL)
allocations.

Better Payment Practice Code
The Better Payment Practice Code requires the trust to aim to pay all valid invoices by the due date or
within 30 days of receipt of a valid invoice, whichever is later.

Hounslow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS trust recognises the need in the current economic
climate to pay suppliers promptly and has continued to maintain good performance against this code,
consistently achieving above the target of 95% throughout most of the year. Despite the pandemic we
maintained the target at year end.
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2020-21 2019-20
Number Number
Non-NHS Creditors
Total bills paid in the year 15,713 16,157
Total bills paid within target 15,006 15,034
Percentage of bills paid within target 95.5% 93.0%
NHS Creditors
Total bills paid in the year 728 884
Total bills paid within target 714 842
Percentage of bills paid within target 98.1% 95.2%
Overall
Total bills paid in the year 16,441 17,041
Total bills paid within target 15,720 15,876
Percentage of bills paid within target 95.6% 93.2%

The trust has signed up to the Prompt Payments Code.

Auditors

The trust’'s external auditors for 2020-21 were KPMG. The cost of external audit for work undertaken in
2020-21 was £43,100 excluding VAT. (2019-20 £37,100 excluding VAT). This included a sum of
£10,000 plus VAT for a Value for Money audit undertaken

As far as the directors are aware there is no relevant audit information of which the NHS body's auditors
are unaware and that the directors have taken all the required steps as directors in order to ensure they
are aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that
information.

Looking forward

While the NHS is in a period of transition, HRCH continues to plan on a longer-term basis for both
revenue and capital spends, which in turn will allow it to provide high quality services for the local
population.

2.4 Remuneration and staff report

Remuneration report

Hounslow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust (HRCH) Nominations and Remuneration
Committee is responsible for determining the pay and contractual arrangements for its most senior
managers and for monitoring and evaluating their performance. Information relating to Executive and
Non-Executive directors is therefore included in this report.
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The committee comprises the Chairman and all Non-Executive Directors of the board. The Nominations
and Remuneration Committee reviews the salaries of its most senior managers annually. Cost of living
awards are in accordance with the guidance issued by NHS England/Improvement (NHSE/I).

Standardised terms and conditions of service apply to the most senior managers, who are employed on
contracts of employment. Performance of the most senior managers is assessed formally through an
individual performance and development review process. Performance-related payments were made in
the remuneration packages in 2020-21.

Details of directors’ remuneration and pension entitlements are covered in the following tables. This has
been subject to audit.

Information from the Register of Interests recorded by board directors during the year can be found
within this report.

Remuneration policy

The trust policy is to ensure fairness, equity and consistency is applied in the recruitment of Executive
and Non-executive Directors and to make sure that there is sufficient leadership capacity and capability
and diversity to deliver the Trust Strategy.

The trust's independent Non-Executive led committee advises the Board on the appropriate
remuneration and terms of service for the Executive Directors and any substantive staff on Very Senior
Managers terms and conditions.

The Trust keeps under review all aspects of the reward strategy for Executive Directors based on
national guidance. Whilst ensuring that Directors are fairly rewarded for their individual contribution to
the Trust having proper regard to local circumstances and benchmarking data and performance and to
the provisions of any national arrangements for such staff where appropriate.

Starting salaries for Executive Directors are determined by the committee with reference to guidance
from NHSE/, independently obtained NHS salary survey information, internal relativities, and equal
pay provisions and other labour market factors, where relevant.

Pay progression is determined by the committee for:
* annual inflation considerations in line with nationally published indices (RPI/CPI), Department of
Health/NHSE/I guidance and other nationally determined NHS pay settlements

* specific review of the individual salaries in line with independently obtained NHS salary survey
information, other labour, and market factors where relevant, e.g. for cross sector functional
disciplines, internal relativities, and equal pay provisions. Such review is only likely where an
individual director’s portfolio of work or market factors change substantially.

Other senior managers are paid in accordance with the national NHS Agenda for Change pay
system.

Contracts

Contracts for directors are normally substantive (permanent) contracts subject to termination by
written notice, by either party, except in cases of gross misconduct, when summary dismissal would
be imposed. On occasion, as required by the needs of the organisation, appointments may be of a
temporary or ‘acting’ nature in which case a lesser notice period may be agreed.
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Termination liabilities for Executive Directors
There are no provisions for compensation for early termination for any Executive Directors, as
detailed in the table below.

Other termination liabilities for all Executive Directors are the entitlements under the relevant NHS
terms and conditions and the NHS Pension scheme. Statutory entittement also applies in the event of
unfair dismissal. The balance of annual leave earned but untaken would be due to be paid on

termination.
Name Post Title Date of Unexpired Notice Provision for Other
Contract Term Period Compensation Termination
for Early Liability
Termination
Patricia Wright | Chief Executive 1 November Substantive | 3 months None See text
2016’ above
David Director of Finance 1 April 20112 Substantive | 3 months None As above
Hawkins and Corporate
Services
Donna Lamb Director of Nursing 1 February Substantive | 3 months None As above
and Non-Medical 2018°
Professionals
Sarah Director of Nursing 18 May 2020 | Substantive | 3 months None As above
Shingler and Non-Medical
Professionals
John Omany Medical Director 1 May 2018 Substantive | 3 months None As above
Alison Director of Worklorce | 25 November | Substantive | 3 months None As above
Heeralall 20154
Monique Director of 1 October Substantive | 3 months None As above
Carayol Transformation 2016°
Anne Stratton | Director of Clinical 1 October Substantive | 3 months None As above
Services 2016
Stephen Hall Director of Clinical 3 January Substantive | 3 months None As above
Services 2017

Vinterim fixed term CEQ from October 2015 and fixed term from 1 May 2016 to 31 October 2016

2New VSM contract incorperating Corporate Services from 1 January 2016

3 Acting Direclor of Nursing from 1 April 2017 to 31 January 2018

4New VSM contract incorporating Communications from 1 October 20186, substantive from 1 October 2018
SSubstantive from 1 October 2018
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As Non-Executive Directors do not receive pensionable remuneration, there will be no entries in
respect of pensions for them. Pension details have only been disclosed for those Directors in post
during 2020-21.

Cash Equivalent Transfer Values

A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of the pension
scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The benefits valued are the
member's accrued benefits and any contingent spouse’s pension payable from the scheme.

A CETV is a payment made by a pension scheme or arrangement to secure pension benefits in
another pension scheme or arrangement when the member leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer
the benefits accrued in their former scheme. The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the
individual has accrued as a consequence of their total membership of the pension scheme, not just
their service in a senior capacity to which disclosure applies.

The CETV figures and the other pension details include the value of any pension benefits in another
scheme or arrangement which the individual has transferred to the NHS pension scheme. They also
include any additional pension benefit accrued to the member as a result of their purchasing
additional years of pension service in the scheme at their own cost. CETVs are calculated within the
guidelines and framework prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.

Real increase in CETV :

This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of the increase
in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including the value of any
benefits transferred from another scheme or arrangement) and uses common market valuation
factors for the start and end of the period.

Remuneration ratios
Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the highest-
paid Director in their organisation and the median remuneration of the organisation’s workforce.

The banded remuneration of the highest paid director in Hounslow and Richmond Community
Healthcare NHS Trust in the financial year 2020/21 was £145,000 (2019/20 - £143,807). This was
4.62 times (2019/20 - 4.59 times) the median remuneration of the organisation’s workforce of
£31,365 (2019/20 - £31,365). In 2020/21, Nil (2019/20 Nil}, empioyees received remuneration in
excess of the highest paid director. Remuneration ranged from £19,337 to £130,078 (2019/20
£13,816 to £128,752)

Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance related pay, benefits in kind as

well as severance payments. It does not include employer pension contributions and the cash
equivalent transfer value of pensions.
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Staff Costs
The following table sets out the costs of staff employed either permanently, on the bank or via agency
during 2020-21.

Salaries and wages 39,324 2,539 41,863 38,114
Social security costs 3839 265 4.104 3744
Apprenticeship levy 195 195 180

Employer's contributions to NHS
pensions 7,278 270 7,548 6,963

Pension cost - other

Other post-employment benefits

Other employment benefits

Termination benefits

Temporary staff - 4,113 4,113 4,069
Total gross staff costs 50,636 7,187 57,823 53,070
Recoveries in respect of seconded

staff

Total staff costs 50,636 7.187 57,823 53,070
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Average number of employees (WTE basis)

| 2020-21 | 2019-20 |
‘Permanent | Other | Total | Total

S [ Nuimber)) INUmber | NOmbar) | INUmBei?
Medical and dental 9 2 I 11 1
Ambulance staff 3 0 3 2
Administration and estates 122 23 145 133
Healthcare assistants and other support |
staff 321 17 338 335
Nursing, midwifery and health visiting staff 280 41 321 312
Nursing, midwifery and health visiting
learners 6 - 6 6
Scientific, therapeutic and technical staff 245 32 277 274
Healthcare science staff 15 0 15 15
Social care staff - - = -
Other 2 - - -
Total average numbers 1,001 115 1,116 1,088
Of which:
Number of employees (WTE) engaged on
capital projects 2 - 2 2
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Exit packages
Reporting of compensation schemes - exit packages 2020-21

[ | Numberof | Total number |
other of exit

departures
_agreed |

—_——— e = = =

Exit package cost band (mcludmg
any special payment element)

<£10,000 - = -
£10,001 - £25,000 - = .
£25,001 - 50,000 1 - 1*
£50,001 - £100,000 1 = 1
£100,001 - £150,000 - = - -
£150,001 - £200,000 - 5 -

>£200,000 - - -
Total number of exit packages by

type 2 - 2
Total resource cost (£) £96,000 £0 £96,000

*Relates to a historical redundancy payment from 2017/18

Reporting of compensation schemes - exit packages 2019-20

'|

Exit package cost band(mcludlng any
special payment element)

<£10,000 - - :

£10,001 - £25,000 - - e

£25,001 - 50,000 - - -

£50,001 - £100,000 - } ]

£100,001 - £150,000 - = .

£150,001 - £200,000 - = -

>£200,000 - - -

Total number of exit packages by type

Total resource cost (£) £0 £0 £0
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Exit packages: other (non-compulsory) departure payments

Voluntary redundancies
including early retirement
contractual costs

2020-21 ” 2019-20 _J

Total | Payments |
value of

Mutually agreed resignations
(MARS) contractual costs

Early retirements in the
efficiency of the service
contractual costs

Contractual payments in lieu of
notice

Exit payments following
Employment Tribunals or court
orders

Non-contractual payments
requiring HMT approval

Total

Of which:

Non-contractual payments
requiring HMT approval made
to individuals where the
payment value was more than
12 months’ of their annual
salary
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For all off-payroll engagements as of 31 March 2021 for more than £245 per day and that
last longer than six months:

| N

Number of existing engagements as of 31 March 2021 0
Of which, the number that have existed:

for less than one year at the time of reporting 0
for between one and two years at the time of reporting 0
for between 2 and 3 years at the time of reporting 0
for between 3 and 4 years at the time of reporting 0
for 4 or more years at the time of reporting 0

The trust can confirm that all existing off-payroil engagements have at some point been subject to a
risk based assessment as to whether assurance is required that the individual is paying the right
amount of tax and, where necessary, that assurance has been sought.

For all new off-payroll engagements between 1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021, for more
than £245 per day and that last longer than six months:

Of which...
Number
No. of new engagements, or those that reached six months in 0
duration, between 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2020
Of which:
No. assessed as caught by IR35 0
No. assessed as not caught by IR35 0
No. engaged directly (via PSC contracted to department) and 0
are on the departmental payroll
No. of engagements reassessed for consistency/assurance 0
purposes during the year.
! No. of engagements that saw a change to IR35 status 0
| following the consistency review
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Off-payroll board member/senior official engagements

For any off-payroll engagements of board members, and/or, senior officials with significant
financial responsibility, between 1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021

Number

No. of off-payroll engagements of board members, and/or, | 0
senior officials with significant financial responsibility, during the
financial year. (1)

No. of individuals that have been deemed “board members, 16
and/or, senior officials with significant financial responsibility”,
during the financial year. This figure should include both off-
payroll and on-payroll engagements
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SECTION 3 — FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 Accountability Statements

STATEMENT OF THE INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S RESPONSIBILITIES AS THE
ACCOUNTABLE OFFICER OF THE TRUST

The Chief Executive of NHS Improvement, in exercise of powers conferred on the NHS Trust
Development Authority, has designated that the Interim Chief Executive should be the Accountable
Officer of the trust. The relevant responsibilities of Accountable Officers are set out in the NHS
Trust Accountable Officer Memorandum. These include ensuring that:

» there are effective management systems in place to safeguard public funds and assets and
assist in the implementation of corporate governance;

e value for money is achieved from the resources available to the trust;

« the expenditure and income of the trust has been applied to the purposes intended by
Parliament and conform to the authorities which govern them;

+ effective and sound financial management systems are in place; and

e annual statutory accounts are prepared in a format directed by the Secretary of State to
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs as at the end of the financial year and the
income and expenditure, other items of comprehensive income and cash flows for the year.

As far as | am aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the trust's auditors are
unaware, and | have taken all the steps that | cught to have taken to make myself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the entity’s auditors are aware of that information.
To the best of my knowledge and belief, | have properly discharged the responsibilities set out in
my letter of appointment as an Accountable Officer.

Interim Chief Executive Date: 10 June 2021
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3.2 FINANCIAL accounts

The summary financial statements are shown below a full copy of the accounts can be obtained from the

website: www.hrch.nhs.uk

The auditor’s issued an unqualified opinion on the full accounts and stated that the strategic and

Director’s reports were consistent with the full accounts and annual report.

Hounslow and Richmond Community Healthcare NHS Trust

Summary Financial Statements 2020-21

Statement of Comprehensive Income for year ended 31 March 2021

2020-21
£ 000

Employee benefits (57,823)
Other costs (27,181)
Revenue from patient care activities 79,871
Other Operating revenue 5,834
Operating surplus/{deficit) 701
Investment revenue 6
Surplus/(deficit) for the financial year 707
Public dividend capital dividends payable (691)
Retained surplus/{deficit) for the year 16
Cther Comprehensive Income

Revaluation of Assets (358)
Total comprehensive income for the year (342)

2019-20
£ 000
(53,070)
(22,400)

74,341
3,325
2,196

159
2,355

(691)
1,664

1,273

2,937
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2021

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Trade and other receivables
Total non-current assets

Current assets

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

Total assels

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Provisions

Other Liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities
Total non-current liabilities

Total Assets Employed
FINANCED BY

Retained earnings
Revaluation reserve

Total Taxpayers' Equity

Interim Chief Executive Date: 10 June 2021

Statement of Changes in Taxpayers' Equity at 31 March 2021

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2020-21

Balance at 1 April 2020
Retained surplus/(deficit) tor the year

Revaluation of Assets
Balance at 31 March 2021

2020-21 2019-20
£ 000 £ 000
28,342 28,264
0 0
28,342 28,264
6,497 8,355
33,959 24,460
40,456 32,815
68,802 61,079
(20,305) (13,991)
0 0
(1,518) {53)
46,775 47,035
(986) (704)
45,989 46,331
34,374 34,358
11,615 11,973
45,989 46,33

Retained earnings

£000

46,331

(358)
45,989
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Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 March 2021

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Operating Surplus/Deficit

Depreciation and Amortisation

Income recognised in respect of capital donations
Impairments and Reversals

PDC Dividend Paid

{Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables
Provisions Utilised

Increase/{Decrease) in Provisions

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received

Receipt of cash donations to purchase capital assets
{Payments) for Property, Plant and Equipment

Net Cash Inflow/{Outflow) from Investing Activities

NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) BEFORE FINANCING

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Financing Activities

NET INCREASE/{DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and Cash Equivalents (and Bank Overdraft) at beginning of the year

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes in the Balance of Cash Held in Foreign Currencies

Cash and Cash Equivalents (and Bank Overdraft) at year end

2020-21
£ 000

701
1,786

(691)
875
8,936

282

11,889

6

0
{2,396)
{2,390)

9,499

9,499
24,460

33,959

2019-20
£ 000

2,196
1,899
0

0
(757)
(1,854)
2,572
0

(3
4,053

159

0
(1,624)
(1,465)

2,588

2,588
21,872

24,460



3.3 Glossary of financial terms

Accruals

Assets

Break-even (duty)

Capital

Capital charges

Capital
departmental
expenditure limit

Capital resource
limit (CRL)

Cost improvement
programme

Current assets

An accounting concept. In addition to payments and receipts of cash (and
similar), adjustment is made for outstanding payments, debts to be
collected, and stock {items bought, paid for but not yet used). This means
that the accounts show all the income and expenditure that relates to the
financial year.

An item that has a value in the future. For example, a debtor (someone
who owes money) is an asset, as they will in future pay. A building is an
asset, because it houses activity that will provide a future income stream.
A financial target. Although the exact definition of the target is relatively
complex, in its simplest form the break-even duty requires the NHS
organisation to match income and expenditure, i.e. make neither a profit
nor a loss.

in most businesses, capital refers either to shareholder investment funds,
or buildings, land and equipment owned by a business that has the
potential to earn income in the future. The NHS uses this second
definition but adds a further condition — that the cost of the
building/equipment must exceed £5,000. Capital is thus an asset (or
group of functionally interdependent assets), with a useful life expectancy
of greater than one year, whose cost exceeds £5,000.

Capital charges are a device for ensuring that the cost associated with
owning capital is recognised in the accounts. A charge is made to the
income and expenditure account on all capital assets except donated
assets and those with a zero net book value. The capital charge
comprises depreciation, and a return similar to debt interest. This rate of
return is set by the Treasury and is currently 3.5%.

The Department of Health {DH) sets a capital departmental expenditure limit
(CDEL), which covers the capital spend of NHS trusts and is used by DH
and HM Treasury to monitor and manage capital expenditure within the
sector

An expenditure limit determined by the Department of Health for each
NHS organisation limiting the amount that may be expended on capital
purchases, as assessed on an accruals basis (i.e. after adjusting for
debtors and creditors).

The identification of schemes to reduce expenditure/increase efficiency.

Debtors, stocks, cash or similar — i.e. assets that are, or can be
converted into, cash within the next twelve months.
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Depreciation

Financial
reporting
standard (FRS)

Fixed assets

General medical
services

Governance

Healthcare
resource group
(HRG)

Indexation

Net book value

Overheads

Payment by
results

The process of charging the cost of an asset over its useful life as
opposed to recording its cost as a single entry in the income and
expenditure records. Depreciation is an accounting charge (i.e. it does
not involve any cash outlay). Accumulated depreciation is the extent to
which depreciation has been charged in successive years’ income and
expenditure accounts since the acquisition of the asset.

Issued by the Accounting Standards Board, financial reporting standards
govern the accounting treatment and accounting policies adopted by
organisations. Generally these standards apply to NHS organisations.

Land, buildings or equipment that are expected to generate income for a
period exceeding one year.

Medical services provided by general practitioners (as opposed to dental,
ophthalmic and pharmaceutical services provided by other clinical
professions).

Governance (or corporate governance} is the system by which
organisations are directed and controlled. It is concerned with how an
organisation is run — how it structures itself and how it is led. Governance
should underpin all that an organisation does. In the NHS this means it
must encompass clinical, financial and organisational aspects.

HRGs are the ‘currency’ used to collate the costs of
procedures/diagnoses into common groupings to which tariffs can be
applied. HRGs place these procedures and/or diagnoses into bands,
which are ‘resource homogenous’, that is, clinically similar and
consuming similar levels of resources.

A process of adjusting the value, normally of fixed assets, to account for
inflation.

The value of items {assets) as recorded in the balance sheet of an
organisation. The net book value takes into consideration the
replacement cost of an asset and the accumulated depreciation (i.e. the
extent to which that asset has been ‘consumed’ by its use in productive
processes).

Overhead costs are those costs that contribute to the general running of
the organisation but cannot be directly related to an activity or service.
For example, the total heating costs of a hospital may be apportioned to
individual departments using floor area or cubic capacity.

A financial framework in which providers are paid according to the level
of activity undertaken. Payment is based on a national tariff system.
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QlPP

Reference costs

Revenue

Tangible asset

Variance

Working capital

Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention: National Department of
Health strategy involving all NHS staff, patients, clinicians and the
voluntary sector. It aims to improve the quality and delivery of NHS care
while reducing costs to make £20bn efficiency savings by 2014-15.
These savings will be reinvested to support the front line.

NHS organisations are required to submit a schedule of costs of
healthcare resource groups to allow direct comparison of the relative
costs of different providers. The results are published each year in the
National Schedule of Reference Costs.

On-going or recurring costs or funding for the provision of services.
A sub-classification of fixed assets, to exclude invisible items such as

goodwill and brand values. Tangible fixed assets include land, buildings,
equipment, and fixtures and fittings.

The difference between budgeted and actual income and/or expenditure.

Variances are an accounting tool used to analyse the cause of
over/under spends with a view to proposing rectifying action.

Working capital is the money and assets that an organisation can call
upon to finance its day-to-day operations (it is the difference between
current assets and liabilities and is reported in the balance sheet as net
current assets (liabilities). If working capital dips too low, organisations
risk running out of cash and may need a working capital loan to smooth
out the troughs.
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